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NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC., NEW DELHI

National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (NICSI) was set up in 1995 as a section 8 Company
(erstwhile Section 25 Company) under National Informatics Centre, Ministry of Electronics and
Information Technology, Government of India to provide tofal ICT solutions to Ministries,
Departments, Organizationsin the Central Government, State Governments, UTsand P S Us.

Vision

"Achieve leadership position in the fechnology enablement of India and other developing
countries thereby contributing effectively to accelerate socio-economic growth”.

Mission

"To promote and provide transparent value added Information and Communication
Technology on end to end solutions including procurement services and business solutions to
customers at competitive prices with a focus on socio-economic development".

Objectives

To provide the economic, scientific, technological, social and cultural development of India
by promoting the utilization of Information Technology, Computer-Communication Networks,
Informatics etc. by a spinoff of the services, technologies, infrastructure and expertise
developed by the Natfional Informatics centre of the Government of India including its
computer-communication network, NICNET and associated infrastructure and services.

To promote further development of services, tfechnologies, infrastructure and expertise fo
supplement what NIC has developed, in ordertoincrease NIC'srevenue earning capacity.

To develop and promote value added computer and computer-communications services
over the basic infrastructure and services developed by NIC including NICNET.

In furtherance of these objectives, NICSI has been providing following Products & services to
Ministries, Departments, Organizationsin the Central Government, state governments, UTs and
BSUs efc

= Data Analytics

. Website Development
= Rollout Services

= Manpower Services

= Data Centre Services
= Productization

®  Video-conferencing

= | T. Consultancy

= Call Centre Services

= Training Services

NICSI is truly a Total ICT solutions
Company in the Service of the Nation.




NICSI:

Is fruly a total ICT Solutions Company
in the Service of the Nation.

Diffusion in e-governance.

Networks people in Government,
Indusiry & academia to permeate
the technology benefits to the
remotest part of India.

Harnessing Information &
Communication Technologies.

=
! Creating Synergy for Technology
l
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3R |ferd, T g 31 <I arg

1. SIIe™ s, o,

THEIATS CIaTS

o o g,

ST US UBU, UHSASCIdTS

ISMH—SN 3R AHE AT, YASINSIATS
SR gerar 9,

denfre S 3R g TH=ag®, THSATSAIaTS

(o

dSIfh—Sil, T3Sl

2l gilel BAR,
Jnrp—of, Tams<
B ISICI
Arp—ofl, Tams<

AN 3fehl s,

JSfH—Stl, TSl

T GRE IR,

Jemfp—ofl, 3R THSal (3RTH), YISl
i 3oy Rig = d,

ALTH—Sil 3R TH3MgAT (Tedl), TSl

<. faa ot

Jenfre—oll, TSl 3R THS), THsMEdudaS

AT = o

3 eraTel Vs i (1RTR 0604)
IS ABTSCe

|-79, 7ai qd, f&HTera wad, 23, B AR,
=g el — 110001

Blcl 4. 2 9 3, 6df adl, U9 41 1 i TR,

1541, WIBTON BT @i, T8 faceil—110066

I §% i 3, Uoe eFe §%, YRA™ e d@, Hidml
BT, T8 faeell &R MSHRSHITS & foIfi., AhaReiT Ui,
73 facell, 3feuT 9%, BHlc Tag, I8 oo, BT ddb, STYT IRAT |
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274t aifties 311 A3H

Ted ShRfead Hex Afdfist Sdfunces (Mad) & dewl &l YdedRT ga-1 < ol 2 &6 fFafofReq sri—=mr
JI9 B B oI sHdT Fasadl aifife H dod AHaR, fdid 26 fadaR, 2022 &1 AR 03:00 991 HIHA BT .
4009, =T T, FAIFRITDT T o UIGATRDB! TR, SeraciaT Frava, 6 AT, BiFead, A s, T3 foell —

110003 ¥ IMAFTT BT SIRAM:

A RIAR:

1. f3A® 31.3.2022 @1 Refd AR I@—uRIfeId U= T21 31 AT, 2022 I FAK aY & [ofT HUAl B 3T G
Y ol R IS Gdg H el @1 RUIC q1 d@—wied & Ruc 9o 99 R 9Rd & FRIF6 AR Hal
AE—ReTd B TR U B, AR HRAT IR oD AJUTAT BT |

2. I IS, 2013 Y GRT 142 & Fqia Mg 99 2022—23 & forv IR & fFRiF® IR A8 agT—uNieTd
gRT Fgh oy T Aifdfees ora—wRieral & uRsifie &1 Faae & |

e dsal ® fov ok SHd TR% |

A9 shidfeag der afdaya 5.

g0/ —

(F=h <)

XM : A3 Aol HUE Ard

fafer @ 22.12.2022 (THE. T 31700)
Jar H,

1. ) gt Bl

R

1. feRY & srme & forw
2. UASHITHINE & I Fevdh Hed & W

IO JMUAT Us AR, dIics JThlSce

IR
1.
2. OGO U9 S Us &, Aifdfde T@rasierd, TS HIuass

& Q:

1. SURM Y81 Ud HAQM B Pl UTH Fa 30 W W AT goR Afh BT SURe Y8+ Ud #aar &R+ 8
g IR BT TPaER T

2. HUH (e Ud geEH) R 2014 @ R 19(1) & SR HUA SARHIH, 2013 B URT 8 (HUHI AT, 1956
B qAqdl GRT 25) B Ted USiIPpd DU & FeI DI 99 T [l 3T ARh Pl AT ©IF R Wil & w7 H
fRh &R &7 IR T BR W9 I Fgh fhar I arer o afth Ul Bu BT We | ' |

3. U9MEI BF & fory Hiedl URey (B1H) B |1 A4l § qR) dRE  WR & 91 93P Yo 8l ¥ 48 ©T UBel HUAI
@ Uoligpd Fraferd § S a1 fear ST Ay |

[ 9



fraeret @t Raie

oI IRyR®,

MU QeThT BT 31 ATE 202201 FAG gY O a¥ & U i@l & oarodifard fderor ok S99 WR olaTuRIerdl &

RUIC @& A1 TeMa ShHCa Hex AGHS SHIUNCS (BU) & FadR R Fared IR Fsddl aiiid Ruie Iqd

A BY SMUR IRI=Ta &1 <& 2|

fU®el g9 2020—21 @I JoI1 H 31 A 20220 AW §U a¥ & foru ARifRd faxiig aRems 59 y&R &:

fa<ha faf¥rsearg
(XIS . #)
. 9. faavor 2021-22 2020-21
(@) |9ma:
1 AT ST 1402.13 1282.02
2 |3y 3 75.51 74.59
&l (@) 1477.64 1356.61
(@) |3
1 TIh—3T—gS Pl TWRIG 179.56 119.84
2 JaT gHIH g 1082.83 969.83
3 | IR O Y 9.64 8.68
4 I RIk 8.99 9.53
5 | qeuer SR gRwed =y 65.98 65.62
6 A Y 68.84 51.59
&dl (@) 1415.84 1225.09
arrq/(gﬁ%[) Y ‘E‘ (®)- (@) 61.80 131.52
6 PN Y 15.63 33.29
7 |99 & fou sma / (B179) 46.17 98.23

(1) <Erad @ @fRfET Tifis=)

e Hedl T $HH926.03.2022 3R 03.06.2022 BT AT U1 12197 3R 12241 o #§ I UHR &I gRIATSITIR
Aarell & U TAATSRIIGRaTS & Herer oY &l |NET =1 Bl 39 YPbR SJgAlad fbar o

IRATSHT Yo (IR %, H)

GdTelq o™ &) &%

50 P S b

50 BRIS I TP 3R 100 B TP

100 RIS I D

(2) <rwTEr

ST (@ H B ARATH, 1956 BT GRT 25) HU JARIA, 201381 IRT 8 B Tad Usiipd @ 3R GRT & Yl &

AR, DU AU FERT DT fHAT AT AR BT AT o] BR Febell |
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(3) omxfera fafer # sfaxor
HUAT A T 1 IR T SRfE MY a1 wr amRig MY, doiTa eRferd (f, ol Arem aRferd ifer anfe #
T STl & |

() SNE grT TRNSAITHINE @Y ST

frefy é@uﬂmﬁw@'$3ﬂaﬂwwﬁq\ww
$ JJUR SIdIE grR1 ¥fT

2020-21 we U

2019-20 QW

2018-19 e rIC

2017-18 SF—3TH

2016-17 S

2015-16 S

(5) fa<1 adf 2021—22 ¥ WY uRAreg / fafafernd

AT S Aedd (T e uRater)

ATE, 2010 H YH DI TS, TABYA URATSTT BT Seldg ] 3R FaAT U] A0y (TRARCEars) R STHT
5990 RIS . Bl AN ¥ 10 I BT @M & forg rgAIfed favam Tam o | THemEHdl 39 uRAHT &1 Hraf=s
ToiiT ® ST THITSHITTRTS WNie 3R JMse! JuId USH &) § Acq B I8! & | Ig U Sea i sl
AR s WG B & IR H © S Iod R7e 3R AFAI TRAMT DI Yhgqar U il &I HH Pl
arfe S9e a0 59 e B FEfor, g iR RMUAT BT [EH IR S G | A8 UHAEN B el dal
U AYD PR qTell WA & [Ty fofdh Bl =] IR, AT/ Ds AT T2 H dg RIS B FeART 6L,
el Fersl Jfe @ FraEr Hl Ue BT | UASRCIars 1 §9 URIISHT BI &1 99 I1i A, 2022 6 b
forg ser faam 7 1 A 99 2021—22 & SRM, TRISHITANE $I $9 URAGHT & o7 THASMECas | 500 BRIS
%. e, 31.03.2022T% UTGT Gl M 5,134 FRIS 9. & | BTAlfeh, TADHYA URATSTAT Pl GHS3MMSCIaTg o ST fa<iyg
IRey & d8d Ud 3R a9 & forg anfe 91 2023 & fore sgr fear 2

6) o af 2021229 IR, TAMSATHATS DT fAf=T Harerdl / fAwrT | Fraf~aes &g 1997 A5 IR wre
gs of |

(7) wengHivEsnE ¥ @R faunT
Sare A9 faurr (AdE))

YS! BTS2 g SfeToT SR, JMbTah!, AT SR oMfE H ST 31 SIARRISERT GT0TR H UHIS AT / THIS A T3S
AITCRR TAIDh e & SUTGIHRUT, AHIHROT AR HIed Bl G e &3 2 | Ida el aRare T & fog
facer H=rera &1 AT UK BRAT | AN Teled] &7 SIYT difd 39 THRsHl dufe | a9/ T 2 |

dex 3 Tadield Bk srer vAifafead (W)
STT UATICad &F H fARIvsiar iR Spedl Bl b IR I+1d [dRelYUTcHGEARE G @ eqdrel Bl
U YH HIAT AR IO A CF ST | I8 SUh SUSHR0I, Ueffesal & gga axa, Fe1 faewsan arel

AT BT O BRS AR Ffed NG Jel Bl 8 BT H AGS B T WRI TR WRGRI [IHRI Bl I[orad
STT TAIAICad WA & ST |

| 11



FrSs afdad iR srer dex fau=g fedie=

TAIMSHITAATE AT UTeh, GO AR Ya-eaR # il A Ferse Hamsil &l drif~ad ax 8T 8 | aade Jolrss
Jarll iR s & forg iftrs geret iR wwrdt weem gfed o & forg o g <enfaa foam o 2 |

(8) fa ad 20202131 W@l @ oo 9 faa adf 202122 F g7 I
8.1  uiemE Arera (Namsg) faazor
(s %. #)
A9l UHR faa ad 2021—22 fa<r 9 2020—21
ST fby e | diang @) G | W fHe g | disng @) @l
g @Y 4. <af3r Hasg @ 9. afdn
HUEN 4064 785.06 4055 738.42
fafae 3130 562.75 3009 253.85
Seqds 114 24.98 170 27.05
el 33T 29 3.29 92 11.63
RET JIET TR 106 1.52 138 1.45
JeETEe SqaTie 189 70.19 209 81.89
o (ShgT) 55 42.76
I afiftvy 254 75.81 347 115.06
RS 240 0.84 259 0.93
TR aifars 4 116.12
A Al 919 1153.58 952 849.64
faghareil & IRdTd IR 39 129.62
A AT 9045 2678.03 9329 2368.42
82. PRI QY (Ser3il) faaxor
(@S ©. H)
JdT UBR fa<r o 2021—22 fa<r o 2020—21
oY fey 7 | Syt 1 | 9 fHy Y | Ssogs B
Sl DI W, | HA ART | SYI B 4. | G Ay
S 6679 851.76 6535 758.13
Ay 69 1478 68 43.75
Jcdd 185 27.05 280 34.30
THUA 76 107.12 158 505.12
I — 38 3.46 122 1431
BT SR 108 1.40 139 2.52
T 1505 94.75 1145 10132
JeRTSe SgeTTie 241 177.65 217 97.21
Tl SR Siv o 230 145.49 502 207.27
&< 4T 9131 1423.46 9166 1763.93




83. Ul g3 s URIAIGHRI $T Ws—arR faaxor

i 01.04.2021 ¥ | 01.04.2020 &
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

0 | gramR & a=qu 1 1
i) | e 666 678
(i) | Sqarge / HitedeR Sacuic 122 142
W) | g 8 28
V) | =g aRATSHTT (BTEdaR, |TedaR, HHar e e fBer o) 786 798
W) | gy gAY (THTHTH / dous / S—e 31fe) 375 406

- 1958 2053

8.4. fafagrg

wify w18 fafaqg
0 | el fMfaaren & e 20 21
i) | <ifye Pl @ der - 1

- 20 22

8.5. UWIIY /wwsid
fAf= fORTT / FiTe1l & A1 UHRI¥! §R UN 378 f$hy Y 73 49

(9) vrHdEd

WRA & RTo03 (a1 03.03.1998H FIRIT LA & AegH A WRHR gRI JJANSd STad HbBIgel & AR,
TSNS HITHATS HoTdel TASSH! ¥ S9dh UGl & |G A1 SRR gofl ufifgih & omerr R anf |

31 {9 20220 UANSHIGHIS H YRS & HHATRAT B ol AT 28907 |

(10) wH=TRAT BT faazor
FHUAT BT BIS W HHAR YA (FagHT Hiftd B FRIRE 3k aiiksifie) M, 2014 & 799 5(2) & dsd e
TRA AT | 31 aTRsifie urd =81 - =T o7 |

(11) ®raRe amiie e

TSl SHHTERT Aex AfGRIST SHIURTS (TN HITHIE)THERT 8 (qd & eRT 25 BU-MBUH & | TN HITHansg
BT IeeT ARAET Alege™ R TH-ild BT FTaT <1 3R AUH o, AR HIS 2, IT 3T M Pl I A
DI AT &1 B oIy AN, AT © 3R U U FSl DI AT BT A S Dl 718 & |

IS 71 26 faHaR, 2016 BT T3 U 991 dod H HIUWAR AT &1 e fhar o, Rraewr dev A= f&ar
2

HU AATTIH, 20138 AR TASTEHTHINE §RT B T arelt TR & IR # gam arell HgwamR
T IR B=AT 3R A1 DI ST SAT BT,

*  PUAl R B I drell TR W @E @1 S arell IRT d GHIET BRAT IR SHD! TR BT,
°*  HHAI—HY WR BUHl Bl HAIUF’R HAIfT DI el BT,

| 13



e PIS W I AW O HITHIR WA Feered #ed §RT gAled By I & d1% a1 Fowsd dsd
gRT R Y o1 & are Ifed w9s), W9dg 999 W |

TS HIUERS & U=l Afd JudeR AfRfd @ Ifa & w0 § ard o |

AR AT & U =1 |91 (BRA) $HDI Kol &9dT DI Yabg fasls 81T (IW Us faere d Mfed fedl 4
3fer oI gurifara A STQem) A1 |1 Hew, St N 31fd )

IS 9 26 TAER 2021 BT AT T 12041 d5d H HIVHIMR AT &1 Yviod fowar o o fFe=ferRead
GESID

IS 71 28 SIANI 2020 Pl AT AT 11241 966 H HIGHR FART BT Gie far o, forad FeaferRea
GESIDE

H.3. |9 AR Ug g M
1. Sf. I fs7, uw, yASenEcars e
2 N Grilel BAR, deMTh—ol], TS NESS
3. o MEUTH WA, IS h—sil, TS RS
4. AT et AsT, e e—si, TS REES]

PUAT ATIH, 2013 Bl GRT 135 & FEUMI 3R FY WLl & JFAR, oA Ar] 8l, a7 a9 2021—22% forQ
TARATSHITHINE T YRR Tfafafdrlf o @ &1 o= arelt i, - Ry U AR & 3gER, 1.12 a-1s %, o

(U FRIe H)
fo ad R qd Yg ¥ (@RS ©. H) fid 3 auf # sftwa | did 3 auf # ftwa
Y& aH (PRIs | YF A BT 2% (PIS
. H) 5. H)
2018-19 (97.86) 55.56 1.12
2019-20 132.99
2020-21 131.53

PUT F HTHIR R T & forv oy a9 2021—22 § 1.12 BRI 5. BT UGN AT AT| 26.03.2022 B 9w Hedl
®I g5 12191 o ¥ AU MY G & AR, TAMEAVAAS - U Ml §ab W1 Wl AR HUAT =, 2013 &
Ted MuiRd 1.12 TRIS B, BT R STH AT B, §9 M BT 29.04.2022 BT GIUTH HIT Bs H Sl AT AT |

(12) ®RURT a4

HRUNC T U e ®U § Falfeld qaqrd Uihar g 91 ¥l W16 & §is 3R Ui & 9gM daTdl Jedl & ufd
aftag & | I8 e @mEaaide Mo - iR 9ol & i g UiiagdT & A1 i Bl At $-- A GHfked
BIAT ® | TIMSHITHINS ¥, U8 3MMaehSD 2 fd AN BU & Al b1 Yeer et iR uResft 81| a8 s9R Rauref
&7 fawar gRIe $= 3IR S 1Y @ & fory weaqof |

fa ad 2021—22 ¥ g 9IS @ do@l JR I doD B &

&0 fa<frr ad 202021 fei® EDIE
1. | 11&di 9IS d5& 28-06-2021 | qifSAr ®=pd & AT A
2. | 119diaS Y58 29-07-2021 | difsar ®f=pd & weaw |
3. | 1209198 9@ 26-11-2021 | difsar Bisba @& A9 A

14|



4. 1213} 9IS 98H 26-03-2022 | NifSAT H=pA & HETH A

5. | 26diaf¥@ oM do@ 30-11-2021 | =i @eT . 4009, ANAT T, Folagiia! AR Fa-T drenfira
HTeT, Soldei=ad fdbde, 6, AIoNel i, el TS, 3
faeei—110003

6. | JTATIRYT 3 dSH 25-01-2022 | @RI PeT . 4009, AIAT T, Soldgii~d! AR Fal

WeENfRTd] H2mery, soideifad fAddH, 6, HToiel Bhireiad,
e Jrs, T3 faeeii—110003

(13) <@ e afafa

HU B, QU WA dTell TGN rsae fIfice du-l M & A Hu=il AMIFR—H, 2013 & €RT 177 & dgd, o™
PUHT (IS B 9B AR D MABR) A, 2014 & 9 6 & AT UG ST, e Afdfa 1fdd e a1
Araegdar el ol | BTeifds, 26 fWaR, 20161 Mozl Hedd o AU 99d] o H YR UeM3il BT &9 H & §Y,
U fa=i iR SlETURIel A1l & |HIET B U g8 gHkad w1 & oy b gaenswigdsns - FeiRd o=l
|t siv fafeat &1 utea fhar 8 oramalen Gfafay o1 o7 fhar o | THemsdivasns & hudl Gfd oRaTae
Ifefy & g & 99 § B T |

orgT gverr afafa § fAEfaRad Iew &

%Y. | 9 9™ e
1 Y rorer g, SIU TS UhU, UHSSIECIdTS 3rege
2 $N QA & ARATE, J9HS Sl iR g T9<9ad, THTEcIdrs SER
3 AT AT g, IS S IR WHE AT, UHSSSCldTs RESS
4 3N G HAR, SISToll, TS qe
5 gt area! s, SN, THaSel kA
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e @ wu H s fdar
UG A, G MAT HIUHAT AR I PO e da A Aar-ge gy AR 31—12—2021 Bl #A
IR FAR ARArE Feed & w0 4 g by v 9,
TG AN, G I IRIST FRed g I WAI-g g8 3R 25,/01,/2022 Bl 57 AT HGAR A-AS Pl
e & ug W g fhar T o |
13, PUAT AR, 2013 & WEEH & JJAR ol WieTh B FYRh | H9d Uarel U Al (HIaR0604), acS

JABHIICC, DI RA & HFH R AeTerdT WieTdh §RT HUAT MATIH, 2013 BT URT 139 & q8d HUAI B IS
ST Wieldhl & WU H 31 ATE 2022 B ol FRgeh fHar Tm o |

14, IfAfFRM & R g9uEl & 980 o WRaR, T a3 Mewe, IVNRER, <A-Tad a1 T =T ATerdHRon
A By AR ol Bl eI el off;

15. DUl IMAFTIH, 2013 & WU & ATAR HUN 7 T 9§ 2021—22 & IR THRIRRT BT TSR / FdHI$Hd /
QYT e b o |

16. U1 o FHERE fad 9§ & IRME e Fevel, Fel, Arduife foxT AR, 9l @R oy W SYR T8l foram
5

17. U 7 AT B URT 186 B WAL B ded 3 Tl 3T HlANe Al Ir ARpAT BT BIs K0T AT 9T
1 RS & < ® A7 wforfert ueT & @ g

18.  ®uAl 9 aHemiE o 9§ & SRM 25 SFa), 2022 & fORY Hhed BT IR IRD TS Hed B [T H
aRac @ oy TAIRITeE @ orfees & 98dl faam g;

W A8 feoelt
fare: 03.11.2022 YA 7Y FAR U SN @ forg
U AfeE
JRIATSYA: F009528D001469899 80/ —
Y FAR ST
(FITEY)
Aran. 4. 7057

HSwIdl 9. F-9528
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A SHIRcEA A2 A= sdRuRfes (fees:i)

o af 2021—22 @ fog ARl A RUE &1 IRRe, THAIEATHSTE & WAl W) 3[R AT U
I, AICS APy 4 U a7 v 2021—22 & oy w@ds @mgst & Rl # feufdry & Sw

oEr gier fewoft

THIMSATHINS T SR

Y I D AR

1. AR <ASIRAT (A1 18), AUR U (A1 9), UTEHI
| ura MR (FEIar e uRdASHR Wi a) (\Ie
20), AT ST <4 (A1 17) AR yfiaaisii oI 31
(e 8 3IR 14) ¥ HRIT H© Y AR 99 & 3id H Yfe

31.03.20221 ! WA T Al BI AT AR BT GRehRor
U SRy MU E, aE ve Frfd orl & e o
fumt /et / fasharetl anfe & SN fdy S € «ifds
qgT & TIvF wfafhar ara B 2 iR veenEHiigweTs S|

AR /IT FHRIGE & AN B | YU SHDT FHIE
B DI ufshar ¥ 8 3R SHHT faur § 6w, afe
HTE &, AEdYUl & BN | 39 UBR @ gfe U/
oI B8 3R /a7 gRUM FHR™ISH ®  IRUTERGawY
M /Y IR /AT FURT / <IAd IR JH1d acH= H
¥ & ofd # gHfea T8 o Faar 2

R eI H PHINATg BT © | BT, A H I99 g ura
B D YN 5D 1 3R IOl fhT SIuT |

2fxig fAa=or & Aie ¥, 20 @& e W eaH
STET ATEDT ¥ 1,92,452.00 TRI %. BT AT U< gaTT |
UH—TUHh T I FHET I gar dar fb 9§ & i #
B3 UTEd U I N9 W 3 98 9 i 99 & 96rm
o | AfBIer: AdSiie &5 & Supdl (fvwy) iR
TRT WROR b HATTAT A U 39 AHAT Bl ST gRT
fafer=r doi & Tmafr S § =Tt iR uRudddr Uhisd
#1 faf= <= ) 9w fear T 2

S T Bl & H W gY b uEe ¥ our W
A B ART IuYgh & Mg AR WEfd S H S
fyaer wx A a7 B, vee @ W e fm @
FHIEAT B AR T SUARHT & AT Ee B Y

TAASAITss & fafr=  WRer  faunT /et /
JIISIh 85 & SYAT 3T T BRI 7 WIS MY Ao
21 9 aeul & Reomw ffaffEl & | A @ 491G,
TAATERATHSTE e faaRor 1 sifed e TR @var §
3R Hdfd STIRTHAl &1 AR g & Raems afyr &
YT &R @ foy otar 2 A1 S99 AR Y B arg=it
% foy S99 O §@ @R &1 gfaa w1 @I Ao ©
Safh {8 SUARTEHAT d& faaRer yeM axd €, & "al §
J U 8T B & SR 39 bR, 3refia I THSmSRAuHas
P UNT & T

JuTfy, orEalen e & SR, UHITEAITHITE T
AT BT FHIET B b foTv TIfhdT & MR IR T

el SR ot & SR IR SUYYRHT Pl dTud he-

BT IR STIRTHASN BT AR T Teg—T—oleg aTd™d

PY AT 2 | U TP IRHE & FaaT H &1,
arFdent SR faaRoi & Sueter 7 B @1 Rerfay #,
39 UPR & fIaR0T SUSTET BRIT O & YRUTHREGHY
HURT / SAIRAT 3R /AT I /& R gaadi 07 H
Tefid AT BT THT U9Td O © TIdT adH = | udr
TET SHTRIT ST ghdT 2 |

BT | TS HITTRTs dfosy o v ¥ &1 ofe fuem
& U SUITRdiRll & A1 M 9¢+ & v s fafdre &
RMOT B ) AT fIaR Hm |
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3. HE@yul of@r AT (Gu=r Are 2(vii) iRATE 2 (X))
@ e # I 990 G qaiell @ Al R o
BT Tl B A <ol fbar &7 &7 R, Al 3 T
P BARYT & FHI UR Tl fhaT ST =fay a1 fHaran
@ TS A T I W, 3 AORE BIN A, HU
(TR o /) | 2015 gRT iR uTEdt |
3TEY & IORA’ U= TUHA 115 T AT 718l fowar 2 |
Aofead afafrm & | 47 & d8d 9% & A—
[T B B RUE B T M /T MR FURT/
SARIRAT W) AT & R 8F B30feAT & WIR AT
9 g9 ® BRI $HBT YT A9 H 9dT o ARy
T8 7|

TATEHITHE AT /T & SR, ¥E axg d RNa &
foTQ AT 9 WA 37U TSN DY qof T & 2| fad
Y 2021—22% fory foxig o/ IR o)A @ SR $HUAl o
M) AIRAR SI@T AFdl & |1 JTaerr=l 3R Tasaaharail
®1 faffad sgurerd fbar & iR g8 IoRa Wipld @
ARV & AR T |

4. 39, TP, U YAP 99 & 3T & 91 fAparet d
U ATl & Hael § efTet fod ¥ § oy 3iR Hefdrd
AT B oo X & A, uAS a9 B Id H 39 IIRfa
fou 3971 Betife a¥ & SR B 4 9 B T B
I U Al @ folU 9957.54 ARG %, &1 @ fofy
3R 9439.13 A 3. {41 It arel IS Bg Ue™ &R
P 2 <@1 R(fa faavor & A 58 &1 <) |
gdifh Ul 1 HUAI (ARAI T J19h) 99, 2015
# oRqad’ TR MR oGl A 8 B WUl Bl
3rguTed el far g,

S 92 o Afd & o M R fisa af &
foxirr faavont & qdeamfiqs were @ sravgdar g ¢ |
TSR O 99 2020—21 & Hag ¥ fUoel av & anids!
BT Al 99 & 3 T WK el gU fagvar =TT B Hae
H g 3R HdfRIT oM Bl T5 B b Faw ¥ fora
ST ifey or | Rué @7 g My WR BT YHd /
YRAR oIET AP 8 & e H 39 PR & AT &
IRUTARG®Y BT BT I 3R IREuRME / < 8,
T acH = # uar F&l e ST Adhar # |

o af & o gl & AR, THeSHtasE &
e Hedl ¥ 29.07.2021 DI AT 39T 11941 JSH
H 'gd A HTWR UH il A R AR fHar ok S
IR fdaT| 31.03.2022 BT FATG U 99 @& fo<1 fqarv
T # UAIEHTHeTE 7 degaR VR §@ @ ¥ <R w@rer
g8l & e o) fby 8| @re fa<d ad 2021—22 & SR
fag af 2021—22 W HERIT AT 99.58 TRIS %, & & FOraH
94.39FRIS 5. BT M BT f9=7 Il arel Io@ & w9 H
fegrar T g, fa< fdaxor 6. 58 |

fa<ig Ruifdw uwr safRe faa fFaFonm W Iivg faar

B I T8 BN 3R WRIGRY & AR AR TR
3197e1,2022P] FHG 8¢ Y @ forg fa<iy fderon wR
IO @I I | dex W9 & e /gfe ¥
T Rved & deag # Ay XY AR A § H®ife

s IRV GITdd S W ghrIT Y AT BT

31.03.2022%1 F HefAT @rar Hal & forw 2 ¥ @ gfte
73 ORI f6U U E, g8 ue frafad ufear € R v =
faurt /et / faspdrett snfe &1 Sy fobw oy € | S
qgT & TIvg Al I B 2 iR veenEHigwes S|
W ALIH HRATS BT © | BTl Aas § I gfte ura

Terd fdaRoT 81 Fahdl 2| (BIR Wdd olaruied] ol
[ faf @ RUE & Iy fgR 2g IR & dgd
R aade efiaRe Rl & AeRh 99
BT MITIHT B |

B D YN 30D d18 3R O fhy SIe |
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=T HIHA

®) PUAT DI FURT, FIF 3R USRIV DI TG AT

99 & IRM GURT, GIF AR SUSROT FAMM TG acH
afiaRe fr=or gomell w1 |YRh SFRM T ® | ETelif®

A T WR FRIF0N BT IRT PR ASIT B Dl
3D & Siel A1 FRHIT avgell §RT HIfdd WU
A qAMIT S fafkne ugar <. & Aegd A e
qfie Reopfe & drer 49 fvar wrar 2|

PIIS—1978MRI & HRU, FaOd Hal BT G-l HI |
TATTY STUeTTghd eI R8T & | §91 91 IIfafaferi &1 fhR 4 g%
fpar T B iR fee wfowy & Julrnl & o ugame wwn
@ Iferd AFRE & A QR AT S |

Betifh, FuRT o7 faaror fHaiRa RRext # war 1 =71 ? 1
T & TS A af & 3fd H TSNS qEer iR
D! SHISAl § ISP 3 Wiy AR grr ot Sk
BT Nfdd AAUT TP a¥ fhar \dr 81 31.03.2022 6T
THRMSHIVHRNS AT 3R @ gHISAl, I & A
R gRuRmEl &1 VT 8 Hifae e WY fasar T e

) BIlfh, HUFT 015l 20173 SIRUT FHIS I
3R 3MUFT doi &I T dg™  Hafrd g i
BT BT TIRH B AR GAHE FRF0 & MR W
T S @] STORd ®, S U RIeH IaTaNier gt
=g fhT o B 2, 988 Wad ol g |

TSRS 7 W@l 3R 31 wefd &= & forw o1,
07.2017 ¥ SIIRUT AHCTIR &I QI @8 ¥ JuARr foram
2| TSRS Widf @ S & SR I8 9 AT b
S JeJUR FAUH &I IS 8, YIS HIgHss
T S Wi arger RaaiRe afdvist vagadt | e
FRYY RIeH Bl FATIT BRIAT & | JATATSS AGTIRIET PR
06.07.2022 BT &1 oAl RUlE § Hu=l 7 Ul ' TelldbIH
ARG MaegadarRsll & IJAR A= Feal 94 9® 7 |
D 3T, NG 391U TelIdhIE AfeddR iR Heferd
TSI SHREFAR P AEIRIET Uh 99 H HHA—0—PHH TH dR
PSS A7 B AT gBR B UE / dgex R |
Pl HEaqol STUUSTA R | A1 B, ITANTHAT & ARhId
B BT AR GRAT B TLRH YHRE 3R FHATONRROT
BT SUIRT B UABIAH DT AdIdH G0 § Use fhar
ST ATRU” | THIMSHITEas 59 R faaR &=+ &1 ufshar #
2 3R 59 9Mal ¥ IR BRars B |

I T3 faeet

A3 shidfead dex afdag s @
fevre ded @ forv JiR SS90 ave 4

80,/ —
e
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ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

(Ut sifgferaar 2013 % grer 8 & dad HTed TTPHIE PI IUHH)
HIMST: Y74899819c11995TTHITI072045

dufrar
IR—drepifersd GuRTAm
JURT, FIF AR STBRV]

FuRl & IUANT BT ARTHR
3 3P Ui

ot aR<ufr:

=g fo<i |uimar
ARAMT PR AURHT (JE)

IR TR—dTchIferd AU
ERLIEE D)
o< ot

() AR IIY
(

@) Tha AR ThG FTHDE]

31.03.2022 99 e

() SIRRH (@)’ B AT 95 T

(@) s o uReufrar
A HR UREURET (FE)
I qHE gREuRIT

el qulkam
sfaad) SR qaag
sfaadh
gt SR o
I gfaacy

dic 9.

10
11
12
13
14

15
16

T

31 |Td 2022 31 |14 2021

dd db

2,336.88 2,377.57
16,035.80 17,227.19
6,275.10 8,682.03
1,077.32 642.98
3,578.62 3,167.11
8,544.57 2,516.68
3442917 26,3560.57
93,139.05 75,247.95
1,14,759.60 1,04,355.89
2,.832.51 3,678.34
17,165.29 13,830.45
32,541.67 28,149.64
3,32,715.57 2,86,036.40
200.00 200.00
73,986.10 69,368.66
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ERNIN
g gdwH IIag
[ESIRECRRIN
() et <Tar
(@) o= fo<ig <ramg
ERRINIEORIY
ol <gamg:
() e <Tar
(@) @R <
GeH IeAl AR TG ITHT BT Bl IHIAT A
ges SeMl IR Y ST B IAET IR Bl GbIAT A0
() e fa<irg <A
I qIH SIS
BIECIE]
@l gfdact 3R <Fa
HEqYUT oIl Ierl
et fewfortt (1—61) foxfa faavon &1 aif 9T ® 1

a9 fafy #1 A RUIE & 3rgaR

YA TS TRl
IS TTEThR
BT GoIThRUT AT 00240591
80,/ — 80,/ —
afdfer I[wr IR I Rig 9
RIEEN ey fAeerd
Tl I, 430967 ST 09512006
80,/ —
Liba RS
HU gfg
THITH: 31700
X ;T3 ol
fedi® : 28.07.2022

dic 4. 31 °Wrd 2022 31 "I 2021

ddh db
34 14,623.62 15,741.75
17 59.46 39.46
34 321974 231917
18
849168 266891
35,590.04 27.898.71
19 126116 1,574.46
20 19520926  1.66,150.76
21 7452 7452
3,32,715.57  2,86,036.40
2
WA sPHifeqd dex afdfRe s @
e ded @ foy 3R S9a TRe |
20/~
€. I FAR
3ege

SIMST: 02677079

70,/ —
e UTd
THU /AT
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A, )

ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

(Ut sifgferaar 2013 % grer 8 & dad HTed TTPHIE PI IUHH)

HMSTA: 7489981019950 AUIT072045
31 914 2022 S AW Y 98 & ¢ 31 ¢a g d@n
TarEr §

faaor dic 4. 31 91d 2022 31 9T 2021
P WATK T DI WATK B3I

Vi

ay ay

1)

AT T 22 1,40,213.47 1,28,202.26
3 3Ty 23 7,551.07 7,459.87
et e (1+11) 1,47,764.54 1,35,662.13
€Y

TIh—39—8 Pl TN 24 17,956.39 11,983.57
AT eIl Ig 1,08,283.71 96,983.33
HHAR] o Y 25 964.22 867.72
o9 ovg 26 899.26 953.23
ASUET 3R T yReed = 27 6,597.29 6,561.78
I Y 28 6,883.76 5,160.44
@t @ (V) 1,41,584.63 1,22,510.08
R gd (I-1V) sma/ (g1) 6,179.91 13,152.06
B Y 1,562.48 3,529.11
(1) acHE &R 1,966.91 3,504.78
(2) eI o (411.51) 114235
(3) fuwer auf & forw &= AN / (G927 QT § STef) 7.07 (1,318.02)
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3T orEr

. faaor dHic 9. 31 91 2022 31 9T 2021

il P AT T DI GHTGT g3
ay ay

VIl e wrer & o ¥ g ame @) (V-VI) 4,617.43 9,822.95

VIl g1 amas e

X saf & forg ot amus o (3 / (B1) &R a¥ & forg 4,617.43 9,822.95
3 AYS AT WAfea)

X U 3faadt IRR e @Y R AlBie T 100 B):

(1) R (2. ) 29 2,308.72 4911.47
(2) SISTICs (3. ¥) 29 2,308.72 491147
AEYUl i@ Al 2
e fewmforn (1—61) fa<ia dworAl &1 f= ofT B |
wH fafdr B gu) RAE & R AN SHRifeTd Jex AfdfieT 56 @
AT TS TR e ded @ fog ok S99 e 9§
RECURCECICAR
BT TOIThNOT G 00240591
80/ — 80,/ — g0,/ —
ATEER y§er fevrs Jreger
ST 9. 430967 SIRMSU: 09512006 SIATSTA: 02677079
B0,/ — g0,/ —
= o uTel
HU R THY /JY
THITH: 31700
W : A8 feoel
fadi : 28.07.2022
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ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

(Ut 3ifEfergar 2013 & grer 8 & dgd ATed EThIE BT IUHA)

HMSTA: 7489981019950 AUIT072045
31 9T 2022 &I G gY 99 @ fog sfaadt 9 aRads &1 faawor

$. ¥, AfE R gaar sfaad IR 3 sfaad R gsft 100 /— <. @@

3 orEr |
faazor feogofy o 3
31 919 2020 TP 15 200.00
99 & SR gRad+ -
31 914 2021 TP 15 200.00
99 & SRE yRad+
31 7T 2022 dH 15 200.00
. I faadl (feuvlt 16 )
3 o §
faavor aRféa At &k I G
rferay gaenRa ma sfaad)
31 ATd 2020 d®H 59,014.02 59,014.02
LCEEEEEICHCRERD) 531.69 531.69
q¥ @& fag sty (@) 9,822.95 9,822.95
31 A/ 2021 dH 69,368.66 69,368.66
a¥ @ fog sifereiy / (@) 4,617.43 4,617.43
9y & oIy o ARy 4,617.43 4,617.43
31 914 2022 AP 73,986.10 73,986.10
aH Ry & A Rl & SaR A SHRifead Jex AafdReT 9 @
P IAYATA TS HIGT fice® Asd @ fog ok ST ® |
NECIRCECIGARN
HU! UONDRUT T 00240591
80/ — g0,/ — 80,/ —
affepr T e Tt Ris ¥ <. worE TR
NIEEN EECRBENEY aree
AT . 430967 SIRMSTH: 09512006 SITSTA: 02677079
80,/ — 80,/ —
= 9= g U
EERISIEE] Ty /AT
THITH: 31700

RZIG ?I—s'z‘ oo
fadi® : 28.07.2022
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Aeelet SBiAteaR e AfafH= g

(Pudt sifgferaar 2013 &t grer 8 & dad ITed TTPHIE PI IUDH)

HAMSTA: 74899810 c1995TAUIU072045
31 919 2022 $I AT Y 99 & U 9&<) yars &1 faavor

T o #

faazor 31 W1 2022 &1 31 9/ 2021 &)
AT g3AT qY qATE g3AT qY

ot Tfafafeal & Ao yare

PR AR AATIRYT IX31 F gd =N / (8me) 6,179.91
@ foIg FHRIG:

AT 3R FROMRAE 2™ 6,597.30
QURT, WA 3R USRI BT I R A/ (B11) 0.18)
[ESEGIKR] 899.26
BASECIR] (5,747.59)
AR & Al H WIqer / (aRfel A ) 82.90
BRI Yol ulRac= | Yd yRered 3fferRIy / (amer) 8,011.60
@ foIY FHRIG:

@R e § (gf) /0 (8.068.60)
ol 3R SR vd ot TRwRRET ¥ (gfy) /FH (14,429.92)
MR T} 3R =7 qaarsil 9 gfg / () 42,279.30
HATET ¥ I ADG 27,792.38
JTIDHR DT YT (1,966.91)
fUeel aul & fory MR (7.07)
aRare Tfafaferll & g e sidaig / (afeafs) (@) 25,818.40
fererer wrferfaferal & el gars

3rFd Hufrl &l @i (1,876.35)
THSIAR # faer (10,403.72)
3rael Uil ol fash! 0.24
IS IR 6,551.53
e wfafafat & gg Fad vars / (afzats) (@) (5,728.50)
fe<irg wfafafeal & Foar yars

A fbar T e (899.26)

13,683.75

6,561.79
0.28)
953.23
(7,001.70)
283.65
14,480.44

(7,373.05)
24715
24903.83
32,258.37
(3,504.78)
1,318.02
30,071.61

(6,198.19)
(28,218.41)
0.44
7,344.04
(27,072.12)

(953.23)
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UET AT & HALT BT YA

foxirr wrfafafet & g o<l sidais / (@fzaie) ()
P IR The FHGE H g I/ (@) (@)
Y Pl YHAT ¥ Tha R Aha THDE

99 & 3T H Adhg 3R Thg THDE
feogofy

(1,299.54) (1,406.73)
(2,198.80) (2,359.96)
17,891.10 639.53
75,247.95 74,608.42
93,139.05 75,247.95

1) Pal YdI8 & SURIh [JaR0T Bl yel TNid H WRAR @b AMb—7, e JdI8 [qarvl’ & ®Y § Id

fopar T 21

2) 99 @ fd H Thg MR o A9 F Il & urd g The MR AW AR WA B B | BT AR TH UBR &

faa=or

&g 3R The GIHH
dai ¥ 2y
SPEDICIG])

I 9% AN

T oraEr i
31 HTd 2022 31 91d 2021
dd db
5464259 29,226.99
0.50 0.50
38,495.96 46,020.46
93,139.05 75,247.95

3) IPhe YaTe & SURKH fdavor § HiogemR wfafaferal & forw 112.00 g <. (e 99 57.20 @RG %.) BT IAMAA

o Tam B | Ae . 55 7 |
|H fafr @1 gt Ruid & o/ gaR

P AT TS HaaT
ALY TITHR
HUA! UOIDHRUT HIT 00240591
80/ — g0,/ —
aftfepr e $ex T Rig ¥
RIEEN EECRREHED
AT . 430967 SIRTSTH: 09512006
80,/ —
| o
U= afera
THITS: 31700
A : A3 facel
faTi® : 28.07.2022

WA SPHifeqT Jex afdle 55 &
fevye ded @ forg ok S99 e ¥

70/ —
€. o AR
3egeT

SITST: 02677079

g0,/ —

e uTd
THY /JY
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ALrelc ShiAteaR e AfafH=t go

(Ut sifgferaar 2013 % grer 8 & dad HTed TTPHIE PI IUHH)

31 A9, 2022 &I G919 gQ a8 & fory fa<fia faaron &) #e<ayel d@iea fifaa sk fewforn

PDIRURT Il

TS SHAfCHT Hex Afded ShiuReS (T / SURIA) &1 TS89 29 3R, 1995 P HU-l AT, 1956 BI
URI-25 (37 BT JIfRATH, 2013 BT N7 8)d & LT XA A= b (THASHY), gelagii=ial gd o sdrenfie!
HATCR, MR WRBR & A a1 11 o7 | i ARSI A3/ [T /|6l Bl ol Mgc! FATE U&TH B
BT BRI BT 2 |

i fdarvll &1 Fewe ded & f3A1® 289dTg 2022 FhHed b ATAR SR B & folq e fbar 1m o |

2.

Hecqyel dwr fiferar

fa<ia faavor AR 1 &1 AR

FHU & g fAaRr BRe AWl & FAed (‘TITET) ERT AN T Aa (319 & 918 S WIRART ol
HIF®' BT S, & JTAR HUN ATIH,2013 BT GRT 133 T BT (AR kgl /D) 71949, 2015
@ T 3 3R PN (IRATT oIRGih H1Fd)(FeNfed) 94, 2016 & AT UGl ST, & d8d oI 3iR HRd #
AHRI WY § WG 3 okdidhd gl & IR IR f6ar 7 3 |

forirg fqeror UfieTiies @mTd JMER WR IR {6y 1Y €, |o faxii aREuRrl vd SfRId o uR 41d1 18 o<l
Bl Bredr (O el & Gdg § ofar HifT <) |

o= faaRor YRA H AMI wU 9 Wi olkdidd gl & AR dle], Ui 3MER WR IR by Y € |
i faavor wRela w0 & oga {6y 9 8, S Sl &1 st gat1 o & | faia fdavor ga |rel 3 & 18
[T IR BT IR Il BT MMTTIHATIAR dhedd o 3. 9 qulifded f&har a7 &, 519 d& fd =1 = &l
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Silae @ 3 I IT UST A B 3id Tb HeIeTd [haT Sl 2 | STANT & ANBR drell AURRT & JFATT SuIR)
SiTg= T fHaiRor S MR W fHar Sar 8 S Uiy 3R SUBRT & JMUR W {Har Siar 2 | s 3fofal, SUd
@ ARBR B HURT B THRI—qHY W JHAH 8], Al IS 8, A HH [HA7 Srar 8, 3R ygl <l & {8 Y3497
% fore R far rar 2|

UET SIAT DI URF H UET YIAMI & IoqH Hod WR AT ST & S {6 aRe [y R qerae 981 fban Siran 2, <
W (@ BRI A DI AT TSl &R —7.75%) DT ITINT IR B 4l ol 2 |

Ugl <FAT & AOA H WA ggr YraE § e wnfie &

—  fAR=a qram, R gagasrer fhave Tiew wfie |

—  IRIIAR UgT YIAE Sl U FAHIP I R R R IRar €, IR¥ H Ry fAfY & 1R gadic a1 &% &l
SUANT R AT ST 2;

— W?ﬂwzﬁﬂ?ﬁéﬂw;aﬁ?

— U$ WE Apcy & dgd URRAsS Uied ol wu-l & foru Af¥ad wu & fAf¥ed 8, te dafoud FdIexoT
@Sy # Ug BT YA, Jla HUH b [RIR [AdHey &1 AN &R & oy Mi¥ed w0 | FiRed § &k e ue
P Seg GG & U <€ O9 da f& dusl genfra wu 3 fAfded a8 @ Sieg 99 o7 & forv |

Ug B ST BT JATA TS UG Bl SUANT HReb TR AN IR AT ST © | §HDBT JTHT T HAT ST 2 Sid
el gaaie a1 <= ¥ qeara ¥ U7 BF arel ufIs & ug @ IaE § P 9qad Bl 2, AR FUN @ 1A H U
AR Hog TRET & qed <F B I IRING B AN ¥ I8l BT © AT Jfa B JUAT JeAIdbd qerd] & a1 I8
RIE, f[ORdR a1 FHIfd faded BT TN B |
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ST9 U2 BT <IAT DI 39 YHR e I AT ST 8 O SYART B ST Tl FURy &1 98+ <031 & foIv v a9+ qHie =
e Srar & a1 o A g1 | oS fhar Srer @ afe SuART @ S arell [ufky @ 98+ IR1 9 81 S ' I B
% forg |

BUHT SUINT & PR aTell YRR KT BT & Gl doisd e § Fufy, FIF 3R IUSHROT § e AURT B1 giRHTT
AR ‘3 < <’ # UgT <uansil & QX1 T8 el 7 |

AT—HITd Jg AR HF Jed & AURT & Ug

HUAT ¥ 12 HIE P A dTell 3Tl WURTAT & cU—bIfeldh TS & oI SYINT & ADBR BT WIRT R U B Idai
DI ARAT el o1 BT ORI fHar 21 U 37 Uel ¥ G Ue & YA Bl U Bl @ & SR Yeb e & &
YR R W & wY H qrgal <l 2 |

Th Jg Bl IRH Y R fad ug a1 te uRdred U2 & ©u # Fifed fHar Sdr 21 Ue uSr S U & Wi &
oy oifires |1 SIRET iR REBRI BT BIH] B& T LAFIART BT & S 0 Ug & w9 H g (HIT ST 2 |
o ugl &1 ug & UR9 @I Al § ug W <1 I8 HURT BT ST Hed A1 AR HH B, A1 YATH U YIAE D acH
eI WR Yo (AT ST 2 | UST Yl $I O 9aRE 3R it <aar # &9 & dr AT feam Sirem © drfe g
T AT W AT BT T ReR TR < &1 T | T 9aRT 1 o 3R =1 & favor # faw anrdt § Argar & ol g,
59 I b A1 sed ARGl & foy RER 7 81, 39 AMc § S8 KU1 o1 &I ANl IR SUAHl B A4 A &
AR Golid fHar SIrar 2 | MR fh1g &1 S99 fafy § @d & w9 # ugar ol & o9+ 9 @9 fey o 2

AT & SRR S R e U2 R < TS HURT BT 2T fhar Srar € | gTerife 3R Big Sfua Mfdadar w9 @
5 BUl Ug BT AT & 3T TP WA UK BR o, AT URAURT & AFATT ST Sl AR Ug Bl fae & A
M W HURT BT Jeuer fhar Sram 2

AT ST A BT UET A & AR IR A WAl & R R A IR B & [JaRor 3 =9 & w9 H Agan
& Sl 7

I8 FEiRa &A1 & T B awer Ugr 2 (A1 S99 WA 2) U @) YWeld H Favel & IR R IMUIRT B | Afe
AT BI gfdd U fARre JuiRky a1 [uRky & STANT R R & 3R gaver Uiy A1 FURY 6T SUANT B BT ALBR
A 8, a1 Javell UH UgT B, AT STH IS 8, Hel 8 I8 IfaR fhdl =yaven # we w9 9 fAfds 7 8

UET qTell FARRAT3 BT HodIh HpHUT BI I AT & STAR (AT AT & AT 13T 2016 DI WRARI @i AD
101 & IITIR AR T AFDI BT Ul R IRHRN fad A1 gR=Tedd ug & U H PR & [y AR oIl
AFEG H FHA B A & IR 9 [ W aaaE deai ok gRRIfAl & R wv |

(@) Mg &%

qAdH ITIABR

A ITIHR ATRTAT AR QAT BT BRI, BIRAT F G fbU S AT YA Bl S aredl fufere < o=
HIYT ST & | AR BT TOFT HRA & oI ISUIRT BT T aTell BR &Y AR PR BA 9 § ol 9Rd H Rafér fafr w®
e afa a1 arafas s 9 sl g 2|

T AT B & JTATaT AT U a¥all | HafSd aci &R I o a7 81 & qex(@T A1 3 TS 3 AT
sfdet H) wrar & I 2 | yeee Wag 99y R Red 7 ofl g Retfadl a1 qedie 99 Reffadl & Gy H dRa
g N o #x | e & i € SR STel SUgeh 81 98] UTel™ HRd ¢ |

JAAT ISR AR 3R TR BT ATHIC AT ST & T g8 AT B & ol B ©U I AN B A
fHR AR T
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RIfird #)

Ruifdy fafdr wr foxfa Ruifdr Sewai & forv aRyuRral sik Sudmetl @ &R SMERT 3R SH@! a8= IRl & I SRR
R R AT YT BT SUTANT B JRAAT B far Sram 2 |

IMRIRTT R <IAm Bl A B AT IR IR & forv Jr=ar urd 2 |

AR PR URAURTIT BT T Bl AT IJRATAT TR, IYTh BR il DI M o T MR BT WY 3RJh bR
BT & oI #1aaT OTa 8 | IR HR URAURTA ®1 $9 88 I A=Ial & Ol & b 98 d9d & b dx Ay
A SUS BRT 5T Raem® wekdl AT SRR 3R 3R MRYTh IR BT AR FUYh R BT BT SYANT b
ST HHT B |

IRAATT R aRFURTAT @7 sryofid IR &1 Fler gys R Ay iR &1 Sl 8 iR W11 d% &9 - T oIl @
& 319 Ig F9E 81 € b W A1 MR AR FURT & SUART &1 AT o7 & oy wafd aR Ay oM Suaed
BT | ARG AT U MRAFTT o) MRTAt &1 e RAfET ffdy R gaveaia far omar @ ofk 8% 39 88 a&
AT <1 ST 2 T I |aifad 81 11 © b Al § aR Ay M RN R [URT Bl axfell dT Ak < |

S Rerfodl # S8t U IRT # AfAIAT Smrex rfAfRE, 1961, & T8d B AR Pl THaR o, IRARY AR B
T # PIg MRARIT HR (FURT IT <IAT) AT TE 8 S B IGHTY AT & SR Iele il B |

IR IR & o § JIRARTT BR ST B 3IH1 A & d1g Soic 8 ofid & SS9 d¥ H Uga o & forad
IR 3R T~ B 2 |

BTeAifd, HI RAMT B IRFURTAT &1 JIar &I 39 8¢ dd Uf&fd axal & fb I8 Iafad wu 9 Hf¥ad &
T © o wfasy § i 9 I I Sude B8R, foge Rl YT ReafiTd o) Hufl &1 a_fell &1 91 Havdh! & |

AR PR URFURTAT 3R TATRIT BT BR &R0 IR AT ST & Sl SH Y H ARL B DI IHIE © o IRAURT BT
TEAT BT € I1 <3dl &1 FueM e &R QIR &R Sl ) & R W fhar oiar 7 i Rafés fafyr wr aiftfafia
I o ®U 9 A g €

A AT BN @ dT8R A=l U Hal W GEfRd JRIfRd d) Pl ot A1 B (A1 ar Si{IeE A1 sfdacl H) & qrex
A=A & ) 2 | I B Hel BT adlens H Wiy sfdad) § &idfifed oFes @ ey § argdar & o 2

AR B HURT 3R JRANT PR AT AHUC 8 IMQ BN WY H AN HRA AR ABR ad R AR D
Raets g HR IRFURRT ®I e BT & forg HIgjg 2 3R ARANT BR TP & BRI $DbIs AR TP 8 HREH
iR & GfT B |

Ta9 defeud B

PR BTl B AR YA [HIT TAT FATH dehledd B (TAUS) ST AT 3 JRIBR TAA & FHIIIGH & w0 H I
@ AMRP o™ <1 2, DI Y UREURT & BT H A1 AT & IS 59 918 & YT AGd & b DU A IMIPR B
PTAH AT | TEITAR THATET BT doid We § e aREURT & wU # AT <) Ol & 59 98 991 gl € o so9
I3 9IS & onfdfes o™ HUl BT arfEd & |

(o) IR—fa wufAr &1 st

FHU gAd RAfT Y R e axal 7 f w7 5wl aREURT & W19 81 9%+ &1 I8 9ad & | Il B dad
g1 a1 o9 5 aReufy & fog arfffes &1 S & smawaesar 8l 8, @ duw uR¥ufRy &1 a¥gelt A IR &7 1A
MM 2 | Yo UREURT &1 9l ARG IR Y GRHFURT AT Tha—IdIed Shisdl (HINi)) & I e | 3ffed il
2 o MueE & arTd &Ik IUANT H 9@ Jed $H BIaT 8 | a¥ell Irid 0¥ U6 JAfhiTa |uiy & forg fFeiiRa
D A 2 99 dF & IREURT THdl qaTg S T Bl © Sl I gRuRrAl A1 uR¥uRiEl & W W Bl g
TP WA Bl 2| o9 fedt aRufy a1 oy, @ a8 iR SHe! aell ara IR & &1f¥ie 81 ol € a1 |ufky @1
fINTST oI AIMT ST & iR S9! agelt A IR & forg forar Smam 2 |
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JUANT H q BT el R H AT JIS & Thal YaTg bl JAgPR BL % Pl SUAN BRe I Jod oI TR
ge 41 Ol § off 99 & 999 Heg 3R uReufr & forg fafre SiRedl & adae aoiR e &1 qerfar & | e
FI AN FeraR SFId o iR & # 8T & oI ofFed &l &9 § @] 9rdm 2| afe 3 e o e &
TSI el DI Sl Favell @ Al Y SUGh Jedidh AlSel &1 SUANT 6T ST © | 7 ORI BT & Jedidh, Ardl-Tdh
®U ¥ BREAR $HA alell U & o7 YR BT BEal T 1 IuaTe I oI Aobddl gRT Y B Il 2 |

|G BT BISHR IRAURHT & oy, gde RuifdT fafy w g8 MuiRa & & fou va qeaied fear S 2 6w
BIS Hard © b el | AT U JHAE ST 39 Hig[E A8 © AT HH B TS 2| AR VAT B Hhd W9 7,
BT HURT AT AoG, B Il ATT AR BT FTAE RN 2 | Usel ¥ AIAITG JHAM B BT Hael T Il
e ST € 519 fUsell JHar 81 & uged & 918 ¥ UR|URT &1 a_fell A1 IR &1 FERer &1 & foly SuanT
BI S dTell gRonS 3§ $Is URacd gor & | Rada Hiff g difs aREURy &1 989 s8] axfell I IR ¥ a1fdew
9 8l 3R 7 & g8 R A ¥ &, S FEiRa fbar war 81, gy & ge, Uod aul § Juiy & forg b gedar
B @1 Ugad el ol g ol | AT VAT BIS Hevd AIg[e 8 Al HUH FURT AT AISNY, BT qGell ARG AR BT A
ST 2 | UBel | AT UKl b Bl DI bddl a4l Seic QT SITaT 8 Sid URAURT B axgel] I RIR7 1 {FreriRor
PR B Y ISTINT BT S dTell gRonsi § $ig uRad= o 8 Hiifh o 39 e & IShAT Bl a4 IT 81 &
fyaxor # A= ) 1€ ® o9 9 & uREuRy @ va g IR W TE of ST Sorar 2, R A 3, SarA

& g edie # gfg & w9 F AFT o1 2 |

@ fa<ig sRaAl &1 JHuH / @RIE &4 iR dfeve &l & fag graem™

HIERYE KU & UTaeT $I i e 31 A & SR 10 auf ¥ a1 &1 @y & forg 100%, 5—10 91 & forg
50% 3R 3—5 8T & forw 25% WR fIaR H=d gC AT <1 T8 2 |

(1) enyfdeals &I s&rT AR & fag grem

Yfciepaiall @l gerar AR & oy T UTaer &l J1adl <F Sl & Sl gord 3l @l [l & Jgar 19 aul 3 ffee
T BT 2 |

() ufa sfead A= ema

TIRT ofa d@n 9 fawfd aea @ Il 7 | 9fd 3faad) IR SRS ™ &I 0T du+l & Sfaad! aRa! &
PR g ™ B faIiTd o gfaac! TRRE &1 MIRT iad dw=m | 9fd Sfdadl 2R &1 o 3 I & & fofg
AMET ST & IR A1 & SR {6y S Adh+ arel 3fdadt IR @) Wik sha dem ot Suwee Jifad gfdad) It
$ HUARY R I fFac! IR Iad H I o @1 Jar sfFadl TR & &fid IR Jad) R SR {6y 19
o, dI U<l B dTell 3 & folt Syfed FwIfad Sfaadl Rl &l SR fhar Sirdm 8 [sriegfed |Wifad sfdac!
IRRT BT A B YHAT @ wU H gRafia A1 Sirar € 919 a5 qrg @ fafdy § Ser SR & far S 2 1 wRga
B TE TG A & oy Trreyfed wvfad sfdadt It &1 wada wu 9 AuiRa fear Srar 2

fFers dsd g1 faxi fdarel & argAed | gl by v uRaddl |fzd fedl A1 IR a9 8fR 999 eRRIT &
SN B @ forg vRga w1 srafet & forg 3fadt IRRY &R Hwifa wu @ wReiRk sfaedt Rl @ W gderd
_Y A FHRISIT B S 2

&) umEEE AR ATHREHATY

& TG ] ARGl <1 Sl & o9 fohedl 9o &) fUsell ger & uRumRasy adae I 8T ® &R I8 vd
2 f afia &1 fuem @ forg dam= & aftate & smawadar grfl, Rrge ddy % va feawig A o i
AHdl 2 | ddl Ay & U= Bl S dadd il R Ifd SIRed AAmEiford Rt g% R 8 & S Fad! B |
JASBITH AT BT BT <1 DI AMATIRAT el © | IS doisd e Al iR graem=ii @ FHier &1 Sl 2 &R aaad
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TdET AFAMT DI AT B & oy AARISTT fhar STIam 2 | arcd® aidcal & dael 3 graend |l §91g S
JMITIHAT = | dnfi, Rarfdy @y & 8 &1 PIs = s i J8) o |

fUsell gemRll I I~ F9Ifad 1@l & Hag H AThRAD SIARI Bl Gl A1 Sirar & 3R f5e iR &
gt dae 4asy @1 gcRll & 8 AT 7 8 ¥ B8R S gU @8 A DU & AT H T 2|

(@) @< MR BB
o 2fie # g iR AcudIfcrd ST # dbi # Fhal 3R 81T 3§ Fdhal AR A9 7S AT IHY HH DI qT IRUGI
@ AT AP TS o1 WA & A o # uRade & T Agcasd Siad & e 2|

THE 3R The TG H 9% IMaRgue A € S HUN & Adhe U§ed &I U 3T~ 3T T |

21 We@yl d@ied vl Jeaisd SR gaE

FU @ foxi faron @ R & forg veed @1 Ao, Jedied iR SIA oM &) aegdar Bl g Sl faxig
fgeaRol &1 AR H 1o, &9, JURT R <garei o RUIC &1 78 A3 AR QT & G AR AHRAD <131 b
UhCIBRYT Pl T B & | AT AR AT Bl FRAR Jedaid far S € iR Jde & JgWa Ud 31 HRaI
TR SR B & e wiasy a1 aeell & e enfhet & o aRRefer # Sfaa am Sirar 21 39 qeaiat &R
A & IR ¥ AR & IRUTERERY U gRomH 81 Hebd & e forg widsg a1 saferdl # g aRkeafial
T AN &I g8+ I & o U Wifds AHR—ISIT &) AT gl § |

Ry wu 9, Hu 7 FEfRad &= @ gsE @1 8 Siel @edyel Avly, SIgAM SR gRUMY Srawad € | g &l |
A UJe & IR H AP TN 3R I A oar el @ S yurfad e 8, 9 aiid € sk =iy faarer
Hefer fewfordt § A1 € | gl § uRac @ wwrfad f2are e S g |

oty
FHU B AGT N BT AR B B ufthar H, w7 fF=faRaa foty fag € R faia favent § arar ura
IR TR HeT #EqUl Y¥TE sl o

AMHRAD Y

BT, SHER, Y TP Ugd 3IR 3 I F9d HUAl & RIe® I & Fag H JqAR & AR HH I FHRAD
SIATY IO B AHA 8 | SADI UBT A, FMHRABARN BT TR T BRT 514 T a1 1 rffdad wfasy
"ean gfed el a1 afed 89 # fava 8l | sTafEaaretl & iR iR FwIfad A131 & dbed H @MIfad wd |
Teagel fofat &1 T &R 9w & geRl & IR & IR # SIgAM! & SUANT Ml 2 |

HATH 3R A

Rafdar fafr w 9wy &R rgam aifAf¥adar & s uga didl & G o aRomd, R orTel fa a & fia”
aR¥FuREl MR Uame @1 g8 AIAT § A FHES BRA BT U Agdyul SiRgd €, S aftfa ® | |aafed faxia
[IaROT TRIR Ral Y IUT ATUGS] UR B 37U TROMAT IR JFAAI DI R IR | BTAiD, Hiolar yRRerfaa
IR vfoy & fAhg & IR H IR, IR GRad I7 HY-1 & 80T F 9188 I~ 819 dieil gRReIfal & T
Il [HAl 8 | 39 AR D URETT B W Agamel § aReed B § |

(®) A—fa<ha "ulmar a1 =1fy

S TS RARET [y R qouid ol & 5 a7 fodl Fuly & @R 89 & DI |obd 2 | Ak IS Fabd A[g 8,
a1 19 el aReufRy & forw arffes =1f S @1 smawassdr Bl €, a du aR|URT &1 agel g IR &7 1A
S B | Uh aREURY @ agell Ay ¥ uReuRy ar Aol & S eu 9 &fdw & R foem @ arta &R
SUANT # BT Hod B & | IE Uh ARGTT AUy & forg eiRa foar smar 8, o9 9@ & aReulRy sadl yarg dar
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TEI PR B Sl o URHURTN A1 WURY & el ¥ BB g ddb WdF Bl o | STl (Bl gRAURT A1 Ay, B
g8 RIRT IHD! aell A AR A Al 81 Sl 2, FURT Bl (ST ;AT AFT ST © 3R S agell A AR &
fore forar <iram 2 |

IWAN H & BT ATheA B ¥, AFANTT AT & Tbal Jd8 HI Jd—dX BC &R Pl SUAN IRDb D dqM
I WR gE 4 9 2 S U9 & 999 Hed SR yREuRT & forg fafiee SiRewi & aaae 9oiR 3fTdhers &I QeI
2| fFIUeH &1 drTa geraR SfHd Jed MeiRd &R #H, 81 @ qI9iR olFgad &l & d &7 Orar & | afe U fabdl
Al TG B USA TRl B ST Tl 8 Al b SUGRh oAb AiSel Bl IUANT fHAT ST 2 | 7 ORI Bl by
ASAIHl, AASIH ©Y H HRIAR B dTell HelId HUFl & (oY Igd WRI B dFdl AT 37 Iud I oI
Aol §RT g &I Sl § |

(@) fa<ia |t &1 Sfaa Jea wg

9 doid ¥fie # ol R aREURAT &R fa<iia <amell & Sfd qedl @1 Afhy aoRl  Igd Sl & AR R
B ATAT ST FHaT & Al I I Hed Bl SKIING Alsd Ald Jedid ddb-idhl HI SUIRT B AT STl © |
S HAisdll & $IYC I8l §a 8 Jdaih AT Rl ¥ oIy I €, oifdh T8l I8 |Wd 98l 2, g8l Sfud Jdl al
R #RA & oIy B 88 dd 0 o1 sraegedr el & | FoRil #§ dRetdr S, siee SiRew iR siiRerdr o
TYe R AR wifie 21 39 sRal & IR § gromsit § uRads faxf awEt & Rard fag v s qea @1 wfaa
IR FHT B |

() fa<ha sufr=y &1 =iy

foxfra wuferl @ forg e1f smaeme fSwiee & SIReaw ofiR orufard &1 &Xf & aR # eRomsll W= SmenRa &1 S 7
AT BT G AR DU & vl sfem, HisEl aoiR Refedl & de—ary e Raifdy s@fr & ofd 4 9w
@ JTAMl B TR W BN TOFT & oIy S9YC &1 9a9 S § 019 BT ITART Hell 2 |

JmeIfiTd R Huftra Wi SR W aF SRR &- SMRAdl &I AT & S |l © 98 9fas & & A
AT B [AGT & 3 R MERA 2 s fIvg smeerfia ax nRadl &1 SuanT fsar S waar 7 |

22 wA$ ¥ fHu v Afea i 9@ gardt 9 g

PRURS AFAl BT FAT ("TAAIG)AY AH IT ITH AD] H FET Pl AT BT © | VAT By AR T8l
2 ST 013 20219 ST BIH |

g H 3 T3 =wo

PUNC AT & AT ("UANIYY) AAI—HHT TR ORI Ul (IRAR of@l AF6) |l & d8d gaad dai | A
AFd AT [ B MG BT § | 23 A1 2022 P TAAIY 7 1 3T 2022 ¥ AF] BU (ARAT oGl A1)
et e, 2022 # e fsan, S 6 A9 R T

ARG €T AFd 103—HHUATHS BURET BT GaH

Heige e axd € 6 SIERresT ugfd & ar &k & RR & ®U H§ A1gdT & oy Iear urd &- & forg, arfsfa
P TS TSI AT GURT 3R TBUT BT T3 I BT AR GIRT BT &l fAf H IR ] TWThR G
SN WRATT ol AMdT (aRe wuREn) & ded faxig RAfET & forw sraerenets afa # Hufy iR <gami &t
IRUTTST BT YRT ST A1RY | A IRTTT IR @l A 103 HI MILIHATA H Ag@yel gRac T8l &d 8 | S
DI T8 IHE T2 ¢ fF FEE @1 39 Ry el ) 313 Agaqet uwE g |

ARG d@l I9& 16—3<6d SUIRT 4 gd a4
HH %0 W9 A Uh P18 Bl AURT B ANTd, FI5 AR IATRd IRl DI 99 U< IUBRYT RN H BT B
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J Apd & STdfh BUHT U 3BT START & folv HURT TIR &R &l § | $HD o1y, U Hfass= U fdshT oMy @ik
ST SR BT AT AT B H HIRIAT <9 |

PUAT Ig ST F8] Pl © b G &1 A fa<iy faarvr § STa! |uRy, W93 IR SUBRVIT 6 7T R Ble
U9Tg IS |

ARG "Wl AF$ 37— 5S4 AJ4ET—YP I8 DI YRT HIA DI AN

e fAfde o= 2 fF Ta gy & 1 &7 & ANTd ¥ g8 anTd e Bl 7 S WY oy 9 Hefd g 7
U e | Al AT ST AT AT IH AT BT YR B DI JIGeA AN 8 Febell © (SETeR0T el 3149, AFRf
BIY) IT 3T ATl BT IS ST WY ST BN QT B | Hd § | FOR R wU 9 Uh WA § iR
HU T8 IHIE 81 HXCll © [ FURE B IS faciig Faroll ) S8 "gaygel g9ma o7 |

ARAR €l 99$ 109 — ARG d@RHES (2021) # e gar

M T HIAT © b Th IHIE H D19 W B AMAA 8 ST T8 MMl dxA & v b i faxirg <1l &1 s
PRAT T AT 21, T8 AThT B & [ol¢ ARATI oGl S 109 BT 10 TRILTT IRIE0T AR HRAT © | DU DI IHIG
T8l & b Gees &1 S i f[AaRoll R $Ig Ag@ye! uHra g |

ARAR o€l I9$ 116 — ARG d@T 99 (2021) ¥ arffe gar

HEA UgT UIcdTEAl & Yay & Hay H Bl f A91fad 99 &1 81 & & oY U8aR §RT clloleles GuRi &I ufcrgfd
& =0T I BT <al @ Sl {6 99 Seid H Ugl UIcdrsdl &1 9uiF &1 & dRId & HRU I~ 8l Dl & | DUl DI
IFIE TE1 © & Aeed &1 I9a [0 f[JaRel W iy #gcaqul 991d e |
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3. WUy, FIAT 3R SUBRT

X @ A

faavor Ha | BeleR IR | dred LapIcE dYcH gl

RN SYBRIT
EIUG
1 38T 2020 1,985.85 1,599.67 7.02 4,335.20 6,995.16 | 14,922.90
HaelT 3.82 10.61 45.87 293.63 353.93
e - 5.43 5.43
31 919 2021 9 1,985.85 1,603.49 17.63 4,381.07 7,283.36 | 15,271.40
Haef 4.12 418.47 305.96 728.55
froer - 0.06 0.06
31 914 2022 1,985.85 1,607.61 17.63 4,799.54 7,589.26 | 15,999.89
1 3B 2020 TF 1,105.55 1531212 6.68 3,466.82 4,338.98 | 10,230.15
T & fIT qouE b 43.06 72.63 1.75 324.11 370.65 812.20
REaIRIGIE] - -
I fAgeE (= 2 <) - 1,856.74 |  1,856.74
GG - 5.26 5.26
31 91d 2021 9 1,148.61 1,384.75 8.43 3,790.93 6,561.11| 12,893.83
T & foy TUE Yoh 40.96 53.96 234 361.53 31039 769.18
31 9TE 2022 TP 1,189.57 1,438.71 10.77 4,152.46 6,871.50 | 13,663.01
g€ sifda g
31 914 2022 TF 796.28 168.90 6.86 647.08 717.76 |  2,336.88
31 9TE 2021 TP 837.24 218.74 9.20 590.14 72225| 237757

1. Hufy, G SR SUGRYT & GF B Yol UGG & THSIHR0T R Al H. 36 9 |

2. fo af 2017—18 & a7 T 2019—20 @ AT & IRM ‘BIYEY’ W 1856.74 ARG . S JIBTH Pl Telll AT
HURT 7 A FH PR o TAT AT| b Bl AfTH, 2013 BT FIGA || P d8d FEIRT RN & MR TR SRR

TR JRIETE B 0T Ifd T & &1 73 off, SAfely SR Ye / Jaod & IRUFRaHY a9 & IR Hig =i
7T TRl TST B | 39 g GARIG & Aedd 9§ fUgd fad a¥ 2020—21 & SR YRR/ YA fhaT T B |

T Ul @ @i faerg & f{avo, & 39 & 9/ ) 785 &

g 5. A
Joig e § WD AP RN | P T8 | @ T R | TN WG Ao aRe | R 59 | 1 @ 0 R 7 89 &1
RS g (| waflom | ke, feees | R de PR
AMgeq TR/ fFRws &1 | TRa ®
ReiER & O W/
frewe o1 wEm
AR g 9. 2 3R 3, B3l IR | S 2001 3R TS AITHAE & 14
T, 15 TR TR, 931.50 2003 R W faerg &1
feeeli— 110066 P TR & FHeT @1
AT | Ale— 43 W |
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4.  IRGURTAT & SUAIT BT ATHR

R araY |
faavor aReufRial & @l
SYAIT BT AfTHR
31 A/ 2020 TH 21,285.61 21,285.61
gfs 694.52 694.52
S IBEANIE NI 18.18 18.18
e 842.06 842.06
31 919 2021 T 21,119.89 21,119.89
EIE 1,081.98 1,081.98
BRI H Fer -
fae™ -
31 A/ 2022 T 22,201.87 22,201.87
FOTaREeN
31 A/ 2020 T 2,360.92 2,360.92
9y & forg FoaRee [od 2,373.84 2,373.84
fge™ 842.06 842.06
31 919 2021 T 3,892.70 3,892.70
99 & forg FoaRenes Yob 2,273.37 2,273.37
e -
31 A/ 2022 TH 6,166.07 6,166.07
IE 3 e
31 919 2022 TH 16,035.80 16,035.80
31 A/ 2021 TH 17,227.19 17,227.19
5. 3 Id wuRai
R arEr |
faawor AiFedAR KA
KINGE
1 3T 2020 AP 17,583.30 17,583.30
gfg 5,844.26 5,844.26
ae™ -
31 A/ 2021 TP 23,427.56 23,427.56
gfg 1,147.81 1,147.81
ae™ .
31 A/ 2022 TP 24,575.37 24,575.37
ERULIENISE]
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faavor AiFedA KA
1 3 2020 TF 13,226.53 13,226.53
Y & oI ORI Yoob 3,375.74 3,375.74
T FHRI (I 2 <) (1,856.74) (1,856.74)
31 919 2021 T 14,745.53 14,745.53
Y & oIy ORI Yoob 3,554.74 3,554.74
fae -
31 919 2022 T 18,300.27 18,300.27
I ST I

31 919 2022 & 6,275.10 6,275.10
31 919 2021 T 8,682.03 8,682.03

1. g 3P AUl & g3 ¥ FHCIaRul AT Yol Ufdggdr & forg Aie |, 36 < |

2. f& 9 2017—18 & A a9 2019—20 P @ & IRM “HRYESY” W 1856.74 AT %, & IS Pl Al H "3
I URT” WS W A R o AT AT | TH ATl T W 202021 & IR oI ARG & ARIH W YRR /
YA fbar war 81 e U ARH, 2013 B SGYA || P dgd FEIRT R B AER R YR W BN
DI TUET IRT RS A B TS N, ST BT YA/ JTHIT & URVMAERY a9 & IR His A 991d 81

Tl B |

6 — I fo<iy dufrai

R arEr §

faawor R—ada=
31 91d 2022 9 31 "rd 2021 %

qREAT ST
gRelr STHT 500.60 108.34
Aarafer s
12 A8 ¥ 31fd @ yRuaqar @afy & |rafe st 291.60 291.60
[rafy ST W I <o
CINGEIN 285.12 243.04
Bl 1,077.32 642.98

¥RE & Il Ao J1 & wY § Sbi § Jrafy o&r
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7. IRAFTT B
Y & oIy SMIaR I & Ugd °9ch

&, A IR FI @Id ¥ <ol Wl

R oy &
faazor 31 91 2022 AP 31 A1 2021 AP

O |3 A B ds

JAHT IMTIHR e 1,966.91 3,504.78

oo ¥ & TdHE TR B HdT H FHRITS 7.07 (1,318.02)

IJTRINT =)

T AANET @ IART iR IpHur I Hafd (411.51) 1,142.35

I AR I W F Gfud Amas A 1,562.47 3,329.11
(i) | 3T IS A (@IRASTE) TS

Y & IR ARNME H <ol qeqall I A Rafiia o

&l 1,562.47 3,329.11

@. 31 914 2021 3R 31 A1 2022 I AT Y a7 a9 & foIy ARA @1 R R TR 4 IR A 3AR

AGTHh T BT AeT:

X I #

faavor 31 A1 2022 9@ | 31 AT 2021 d&
RO AT | &R YA i AR 6,179.91 13,152.06
§g gRETET ¥ B gd I
AP § Yd M BT 0T 6,179.91 13,152.06
ARA B AGITD IR TR 25.17% UR(31 A 20210 25.17% ) 1,555.35 3,310.11
fUoel aul & acdH AP S Fag H FARISIT 7.07 (1,318.02)
PR Hh WRBNI AT
I IR 0.05
IMIRR &R ¥ gRIIT & BRI 1,337.02
3 yReufrai
IR Il & forg IR—FEK AT 2
25.28% DY HTEl SAPY <X W(31 ATE 2021: 25.31%) 1,562.47 3,329.11
I R Y Wi A G AIBR 1,562.47 3,329.11
g8 URETe & PRI IR
CXl 1,562.47 3,329.11

AP AT, 1961 B GRT 115BAA, St &RT H YRWINT Wrae=i /Il & AFAR A SR UR PR BT AT BRI D
fow pufrdl o1 ve fdehed FaT™ BRal & 3R Tag9R, Ul 7 St We H FEiRd &% & YR WR IR &g I8 PR ¥ 3R
AT ATl HTGeT bl AU b1 (oi foram & 3R 31 A 2022 & 97« gY a¥ & {7y a9l SReafiid r HufRy / <

&1 gy far 2|

| 55



Mg ox fRreforRad & Gefdd &
T orEr ®
faawor a9 e I 3R FT BAA
31 91 2022 | 31 urd 2021 | 31 "M 2022 | 31 A 2021
db db db do
IR T B By @R R 173.68 183.02 9.34 27286
<ifever ol ok amyfferdfelt @1 sl @ forg 2,553.06 2,387.43 (165.63) 1,000.43
PICEIE
o A ordipa =, T fae af # 29.43 11.50 (17.93) (11.50)
eprd
S 82245 585.16 (237.29) (119.44)
TR
it «x a]'q/(@;rrq) (411.51) 1,142.35
Jei ¥ e A 39 ysR fewdr &: T ey o
faawor 31 91 2022 9% | 31 UId 2021 9@
IR By aREafar 3578.62 3167.11
IRANTT PR <IAY
Jrerfia ) aReafmE / (@), g€ 3,578.62 3,167.11
8 — g AN—ada= yRguRmaT
T o |
faa=or 31 91d 2022 d& 31 91d 2021 d&
IR, I=BT AT S aTeT
g el & 3refTaT 37T el & forw
%) goft o 6,957.69 1,105.61
Q) goll 31 & 3Telmar 3 IRy
—amyfifedtel BT i 1,586.88 1,211.07
@l 8,544.57 2,316.68

*qefs ¢ TR, ARNI TR, 7% fdeell § $RATET W &1 WIS &g A
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9. IR Uy

X oy
faazor 31 W 2022 & | 31 919 2021 P
Wdfera uel @ 3rermar = Al & forg
SRRI&T, 31eaT #IFT ST © 34,429.17 26,360.57
JRIET BT AfeTg AMT ST 8% 9,249.75 8,508.75
Tel of: dfewe ol & oy uraem (9,249.75) (8,508.75)
ol 34,429.17 26,360.57
R W P FRE—HH 99 B g
3 o
faaeor TTAE B <7 ffr 9§ =7 o & fog samn T
TR | 6AE W | 6 W | 12 23 | 39§49
GEl Gl 1 9§ ELl v IRF
31 W1 2022 AP

fAfdare—aresT AT ST ®

6,115.79 5059.00| 6,529.00 | 4,743.00

11,793.00 | 34,239.79

geu: dfety R uri & forg
Gl

(9,249.75) | (9,249.75)

o1 faet arel R Ut Bl
3BT AT ST &

9,439.13

9,439.13

9,439.13 6,115.79 5059.00 | 6,529.00 | 4,743.00

2,543.25| 34,4297

31 9/ 2021 9P

fafdare—aresT AT ST ®

494732 9,823.00| 7,506.00| 1,514.00

11,079.00 | 34,869.32

el dfety R i & forg
=T

(8,508.75) | (8,508.75)

o1 faet arer R Ut Bl
3BT AT ST ©

- 494732 9,823.00| 7,506.00 | 1,514.00

2,570.25| 26,360.57

I a9 202021 & 8508.75 G %. @ HiQW U & UGUT DI fad a9 2021—22 & IR YRT B AT A7 & |
3P AT fod a¥ 2021—22 @ SR A 0N & o 9249.75 TG . &I WAL fhar A1 2| Al 4. 52 <X |
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10 — Fd<g AR Tbg THHET

R araY |
faa=or qdu aREuRear
31 91d 2022 AP 31 91 2021 O

d&1 4 aferery
EENIEEINI 54,642.59 29,226.99
g
S PEAUIRCIG| 0.50 0.50
AEf ST (o aRudadr 3 A8 4§ HH)* 38,495.96 46,020.46
A 93,139.05 75,247.95
*TY O @rdl & d6 ¥ W e 2
11 — SWRI™ & AdMEl 9 Ay

R oY |

faazor qda uREufeam
31 9rd 2022 9 | 31 914 2021 d&H

RIEIERSEI 1,12,588.44 1,03,253.45
d& TR R RRAY <@r T ey S 2,171.16 1,102.44
A 1,14,759.60 1,04,355.89

12 — =y fa<ig g

% o #
faazor qd¥=
31 91 2022 31 91d 2021
a® a®
Arafey S R STfTd TS
SINGECHN 2,832.51 3,678.34
Bl 2,832.51 3,678.34
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13 — AU B ARG (IYE)

X draEr |
faazor 31 W 2022 & | 31 91 2021 9B
I 63T T IaR (FE T 8940.87 oId %) (Bl a9 6973.
96 g %.) 19,001.17 15,666.33
T —
ARRR & foly vraere (Rebs UTay 81 gar) (1,835.88) (1,835.88)
(@r@TSe 9. 55 @ forg Aile <9 )
Eagl 17,165.29 13,830.45
14 — =1 qaa= gREufREr
R @raEr |
fqavor 31 W 2022 AP | 31 91 2021 dB

goll 3 & afetmar
FHHARAT BT A

SRIRAN, 3BT AT STl © 31.96 2431
G (F) 31.96 24.31
SEECIDE]
SRIRFAT, 3267 WA Tl ®

AT SR I WR v 30,839.78 27,246.47

s = 149.41 1.52
B (@) 30,989.19 27,247.99
SRR, iy AT o @
JHAT AP BRI 3eY R 90T AR/ SEINe iR S=La’ 120.45 120.45
T —
! B /de & fore wrae= (amow F81 far T ®) 117.91 117.91
SICRT W CISIUE 7 WY (@09 =18 fhar Ta) 2.54 2.54

(3r@TST ¥, 55 & forg Ailc <& )

% ()
IR, STV /AT ST
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JAYfeiepaial bl 3T 1,520.52 877.34
SRR, wifre AT T @
JYfeiepaiall bl 3T 894.32 977.22
T -
MYfeieraiall I 31 &g e (FRRITd / fFroe 8l) 894.32 977.22
(@rdrSe ¥, 53 @ fory Ale <)
B (&) 1,520.52 877.34
A AT (F+HEHT+H) 32,541.67 28,149.64
15 — sfaadl AR gl
R araY |

faazor 31 W1 2022 & | 31 9/ 2021 9B
s
200,000 (el a9 200,000) 100/ — . UAH & AT IR 200.00 200.00
SN, SRR 3R gol JIra
200,000 (fAwer a9 200,000) 100/ — %. TP & Al IR 200.00 200.00

200.00 200.00

Dl

®. dU A 5% 0 AP WAX T dldl IARERD*: —

IRRGRSGI S AH 31 #1d 2022 % 31 |rd 2021 %
aiRa sfaady | ufowa (%) | afRa sfaadt | ufoea (%)
IR D W AW D .
SIS, TS & HEgH F AR & Iyfe 1,99,995 99.9975 1,99,995 99.9975
SN AT SO 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
S A I 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
2 AU de f{s 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
2 ]%ml e 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
2 R T Aoy 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
@l 200,000.00 100.00 200,000.00 100.00

* YR WRBR B IRE ¥ 9IRT 5% F 3w AR I@H & Jlac[s T4 IWRGRSD] DI IRREIRAT BT ISR & TS 3 |
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@, Rufdr adf 31 goana AR Ad F 9H->T gobdT WART BT GHRITSA

T ey o
faaor 31 9 2022 d& 31 9 2021 d®
LRSI I3 LRSI i3
a8 @ 3 F THTAT IR 200,000.00 200.00|  200,000.00 200.00

e 3% a9 B SR T R T IRR / (@)

I¥ B I H gHRT IR

200,000.00 200.00 200,000.00 200.00

T 3fEEd IRRT 9 93 IR, a¥bar iR ufasy
FUA & U 3fFST TARI BT UH 9 2 RIS oI 100 . 9T R 2| S TRI @ IS aRS dfd R

U dIc Bl THaR 2 |

g, 31 HT™ 2022 ¥ 3P U P UM du] dI YA H, T A Bs 999 YA 9N fHT MU 3R T B Ahe d rATar
I fHl eRR &1 dfawdl 2q mdfed fhar T | 39S I7eldl, S A & IR i IRR AT9d el ol 17

AT |

T AR’ A dRERar

AR BT TF 31 W1 2022 BT TR IR 31 A1d 2022 BT GANG gY a9
$ R i # gom uRac=
IR B H | [A TR BT %
TS B <ol & AeE @ 9Re @ wgufy | 2,00,000 100
IR 3=
16 — I gfaad]

X oy
faazor 31 9 2022 & | 31 914 2021 TP
I IR T W P FTER IR
RS STH 69,368.66 59,014.02
qq iy 3 (HHEARI)X 531.69
Shre: @y @ forw sy /(@) 4,617.43 9,822.95
3o 73,986.10 69,368.66
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17 — I fa<hg <gag (AR—adwm)

X o #
faawor AR—ad A=
31 |rd 2022 HY | 31 Wrd 2021 B
RET T A 59.46 39.46
el 59.46 39.46
18 — ATIR UT
3 e #
faa=or 31 9rd 2022 ®1 | 31 W/ 2021 B
IR <
—&q Ud oY SeMl BT Rl dH1AT 8,491.68 2,668.91
—eA U4 oY Al B IFAET AT BT Bl BT 35,590.04 27,898.71
@l 44,081.72 30,567.62
*Are 9. 45 <
ANR 3 BT AT A
3 e #
faazor A H < Il A = ol & g somm: ool
WA | 199q | 1—-2 | 2—-3 | 3999
EL| ELl EAl <1 BEY
31 919 2022 TP
&d, oY 3R e Ser 841936| 70.85 1.10 0.37| 8491.68
o 18,785.73 | 357.29| 650.88| 323418 | 23,028.07
faanfad gen ofg ok 7em Je
A Ererfem 2,62321| 61.39 11.58 407.13| 3,103.30
e oo qrer cnvre oo 9,458.67 9,458.67
9,458.67 | 29,828.30| 489.53| 663.56| 3,641.68 | 44,081.72
31 W1 2021 TP
Ged, oY iR e Ser 2351.66| 316.88 0.10 0.26| 266891
o 20,789.01| 89131| 96337| 2434.61| 2507830
fIanfad geq ofg ok 7eam Ied
G PR 2,401.70| 11.58 407.13| 2,820.41
a1 9t arel @R <3
-| 2554237 |1219.77| 96347 | 2,842.00 | 30,567.62
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19 — 39 fa<fia Qgag (adwm)

R araY |

faazor ERRIE
31 W 2022 & | 31 9 2021 d&

EURCEIDIENIN 675.36 983.27
HHAR] Mg Y 251.10 208.80
g Y 85.33 139.36
YIAeROT &+ * 249.37 243.03
| 1,261.16 1,574.46
*gee d@ TR W fasmar 3 ufemRor |
20 — 39 IAFH <FATY

R arar |
faazor 31 91 2022 &1 | 31 A 2021 @I
PIECIRC RIS R D] 1,65,660.32 1,41,188.48
TEdh] | U TaT BT 26,791.68 20,856.11
I
Tifaferes g@rar iR Y 2,645.26 4,106.17
PHRUANE AT Rerafaferd 112.00 -
Fl 1,95,209.26 1,66,150.76
21 — Yrau™

R araY §
faazor ad T

31 914 2022 B | 31 91 2021 Bl

W Yo BT AEaEE (AC 9. 43 <) 7452 7452
Bl 74.52 7452
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22— W T

T orar

31 914 2022 @l
AT g3AT qY

31 A1d 2021 Bl
AT g3 a9

GaTeld 9 Toied

MRS gl Bl s 17,420.15 12,383.61
SELRE IR 1,22,143.31 1,15,125.37
$d () 1,39,563.46 1,27,508.98
I e o

PNIRIBEARIY 650.01 693.28
G (@) 650.01 693.28
[ATed 4 HA o ()+() 1,40,213.47 1,28,202.26

*Har g Y & Tgd [ 7 fHY 70 ISRT 9439.13 ARG B, DI IdHE @R H b fHar 17 2 |

23 — 39 A

R araEr §
Frareo 31 wrd 2022 &1 31 9rd 2021 &1
AT g3 9 AT g3 9%
o] JTg* 6,023.66 7,220.98
eI
FERAT g URATSTRI TR &S (TFHYA & 3Tl 267.10 190.30
U T TRITSTIRI TR 1ol (Ferddr 3rgar) 8.97 28.97
3= IR—IRETe 3 1,720.58 174.51
MYfeieratall @l R (FARIT / fFae™ F8l) (e 4. 53 <) 82.90 283.65
7,551.07 7,459.87
*XARIAER BT QI W A & fo 1 o (Ree 9 226,02 o9 %) Ao 2 |
24 — NI
R araEr d
R 31 9rd 2022 B 31 |1d 2021 &Y
AT g3 99 AT g3AT qY
i —
BISRR 7,376.73 9,043.86
RIECUN 10,579.66 2,939.71
@l 17,956.39 11,983.57
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25 — HHARY ATH ISl

T arar §
R 31 91 2022 B 31 9™ 2021 &I
A g3 a9 AT g1 9%
Jd= 3N Uredre 942.69 842.98
HHART BTl 21.53 24.74
Bl 964.22 867.72
26 — fa<1 <y
T arar §
; 31 9 2022 &1 31 9 2021 &1
[ATE g3AT qY AT g3 Y
Ugl QAT b §E I Hxh &I W TS Y 899.26 953.23
Bl 899.26 953.23
27 — ¥ 3AR FUURENET <4
T orEr §
e 31 9 2022 &1 31 9 2021 B
AT g q AT gIAT 9%
Hufty, €IF &R IUSR (A ¥, 3 ) 769.18 812.20
HuRT & SUANT &1 AfGR (AIc 4. 4 <) 2,273.37 2,373.84
I Silﬂﬁ Fufrar (v‘-ﬁ—c' 5 é@) 3,554.74 3,575.74
C | 6,597.29 6,561.78
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28 3 UY

X omaEr A

PS— 31 914 2022 I | 31 A1 2021 Bl
[T 3T a8 AT 3T a8

G e (AT 4. 38 TW) 10.04 9.98
EEN < 4.57 1.74
qrs d8H I 0.21
[EINIE IS I NS E S P LI 2.95 12.95
MR Had= 0.92 3.86
SHOE! (IR—aTCdd) 47.79 29.56
R ST BRI I 19.46 67.46
SEGIREICSIN 43.03 37.92
qed I 8.07 4.83
[BRIGEESICIINESS NI R i) 112.00 57.20
SISl e & forg ot 1.60 1.69
Wiy ol & o graemE (Aie 9. 52 %) 741.00 73.40
fasTell ofR url gob 948.99 821.18
fepvrar o 5.25 7.24
BISY HIUT AR ATHGADIS Joeb 394.02 352.88
FHTT UET Yo 0.94 4.66
AT SR IS Yoob 1.09 0.92
fafay =g 70.37 9.64
STy & 2,761.16 2,570.99
Hratery fxmar 374.38 0.57
goT 3R TR 2.06 4.32
ERENECINENENIN S 475.73 349.61
fepvrar e SR AR 9.99 10.18
R NI NN CEACIE 445.70 352.56
CeRil frTaT oob 283.34 276.69
AIBI Yeob 51.06 42.51
PIEIRED 65.88 54.56
qrE— Uglel 2.16 1.34
el 6,883.76 5,160.44
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29 — ufa IR I

X < #
31 9 2022 BT | 31 9 2021 &I
AT AT a8 AT g3 a8
AT IR I
SIFaE] IRURSBI B BRI AT () 4,617.43 9,822.95
SfFd RT @ IRT i ad ww@= (@) 2,00,000 2,00,000
9 ¥TRR SRS ART BT TUET & forg sfdact 2Rl #1 AIRa siad 2,00,000 2,00,000
= (1)
i R 1 o (@ /@) (3. H ) 2,308.72 4,911.47
7R 3R SRS AW (/) . §) 2,308.72 4,911.47
afcr TR 3ifdhd g 100.00 100.00
30. Sfad you dwgwr
() =ofi & IgurR fa<ig weE
X < #
faazor 31 W 2022 T 31 9 2021 T
THdIddive | gRenfrd | gedididiva | aRenfea
AT EILG]
YR YT 34,429.17 26,360.57
TIhe 3R Jhe THR 93,139.05 75,247.95
3 §p 9y 1,14,759.60 1,04,355.89
IfST <t (aﬁ’qﬁ) 2,832.51 3,678.34
RETT ST 500.60 10834
|rafe S 291.60 291.60
RIS IS (ﬁqg aﬁ’m:r) 285.12 243.04
Eayl fa<ha uReufrar 2,46,237.65 2,10,285.73
IESEIECORIY
IR <Y 44,081.72 30,567.62
3= faxia <ad (acwm) 4,480.90 3,893.63
3= faxia <uad (FR—acA ) 14,683.08 15,781.21
@l f<h= a'qa'rq - 63,245.70 - 50,242.46
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(i) Sfaa qea vargHa
|1 foxira Arem e fo S Jog &1 Ar=gar €1 18 8 a1 Udhe b 11 &, S Sfd o UaTgHhd & WIaR aified
B a1 & S FEgER aftia g, Fras R @ §YC @ JER W Sl 999 W 9 Id g A1 & oy Agcde o |

WR1 : G oIl URAURRT a1 <aamsll & foly Afhy aoiRl § Igd (ramrifr) 4o

TR 2 : AP dPhAId fords oy o R & $97Ye [T SFRa Jed A9 W J8qul 941 usdl §, Icdel a1
AITTE WA I S DB B |

TR 3 G- daiie e folg fF1aq W &1 g7gc T SRIa Je 919 R Ag@yul J9E gsdl 8, faalidH
Y IR ST WR ARG &l 2 |

FrfoRad arferdr Hu &1 FURT 3R Sl & ST Je A9 USTIHH U™ &Rl &, S Al foa Ifd e
S g8 Hedl D PRIg JFAN & |

Y & IR TR 1, WR 2 3R WR 3 & 19 DI RIHART T8l gl 2 |

THE AR THe AAGE], YR UTI, 3T W], AUR <F AR I =g qgdmei & forg ydes 9 qeaiad fhar fb
IHT 3BT I 39 USRI DI ATHIeId IRIFIAT & HRYT 98 TAH TR ST 3wofid Af 7 |

DU DI AT AT B AT Teh GRAT ST D Ired AT BT TRV [SEBISTS DY Fell (SHIVE) UFHA Bl AR
PR BT ST & RTH 8T &R BT SUINT fhar Siran § S Rufér s@fe & fd H 9ok SUR &R Bl Sidl o | wiue

BfSe SIRed |fed IRgedalIdd IR SIYC Bl MMAT T & HRU I© Iod oI USTghd § wR 3 IId qedi &
wY # geffepa famam wTam 2 |

e 9. — 31. fa<ia oRgw ydeq © Seva IR faar

U B JE A<l IRl § AR <, GRE S, A1 RART ST 3R HHAR] <Iag WA 8 | Sl bl 95
i Fuftrdl % AUR wre, GRE ST, A1afY S, Ade SR I O wifie § Sff WY s9e HdTad ¥ T 81 © |

HUA gIOTR SIIRGH, FE0T SIRIA 3R axelal SIIRIA & 31 § | BUAT BT YL 39 SIRGAT & Y& BT SRS HRal
2| BUAl & IR Yaud Bl Feed Hsdl BT WedlT MAerar & Sl dul & forg faxi Sikgdl sk Sugh oI SiikaH
TR gl IR WM I €| 91 BUH B FdEd Bl earad <ar @ byl @ foxfra SiRgw wfafafern Sugew
A9 3R FEEE fhar SIar © | Jeee 9 SIRGH H F IS B JGET 7 Al ol FHIET BT 2 3R AEHd BT @
T aRier A fear T 2

|. 9ToTR SiRaw

ISR SIReH a8 SiRed € O IR AR &l dodl § gacrd & bRl fbdl =iy | @ qfdsy & Todl yare &
ST Hed H IARG FSd BT | IIGIR SIRGH H A9 UPR & SIRGH AT &5 TS &% BT SIRgH, ol Siad 3fR
3T e SIREH | ISR SiRew | wifaa faxfir st # \rafer s enfaet g 2|

®. FTol ¥ Wiflgd

TSl &% SIIRgA I8 SIIRgA 2 O IR II6IR &1 @191 &)1 4 9aalld & HRT [l faxig aeq & SfHa qou ar wiiw
DI APbal TalE H IARG dSd BT | FIGIR & ATl <RI ¥ gclld & SIRgH & Ui DUl P SIIgd TrIffed wa 4
Jbl & 1 FEafS ST H B B I F FERT 8| B DI @iy o\ 7 HR¥Ed e} )R B AR 8 | s3falv IR
RGBT AFH 107 H IRAMNT <91 &) & 9 781 8 Fifh 9ok & &I191 <1 § 99elld & HROT 7 df g8 af3r
R 9 & A0 & APl YAE H SAR—ASTT 81T |

68 |



. fad=l a1 SR

el a1 SiRew 98 SiRem 2 o W ol vauior & wfaw & F@dl yars & SfId 4ed d fafma =1 # uRadA
% PR IARG FGId N1 | facel Ja1 SRew Hdaeiiaar Hifses Uiy 3R qadmRil & Ifed Jea § uRads & BRUT
PR A Qd DU S A UR YT ST © | DU (el JoT SIReH & WU H el © il SHD U By [dael qaT
Aifged Fufy ok Igdl 781 7 |

II. or SifRad

FOT SREH 98 SIRIH 2§ S Ua wfcrder Bl & Ui are <1 &t fide ov o fawe vgar 8| o sifed & forg
U BT TFAUIOR & WU F 68 AR Adha FHGell, AR Wil 3R gReed anta o) Al 78 foxig aReuRd
H JAIT BIAT © | BUAT ANTAR I8! AR A ARTUABRI BT b B FRFT PRl § AR $H SIFBRT Bl U 0T
SR =T § e Felt 2

ol Siifgd ydeE
U fFr=fefRad @ SR W suferg sk g1 ue el @

T SR qIffHRoT BT MR afara ko1 B &1 UraET=

0T SRy & IHS Ud Adhe AHGE, §b STHT U9 31T §& Y | 12 Al & F0T B @ I

0T SNiRgw HeaH AR U1, o7 AR o= fa<ig uR<ufmar | emofied srufera =eor &1f a1 12 918 @
T B & IR

HRIGR] ABIT $ IR R a8 Bul Farfera gl &, oy aRguRra R fwfee wR AR feaar Sar & 59 ufduer
Y & AR HEHd §AY (AT & WAk T F3 ¥ fA%el I8d1 8| & BT A drell 81 X ardfad For
BN 9T 3R IdM R Ve afdie Rferal & dig iR R fIaR &-e R AR 2 |

9 el Pl DIy Sfed IHIG T8l B B, A GURT B g W H STl fear S g, o 6 fearferar aifvd #xe
AT TIER T HU b RIS JhaHaroll | U 39 Ul & AT JeT SR & & D! 29 IRy 9 @1 o
ST & A § R IITAE B AR B BT T PR © | DI TS el DI T IR @ @ral # fordr S 2

3 e #
FOT SIRaH faazor 31 9rd 2022 &Y | 31 ®d 2021 BT
=1 T Aifaw qPhg IR b TADE, b ST IR I IF 2,11,507.89 1,83,816.82
oy
AW FOT ST Raw IR U iR o= faxfi dufrat 34,929.77 26,468.91

AUR gl & digdl

R il § 9RT & Q=T 1ol 4 91 G § ured e B € R o1 Siifaw @1 pIg Heedqel Ahevr
& BT 2|

It FoT 819 & foIv =or SIRgH TaauioR Uraer= | o+t fAferRad faly aRequfral & forw 12 9 &1 smufera
ST IR BT UG HhRell a—
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T orar §

faavor Abel 989 ¥ | Iaféra kor sifv | srafera skvr sif @)
g 98 NI

31 91 2022 db
IR U 43,678.92 (9,249.75) 34,4297

31 91 2021 db
IR T 34,869.32 (8,508.75) 26,360.57

I UTae_ &1 guraSI-—3roiia- raférg ot iy

X drar #
ISR IGE DI E ATIR 4T
31, 91 2020 9@ BT H<AT 8,435.35
Y & AR Tl / () i arfr 73.40
92 @ H srefl 18 Al
31 9{TE 2021 qH B T 8,508.75
a9 & R < / (arwd) sif &fa 741.00
92 @ H srefl 18 Al
31 A1 2022 dF BT w=<IT 9,249.75

. a_erdr SiifRaH

RS SIREH g8 SIRIH § Sl HUT Dl JUA! AR <Iarsi | s Qridcal &l YRT B ¥ Gl Sleidl & fofg Ada AT
=g o< GuRkrl & wregq 9 OR7 {HA1 ST & | aReAdl & Jde 8 DUl Bl giedlv JATH9g I8 GiHred S
2 5 SUS U S ITARI BT YT R 2g AT ARerdT R 99 9 9T B | U STfArd hdl HaTE & MR W
BT B ARl bl R IR AHa! d A FHBbel] & AT Al IR TR I & | HIN S9 IR B aRed]
BT & H @) & FOrad gors Geiferd gl 2 |
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= 91 8 arfae dfdgrard 991 8 ard YIaEl @ AR W) U B A< Sgares $1 aRudaar

AMHIsd & IR IFJd Hcdl @

X wr@Er |
TR | 38 H9 | 3912 (1 959d| 5auf & Hd
HTE I ES dH

[T g3AT 9%
31 91 2022 B
TR 44081.72 - 44081.72
s il ude 1,261.16 81310 | 240664| 3,166.00 1151707 | 19,163.97
o 45,342.88 813.10| 2406.64| 3,166.00| 11,517.07 | 63,245.69
| g3l 9o
31 91 2021 Bl
AR <Y 30,567.62 - 30,567.62
s il g 1,574.46 70987 | 160930|  3,720.80 1206041 | 1967484
A 32,142.08 709.87 1,609.30 3,720.80 12,060.41 | 50,242.46

32. oll yeed

PUAT DI YOl YFeT GRAFT DT I I8 JARAd BT & & uliag BRI BRIHAl DI R B & Y U & Uid

T TR G 32 | HU, eI R I AR Tty DI §91¢ 7@ 2g Yol Ga § gRadd @l AMaeadhdT &

b B b U e &Y efbiferd Ahal UdTg Mavgadral ) AR Hedl 2 |

BHUT AT GOl AT BT e Rl © AR 3 Rerfcrdl # uRad= & JJaR sHH TS BT 2 | Yol d-e1
DI Y G I FARINT B & oI, U AIRYRSD] DT AT YA BT FHRING B Fhell ©, Yol arad
Ao B, AHE TG AT IR TR IR Tl &, FOT AT Fohdl 7, 73 Fur Gy wnfid IR Fadl 7 a1 U

gfee wfafaferat @) wad 2|
31 A1 2022 I AT gY 99 & QI eI, Al ar afshamsil 4 dig dadrd 21 fHar T or |
R |t #

faavor 31 9rd 2022 B | 31 Wd 2021 B
T
YUR IdTd 44,081.72 30,567.62
3 IdTY 2,14,447.75 1,85,900.12
TCTd: Adhe AR The GHHE (93,139.05) (75,247.95)
foraer =w&or 1,65,390.42 1,41,219.79
Gl sfaad) 74,186.10 69,568.66
II;Gﬁ 3R frad =x&or 2,39,576.52 2,10,788.45
frafar seara (%) 69.03% 67.00%
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33. fa<1 squra

31 #2022 AR 31 ATE 2021 BT FHIE gY a8f & (7Y U 9 UBR &

YT /AT # war 3ieT TUrH IS FMa g8 T & fag | oieR
RE Aad | 31 ad | (% #H)
2022 2021
EREID] SRR AT ERGIGRLIGRI TAY STy 1.21 1.25 -3.56%
RU—Sdac! U RSl Bl R IRNYRGI BT sfdady 0.24 0.26 -71.35%
FOT AT HaNSl AT T RIS Bl T 0.40 0.78| -49.20%
$fdadt W Res (3mRas) % IR D 98 IE SRRERG BT A 6.42%|  15.26%| -57.89%
Gkl BEECl
IR T 3R SEEIG] AT RISES] 3T AUR Ut 4.61 565| -1841%
IR g THATIR U T | Eel @ whE | NG AR <F 3.38 396 | -14.68%
3R 3= =Y

TG Yol SHIATER 3rurd AT NSES] IRRURG @7 ST 1.89 1.84 2.56%
G A AT % g o oI 3.29% 7.66% | -57.02%
RIS ot W ama % ot AR BR gd | PR goft 769%| 16.10%| -52.21%
(CIRSIKIEY SIE]

EERE IR RCIESISIE) % 1o 3 Arafy o 3.74% 465% | -19.45%
¥FOT Bl YT AT BT AT B

¥EHA T I Ugl ST B ST 8
TR 3R TR g 31
FRRATSTT goil 1 312l 8 WIRURGI BT Bl sfdac! 3R o
25% ¥ 3¥H F=iameil & forg TeeieRor
31 AT W gig @ A1 Soa HATed M ©g oA Bl B PR (AT AT B |
34. Ug
USER & w9 §

(®) Gl & SUAT & IAfTHR A Haehq

R arar #
faa=or 31 A1 2022 & | 31 A1 2021 dF
forder WUy BT BISHR, SUANT B S dTell FURrAT 1,081.98 694.52
(@) =vfi grr R @fyr & 3id 9 wulka & STANT & AVSR &1 987 T
X @t |
faavor Sy 1 goft 2 A

1 e 2020 BT A AR 18,924.69 18,924.69
i 694.52 694.52
PRI BT HMNeA 18.18 18.18
9y & foIy Yo Yoob 2,373.84 2,373.84




1 3T 2021 Y AN WA 17,227.19 17,227.19
gf 1,081.98 1,081.98
94 & fory Jeue™ Yoob 2,273.37 2,273.37
31 9/ 2022 DT ARy 16,035.80 16,035.80
(M) uer <A &1 uRugddar fageyor

T e |
fagwor 31 919 2022 d& | 31 91 2021 db
AP ST 18,060.91 18,791.29
Jae 1,081.98 694.52
ot 899.26 953.23
SfYPRI & G (18.18)
SORISIRCARSURIG (2,198.80) (2,359.96)
M STy 17,843.35 18,060.91

T orEr ®
IRugaar fazerer — wfeee® {41 g 9T 754 Hars 31 914 2022 9 | 31 AT 2021 qD
T a9 I B 3,219.74 2,319.17
T q g a9 10,497.20 10,367.95
qre 9ut o Ifd 11,517.07 12,060.42
fa=1 ge arell gor uer dgag 25,234.01 24,747.54

T o |
i e & i ggr e 31 9 2022 9@ | 31 919 2021 9D
it 3,219.74 2,319.17
Ao qehur 14,623.62 15,741.75
X 17,843.36 18,060.92

9
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(@) <™ ar s § W iga af¥n

X draEr |
faavor 31 9T 2022 B | 31 WA 2021 &I
AT g3AT qY AT g3AT qY
gl QIR TR 1o 899.26 953.23
aRTIRI UgT I Ugl <Idl @1 UArse H e 81§
ST & ARNGR arell FuRmEl & SU—ug &
eplicTd Ug I Hafdd g 374.38 0.57
FH Hed dTell HURR & JdIed el P BISIR HA—ed dTell
Hulrl & ug | HeftT &y
(8) “P< uare faarvr A wiga Al
fa=or 31 W™ 2022 BY 31 A" 2021 BY
|HG g % HHIG gl %
ugi & fory e Tpe dafedtE 2,198.80 2,359.96

35. ATHRAD I

R AR T8 fhar Sran © wife aRIreell & forg smgfd fhy Tg Wi IueRor aRET AA & 98 AHIGHEAT W

fasharatl / myfciapatell & vua=il & Sfavid amd €|

STRRH & 3T, 31T 3MHRAG <IATY, NIFdT Yraem= F&l fbar T €, 9 39 UdR & —

Bl

% @t d
faaRor 31 A4 2022 T6 | 31 AE 2021 Tb
HUA & RIATH ITaT K0T & WU H WIHR 8l fhar 11 164.78 99.66
TRET 1275.47 691.10
feeelt de feArs (Rder 2005 & TdaR 2008) 678.00
MR ART (BT I9 2014—15) 206.29 206.29
JARIABR ART (AT I9 2015—16) 350.60 350.60
AR ART (JMheTT I9 2018—19)* 2434.58 243458

5109.72 3782.23

*JURITH AT 5139.45 ARG . & MR H @1 fhy 77 R & wordIo & 918 f9dt 82 2 |
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36.

PINCEGIN

HU T WG IS 3R MDA & el fhy 7Y FHeidl & R W ATUIRS Iwgall &1 WXIG 3R 91§ Bl 37afy
# ATt BT AT IS BT UGG Bl 2 | 99 USRIl BT FEAd Adl & IR AN fHar ST Adwmdr ¥ | g,
31 A1 2022 TH HUAT D ARG GRATSHRT & fory Tt Irora wfadgarnstt &1 Ifr 532,05 @@ . (sl ¥ 509.70
TG B.) T | D A, MR H A goiid & &) ufddgdl 39 IR T

X @ |
®. | <R 31 WE 2022 | 31 AIE 2021
9. b adh
1. | et ST Wew, YaERa 20543.48 22501.31
2. Q:Kz,ﬂ—gfqﬁ FATSS VAR BT HAdee+ 1600.02 1874.07
3. | RRgae 20-ffrea gfear gMhRmfea & foar 1380.21 1380.21
4. | <fp—1,30 qd, T U, ool STHIRA—AdeeS! | ool ¥e W 1898.50 2280.68
(SeT Hex & foru SRR BHRRT—1305.68 / Sdaiude dficd— 875.00) (fUsel
gy 2021—22 H SINI 382.18 TR 3. &1 3ARH IR)
5. | Fefs ¢§ TR, ARKN TR, T8 fieeh # Ftem wd @ Wik (e W 6085.63 11937.70
T—300)
(2020—21 H YA Bl g Kol AT 13043.31 TCTA1105.61 R 2021—22 H
5852.07 H, QI BRI DI BISIN)
Bl 31507.84 39973.97
37.  SUl ARFT™N,2013 B FFYA! |11 B d8d Q¢ Y A AR A WA Bl dAR P D folg QA=

frder @ uRT 5(vii) ® ITEAR FIT

L3MME.Y. MR W AR BT Hod: I (AT 2. )
facel ga1 # =9 (e MR WR):

% dreEn 9
favor 31 Wi 2022 BT | 31 ATE 2021 Y
T g9 9§ | §Y 99
A% (9w IR I
Bl NS LA
i. TRl gar § oMy (AgWeT @ MR W) Y B, (T %, )
38. A@UES &I aTRsifie*
% arat |
favor 31 W/ 2022 BT | 31 ATE 2021 BN
A gY a TA §Y 99
TR IITIRIET Yo T ARSI 7.01 6.36
JMIHY oINGT GeT 0.93 0.85
Sead) ereufan 0.00 0.85
@i B aRiy & forg 2.10 1.91
el 10.04 9.97
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* TN BRI DI BISHR | 3D AT, 2.10 G %. (1.80 g ., fUwel I¥) Swwc! &l Bleaw, Afa= aRaHRIT &
YAV &1 ® forg uee fhy S € S et aRareret # Y sfde fhe o €

39 AR oWl AM® 199 IJUR TSI — HHAN AT’

40.

qfasg fAfer 9 Jrem

famties 3 A9, 1998 B TR WRA WRHR &1 ARG & AR, YA & U Hig wfasy Ay Ao =8 2
s HUN & HHARI U UG & A1 TRl F ufafgis w2 | 9w (A &1 97 997 9 & 7EW 59
I & oy MEiRT ST & STIAR HIel WAl & IR 918 § WRBR & (SRfael &I gHsmssl ol ukd &R e
ST € i ST RT AT I gRT d91¢ IE@T ST 2 | 39 bR 9w (A8 @ R wHarRal &1 fedr €
P & forg Hul @t BIg JFar T8 2|

gl dad

Tfh HHARY 3 ATE 1998 B ARA WRBR Bl SR JRRIEAT & AR TS ¥ ufafgfs W &, eI a4
AN (HEfd HHe) @ 909 & foy FeiRd =1 & STgaR), U )T 8% A8 3 @i # 9T/ Uar @l
ST ©, THeNsH! & © faU O 2| $9 YR, Gl 909/ AHAIHRY & A & fy U+l R 38 a1 T8l
=

UMERC MG

Tfdh HHARN 3 AT 1998 BT YRA TRBR DI SN R & AR TH3MS | Ufd Fgfe W g, Uee arre™
(T HHar & 9a9 & forg MuiRT <= & IFAR), B gRT & 78 U9 W /U &) Sl 8 3R a1
H TS B BXAART PR &1 O 8 | 39 UHR, YR ¥l & YT & folg Bol R $Is i Fa1 2 |

FGE (Irgaifie)
T HHARI 3 AT 1998 BT WRA TRBR DI SINI STEGAT & AR T <l o Ui PRI W 2 Hu foadt
f TGS BT YA BT & folg ITRERT 2 2, I I8 G0 TRE | UASNSHl gRT 98 a1 ST |

ddfera urdt gadiavor
gefera wiféar @ g

&l BT M Gicte
T URIT BAR ATl (Jeer faere) oY JagDHI HHI
Y | S (Bu ) T JHIDBIT HH
defera uell @ |1y d9-—<H: —
R arat #
9 BT TH AT BT TPR 31 W/ 2022 HT | 31 A1 2021 Y
THIG gl % THGT gorT N
Y TN HAR AT EEREADECRE] 40.47 36.88
9 o9 JEIH Idq 11.43 10.36
e, 51.90 47.24

R

WafRra wifdal 1 319 2022 6 <A ARE: 3.85 AR . (U 9y 3.39 G %)
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41. ARANE JdWihd AMD—108 WAl YU & JTAR UHIHRIT

FUA Bad faeetl 3 R Seipa drRfed § gaa Hefia! T § §dg Ja™ R 8 2 | 39 ddd TP TS A
8Y, < fAarvll § AR S@id A$—108 HaTed AHHT & AR B THCIBRUl Tal [l T & |

42. 2y AR @1 gfe
fafr=1 <fiwf & T8d oW IR gicawor v oY foy 71U 2| S9a Raems wfafsar @ e 2 |

43. 9184 /[@ifia fad@ &1 AR—fasareq

HUAT 7 TAGIAT <19, HIbToll BTET i, T8 ool @ B3 o WX idd 9. 2 3R 3 &I 999 THarT forfd. & soen
qY 2003 MR 2001 H TWRIST AT| ETeifd, gD v Exiarr fdege wifie fderg @t IR 93150 g %, (oot oy
931.503%d %.)%T AT, TR RT &8 aR IR Y S & a1+ St =1 =18 fpan 2| gfery, fxfra Raxor
H W Yo I R & Y 7452 ARG 3. (Uoel a¥ 74.527F .,) BT YRS UG fBar 17 iR 3R i, afg
g, 99 ¥ & fog <1 oo, 5 9¥ S uoied fhar T 7| 39 Gy H UARIEITaNE A HHa—aHa WR fafa=
R} TR $H HHA BT TAGRIRT & FHeT @7 iR fa9id 10.09.2020, 01.10.2020, 08.12.2020, 26.03.2021 3R 14.06.
20211 ST fY 1T SRS & AIFGTTH Hed &A1 17.07.2020 HT B | 3G 918,  TASRINT 7 TRISHITHRITS
Bl glte e TaM B 2 SR Adfe Rl & e 39 doligd B W g, THenEiuwans ok TRk & =
ISS Ve 3 & aE &1 Refd &1 fhR | el o &7 & |

44. Y9 & faaR ¥, adar GuRky, o1 3R 39 Ud AR U &1 Fa9d & 9E=g 9icdshy o
FA-A—H9 4 URT & TR ¥ 2 N o= ST qaram 13w 2|

45. wHUOUasS! AfSfra|, 2006 @Y 9IRT 22 & dad YdcIdHRol

% arat #
. 4. | faawor 31 W/ 2022 9% | 31 WM 2021 9P
1 T 3R S W T @S fadt N myffeat @1 e T8 8491.68 2668.91
fepar T |
2 qedl, Y SR 7 IeH faer A, 2006 P GRT 16 B Nl Nl

FFAR 3MYfcibal ®I fbU TT YA Bl AR & AT WIEER
ERT YA BT TS TS ] |

3 PIAH B H S DI (A & foIy ghr &R < &ref a1 iy, NG Nl
b geH, g 3R #egd SeM fderd srfi-m, 2006% &
fafde =9 @1 Sire foA |

4 IfSta =t &1 ¥ 3R ghrm |

5 qed, g SR A Ied faer MfAfH, 2006 @ ORT 23
T8 Heldl AFY Y B RATBR B & 32T |, AT a§]
W 9HRIT IR <F &S @ Y, S99 fAf 9@ o9 @ {6 SRRe
TS BT YA aR<Id H BIC ¥ Bl T8l R a1 S |

*gTelifds, SIRIh H IfeatRad I W 7 =1 e 781 7 |
46. YR dWiHA AFH—36 WURK B I & ITAR THIHROI
YRATI T AFb—36 FURT B BIN'D AR, a0 99 2021—22 & SR @&H TR H ST AR, Al urd H e

lille
il

| 77



STl WX & e H TRISH delrss Afded & Gaee’ iR IS UTh H Sdoude Hexd e H Uiy @ 81 @1
JATh BT AT &, I BUAl Bl FAbal UGT B dTell 3DISTT & 3R IH UR PIg JHIAT Bl BT U8 61 DI TS o | .

47. AT A13E . 815—100 / TIATSHITHIITE / 2009—SI0H f&HATH 20.11.2009 (31.03.2017 Bl
THATSANUHITE gIRT ATy or fhar war 3R B gRT ©aR fear 1) @ Raame dide aRAisrmsi
3 forg o o (SheR / ToflaiR) 3R Sk &1 arsd¥ Yoob 30X WagHd Yob & HIaH |
TRRISHIUARNS T 31.03.2017 DI SRACI ASHT IReX HR QAT o IR SRIET 7 39 WIHR B foram o7 | S8l
ERT QT 7Y QY & AR, TITSHITHINS -1 31.03.2017 T dhddd 9 AR ¥ FefRd IToRa R o844 gedh /
WFEH ob DI YR IR BT YA BT & | 1ef €1 UATaY /TSR ¥ 41 /If7 It gl 8 | gretifeh, e ARie
PRI, SIBET 7 G HUAT A GG o & oY TANSAITHNE W TSl / JAAT R &, s foly gAganserars
= SRS & 1T AT SO o |

PIITAI TQT Je HAIY A, 316 17.07.2020 & UF & HAEIH ¥, 399 Yoob AR WagH SUANT Yo (AR
P AT Fared ¥ed & fadid 11.06.2020 B AR 3R Sl & drfery SUH W& 12—25 / 2019—TUATHYT
fedi® 17.07.2020 @ MR W) & fIU TAMSHITHE & Raamd O AT Aifed aod o form 81 uhusH
ETNIT BRI Bl JegdR, URMSHITANS §RT U9 W& & ARG ¥ Gad f6ar M1 o7 | geswigssns /
e /SWaer YhUSH! A= /2018—19 /289 f&AI® 20.07.2020 3R TEAR, S6 HEAEI o UF | YUAGI—II/
T3S TS / Th—2516 / 2019—20 / 323 faid 23.09.2020. |

ETelifeh, THAMERATHAE + S DY 4 I TR (o) w1 & o S Fof 92 o B, FAI—F7T TR A5
BT 7 o1 | TSGR o fadi® 10.08.20209% U & ARAA W, i 09.11.20208 JTHRS & AT S A4l
ISl BT AIIH &R @ ol SIAC & FHe Al Bl ISHT AT | TGTR H, BRI JeIT= ARIY, REAR 0T, & 0
W, 50—4 /2018—qIHRT 3R H /e ARfiw /Aot /1413 A6 05.02.2021, 7 RIS (TaATHd f$dio™) 4
IR—XEAR Gy & e # T /TGl & GHediad & forg feenfader SNt wRe @1 R fhar o, wriifes
SIS §RT SST8 T8 71T Bl 39 3N T 12—25 / 2019—TAUHUT fadTdh 13.07.2020 & T8 I10 o forar 7 oI |
THRNMSHITHRNTE = SIMET BT fawih 11.03.2021, 27.05.2021, 22.06.2021, 22.07.2021, 09.08.2021, 13.09.2021, 22.11.2021,
08.03.2022 3fR 21.04.2022 BT fold UF & ARIH A ATERSD SR [HY & <A1 PIg WIRT 1 g8 © AR drofl 3T Y
SRS & U 2| 9 Had H, THEeScaE & Afud 7 SR @ eve iR SRR vd afa & fRsid 13.05.2022
BT 13 o= off forar 7|

48. I STT dexX IRIAISRI U A /Fg

TS ST WeR, WA U, faeell ®I UHeaslars iR Uasedl | faxiia werar 9 wnfd fhar T o 3Rk s,
2011 ¥ @1 B AT o7 | Y faw WfAfY & TR & STNIR, THRMSHIUHaTE & URfie 2 avf & forg ufy aw soo
ARG 6. B TR A YR TF T8 BT o7 | 0 IR g Dbl IRT hxAl b forg, THnAgaans ol amdfed 60
X ¥ AT U AT o Fafh TANGHITHINS = 2 I & d16 W IH W URATAT I Pl QT HRAT SIRT I@T o,
THSMSCIATs H Hol & I off fh 01—04—2014 ¥, UAASHITHING TSI ST Her, AT UTdh, faeetl R uRkare =3
o AS H 800 g . A, - Ud IERw@E / TS SaERAAT JIGSTH SFdel & A H, 98- HXN AR T4l
U IS UTgET ¥ UHSTSHIUAsS I fdsTell Ud Siotel Yodb / ifcies YReT Ud BISHDIUT Yoob /el Yodb /IAG
AN / JMHRAD Yo, 37 1 Yol & 3% db, DI UGS B, 3MRT H $7 Wal Pl TR AINHss gRT fhy
M @ 916 | AR H Y STl Hex g9 & 98 THRMSHIvHRNS iR Tl o Sared iR Jaee @ g
& U &M fhar &R Ty &), T $e1 Wex, I ure, ool @ v W e fhar| ensdivEens & v
HSeT 71 27.12.2018 BT AT A1 10871 90 H, 371 W AR fHAT &R 01 e 2018 Yl y9E & R
\ﬂﬂtﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂ@ﬂ:—

o THRIMSAITHRTS I U AR YR Sl Wexl B AT et uRASHT Yot AdbrSe I Wbl B |

. S QM STT ¥Rl UR WEgRA ATl & HIEIH 3 B+ dTell A1 JRTad URATSHT #al & T8 ST fhal SITg |
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* I B IUNT 59 QM ST Dal W ANSYH I AR gHTel 3l & by & foy fear sg |

o THMSAITHAS GRT TRA U ¥ WEGRA VT B SUANT H WY ST X8 qIH 60 Yl b rel[al A drel aut
¥ TS ANTSTH T Bl IR Hewiab o1y wafed o S[emaiR g ard) el & S+ 8q 3R YeT oiTdT el
gl

o foxT 9¥ 2018—19 3R TP a1g A A Urd H AUSUH I B AU vAIIEACHIE uf av 800 IR B, W L
BT | TR gRT wMfid fhy S arel ST 60 IR S9N MfH X | B dTell M & IHANT INTSYH
I B YR IR AR AT S & I H fHAr SwgEm |

o TRIEHTHANE I 9 2018—19 3R TG 9% W BT AMISTH T R 9IS & AT & ATAR AT 7%
AT AT 3R B ol |

TARMSHITHINS =1 TS TASII—THUT iR qa-eaRk # degaR i au 2021—22 # U 3 IR - Bl G BT |

TRISHITARNS & e9dh HSal o 29.07.2020%T IMATIT ITAT 11441 98F H TRMSH! W Uh Fe9d o+ IR S99

TISAIGUAY 3R Ya-edr H §U &I AR I & d19 91 (FATSS Pl BISHR) Bl QT I Gael 3MseH H aN d
faemR < 1 SrgRre fohar o | HHel il faaRiE 2 |

49. IS URAISARI H I BT Y Ffr R =
TS HITHSNTS 7T a9 2021—22 H SIS URAGHIR H A6l &R & IFAR I[P R W BE fBar g, o4
TR THISHITERTS + 99 # &R faxy a9 2021—22 # THS! 9978 off:

X o
arafer T IRASET | g sy aRRkaeT Hl
=T 99 2020—21 & forg 28.97 190.30 219.27
=T 99 2021—22 & forg 8.97 267.10 276.07

50. SBMEY gRATSHRT § are ol R fivesd dwmudar srafaa 9 give 3difse axT

o a9 2011—2012 TP, BUT SRR T A GRASHRIT & Fwred & fog uray IR1 &1 Ferdr I e
D WU H AMA D gold Yied I UK AH b vy H 749 @ Al R Teg9R, gaTTdhdl | Bl Augth [ i)
IS TSl <781 feam T o |

Fawrd ded o1 fadid 21—12—2011, BT 8 0@ & gRI WA URISTRI # e H Sucre ruanfl e w
I =TT B IO 3R ARA & oy AdSIe &3 & ddbi & q9d 4P @i § AR S &R B AR FHI—
AT R A & ofl | TEGAR, U 7 AT ARRAH B TSl BT IR B T0E1 R qmadl a1 off a1 Aresifties
&3 & dbl H g9 d WAl H AN e &R Sidid FaHddl W gRT MuiRa Fi ok wal & Jg9R, Ferdr
GRITSTAIRIT H AFI & JUYeh AV WR AT aReifde 16l ara9 fha1 ST 8 | Sl faaml < fa<d a9 2016—17
TP ARHIT IRASHR # T & B WHR FR forar g iR 394 4 Afdaier aRAee o1 81 gal & iR S7a
STl BT FIERT 81 g&T & | iR fl, Su g1 ARER BT SNeMSy URATSTIs # 1ot &1 HF aqul & forg &1 Hraferd
A TP RT SR fHAT T 2 | TSNS IS F 9 URT BT SR QAT o7 SR ¥B 3R N FRIES UF HeTeraTiETd
P & f[AaREH |

9 99, fqere Hed 1 28.03.2017 BT 85 MU 10041 o ¥ 59 AMC W R A AR fHA1 3R UAemSHIvHang &
RIS AR TR FERIAT IR URATSTB U TSl 9T B DI FA8 ol |

TEIAR, T a9 2018—19¥, TARMSHITHNE 7 SiIeNgy URATSHISAT H GRAS MR R TSl &)1 & AR BM (BT
2, o9 IR T ATHag 7 orchd H YWl @l off iR S MR WR 31.03.2018 T I (A o forg wefda uRaremr
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S I WIT 981 H R TS U [BAT 2, Bl 4766.01 AT 2. (AT TADYT URIISTA H 1414.74 ORI . AR ¥
STIRMEY URASHRN H 3351.27 @G %) |

THUSH AW Hriferd &, U3 |, TgHSN—Il /ufy. oy / S /9993 / THRTSHITHaNs / €1-2024 faid 14.01.
2020, ® AR ¥, UHATSAIUHSNS Pl “HASIIT URATSTIS H e Favr F4i &R 2rdl & IR JJurel & BRI §U
26.36 RIS B. DI B 3R 78.38 BRIS ©. DI <Al Bl HH B g UL FIUC Iifee URT (S9N a7 | eraroier =
J TE U1 Fofr B o, THRMSATHRS 7 i auf # oo SISy et 3F W I by Y HRURE S H dwkht
DI T 3R AR ATl BT YA BRI §Y, IFF Usel ¥ A BT Y HRUNS o H Heldl dl & AR gAY HRURE
P D AT D FET H A B AGISIS /ISR N & FHe T ST 1RV | THISHIvRS 4 9 faid
04.12.2019 DI Hol ST HHI . 121 IR f&A1H 09.12.2019 BT f&am , |1y &1 D 12.06.2020 BT ford = & AreH
A TAMSHITHATE 1 YHUSH! RTINS I Bl Jiad fhar fh Ffd HRUARE PR B YA 9RA GRDBR Pl {HaT
ST €, A AFe” 3T &1 fax ad 2012—139 AT ST R8T 8, Y S A¥el Bl JAIDR [d9NT & FHel Tl
B {HAT P TAAZUITHAE P HRURE PR B A0 & 918 I, §H AR ARGR (I STaahdl [aHHT) BT R
U YH HIAT BT | BT, fad af & foly UHensHvHag & @l WR A<l 99 2019—20, &7 He4 (WY, ThyeH)),
UH . Y9—UHT / Th—255 / TAATSHITHINE / 2019—20 /416 f&1d 13.11.2020 5 WAl BT 31fdrd woee 3R gReeft a9
% foIy "TAEHITHINS Hs 3R SIMST B UR IffSTd TSl DI AT B & oIy IFRAT dFd! IR $ART faam o |

51. AIUR 91

THIMSHITHINE HRT WRBR 3R Al /g IR Yo & A= d=irerai / f9rT /dredl 3 &) O 981 Gar §
I8 URATTRI & HEf<add oxal & | 9 faxia Fdl (SuweR) & gl & TR, d TR HIUAsE &l
AT BT RS BT 40% AT IAA AAH b AT @ 2, Sdid bs AFCl § &I B A AL BSRR DI TG
W R, TAMSHIUHRATE Bl B ATGe Yof W T SIRT HRAT Uedl © IR S IRl & IR0 /RIo1 & 4915,
TS HIVHRNE BT BRI JATQR H YA ! & AJAR Al DI YA SIRT BRAT BT | g P AGAR| W, TR
et # aRerd gan, e daciaxe faxiia faavoll &1 dic |. 9 # fHar a7 €, 31 A/ 2022 T6 43678.92 T 3.
(et av 34,869.32 WG %.) I VMR, TIATSATTHAE GRT g9 M1 B a=felt & forq wefera fawm /wrei o wwa—

AT O A BRIATS @ S B |

52. Hieve o1 ¥, a1 aqell @ |9Eqn 9 81, @ fay grae
TS HITHATS fad a9y 2018—19 ¥, 10 I¥ ¥ 310 3@y & ol 100%, 5—10 81 & 19 50% 3R 3—5 a4 & 44
25% WR fI9R R Y AR 370 @Al § e ol & oy "HIae='#R &7 & |

foa af 2021—22 & forw o9 <fery IR &) agen & F9ET T8I 2, S9a fog WTaeTE 99 &1 FHIe 3R 99 W
U SHATY G & oI G HITHATS # U AT BT T3 B 7 o |

BRI A B FTAR AT DI AR & MER W, fa ad 2021—22 & oY TSNS’ & WIadl & fog o7
Wiy IR &1 agell @ FraeT T8 oY, & folt 39 daR "uEw” fey Ty

80 |

(ar@Er #)
3rafer qHTT afdn % ® uraa | fa<r oo 2021—22 | fa<r a9 202021
¥ yraem ¥ yraem=

10 95t & 2@ 7452.00 100 7452.00 6300.00
5 10 q¢ 2852.00 50 1426.00 2028.50
39 5 a9 1487.00 25 371.75 180.25
53 ayf a@ 31887.92 =T =T 3=y
B 43678.92 9249.75 8508.75




53. IMyfdaaisil &I JRF &1 g |

ThueH! Jiffee 7 fa 9y 2017—18 &1 SO HRd FHI IR b “sgfciaaiail &l €1 S dTell 984.16 oG %. I
AR 3 af @) Irafdy F Y s RN oY | 3 9 A i QRN Al B & BRYT 39 ey # uraene faar S @iy
o7 | IR-VEYTE & URVIFRGHY aeia UREURTT $I Afed qarm TAT 3R WGl bl HF Il TAT 598 a9 bl
e Bx fegmar T |

THUSH 31T & SURRD IR Bl & H G g, THSMSRAIATS # FHleT Bl 3iR (o S o & oy vap
AT &7 78T fHar T o 3k 39 AT BT syfiwatel & R, e fMyem & Fweaer 78t 8, W) a91Y e
qrel TaeTE R e |1 <= off | |fifer 1 smgfdddiat @1 e i & Hag |, S 3 9¥ ¥ 3Af¥e & oI g g,
& U "ITaeT" S B SIRINT BT oY | TEIER 97 a¥ 2018—19 | 2020—21T% @& oY oam # Wraem= o T o |

IWRH & AR W, T a9 2021—22% AYfeipdie & ARH & Ay H Ugg HI AJET g VP AR g1 T8 |
AT & e W, fax af 2021—22 H 31.03.2022 TF 3 ¥ ¥ A F IHRAT AR R 57 FARISTT B AT
Bl 7, B folT 894.32 T %. (fUwel ¥ 2020—21 & 977.22 AR T. & GabIdel) BT W@ AT 37 2, THDUA URATST
DI BISH |

54. HIURe GEIfTe ARSI (RIT3mR)

3 e #
ikl BT T gy 99 B g
31 ¥1d 2022 31 ¥Td 2021
99 & SR HU gRI Gd BT S dqTell gD A 112.00 57.20
forey \ufy & At/ Srferreer & srerar o Sewd W by Y e @y wfr - 57.20
99 & QR AR gd auf § fdhy 7u rfalkd aaa - -
9y & 3T H B [(d)=(@)—(b)—(c)] 112.00
fUoe 9ui & [t A -
woeny fafaferl @1 wpfa o Bt e | died B B
# IRTeE # IR

FUAATSHITHINTS H HIRUNT AHINTD STRETI (HITH3TR) & < =g fad av 2021—22 # 112 &g %. (sl ay digq
DA ®e H 57.20 ARG B. BT ANTG fhan) BT graern fbar 2| Feerd Hea & 26.03.2022 PI gs 12191 9o ¥ Ay
M7 el & AR, TARMSAITRITS ¥ el d6 @rar @ierm 3R Hu- afifem 2013 & d=d FgiRd 112 org . @
If3T BRATART @Y, §9 I BT 29.04.2022HT NUH HIF B H S a7 TAT|

55. ITIPY AR fawl & anfe & fore graem=

ThUSH! 3fifge 7 faT ad 2017—18 & forU &) 7S oRaraie & urar o f& “fad 99 2007—08 & 2014—15 T ST /
MR B FI H Gell g 2,281.03 ARG . BT AR BT YA AR TN & U1 Ffda 2| I R0 3 a9 4 31D
R B & RO 39 Gag H HU gRT Waee By S ARy o | oifdd #1g wraw e far e | g9 i
P foTU IS Uae 7 B b BN gaa GRGURTAT BT 31t BN adraT TAT 3N UG bl HH B 91l i o
I H gig fawml |

UhUSH! e & SWRITh R P a9 # @ gy, a9 ay 2018—19 & oY ax RS, a9l IFA Gl &R 3fR
BT gAY W SISIYE fS9a el & F9IET 81 8, & [ag H UTaeT™ 9910 S g FHIET B MR 37T TRy
o & oY UAenSIgwaens H Udh AT &1 e far 1A o | A &1 RNel & YR WAk 99 2021—22%
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o GaTE TS H $9 UHR Uraee ey U —

(et )
faavor 31 "1d 2022 &1 | 31 W14 2021 &I
AT g3AT qY AT 3T a8
3T PN 1835.88 1835.88
famr & /e /e 117.91 117.91
B sﬁ—sfeﬁ R rsitd 2.54 2.54
Bl 1956.33 1956.33

TS HITAATE 311 1 R Bl agell & Gag H Fafdd = ARBINAT & A1 rgad] dRATS IR T & MR A 31
Al @ ARBIRAT & A1 Iod TR W 91 § 8| TaJAR, It A0 DI Il 31 1 wiifera 2|

56. 3Ydfeld 3ATScH

faT ¥ 2017—18% folU TRRIEHITHINE & WAl &1 FHIET &Rd 7, ThusH! 3iffse S\ 3 urar o & 31 w1 &
JyrEfeld a¥gall & JoUe ol IR A UlT AT [T Hod & d19 3k & Hae ¥ 99 a¥ &I i@l | e
T8I {6y Y o | TEIER, U I 3R gAId el 4ed & 919 31.03.2019 &I vl awgell & o fa ad
2018—19 @ fory TaenEAIvHens & @rdl # fhy WM arel “Wae sl Sid &R 3R SIRNAY S B UHRSHITHalTs
H v |l garg T o IR T ST B P 31.03.2019 BI Al URFURT Hal & U Hed Bl A
9T & wu ° forar Sv QiR saforv, 99 a¥ &1 oRkgl § 9 Hee § BIg UIael= $RA &I JaeIhdl el o | 39 UhR,
IS 91 B o<t a¥ 2019—20 MR 2020—21 3R fo<T I 2021—22 & foIU ), TAMSHITHRMNE @Y AT H BIS HIGe=’
I o7 | BT, HURRIl & i AAUF & 3MUR W, 31.03.2022 TP AFaAferd FURT HE BT AFATT &I 0.90 AR
3. (Uoet 9§ 206 oG %)) o]

57. 9% @& 3d A ¥ 3R faar 7 fHU 71U Iored &1 graEm=

Y 2019—20 AR 2020—21 & fa<iig faa=or @7 w¥fiem o=a gu, divsd siffse (Higsh) =1 9r &, fied 9 & forg fag
TV 2 ¥ GaOT arami & o oar qedel § $Is wrau 8l fBar 9 <@ o, e forg fa av & ofd # offed
i fo<T faa=or @1 sifcd wu o7 @I Al I ygel =rer urad gU o | Yigsd 3iifSe o1 9 @@l & folg 3o uraer=
PR DI GIId T o | TR, =are], fa<d a¥ 2021—22 & SR 77 99 2021—22 & &G AT, el MR 9957.54
A B, & o grae™ fhy U | @1l fad 9¥ & SRM fdd 9 By 70 IoRa & WU H 943913 G T DI AR
I Y &S @ T3 | (Ureel av T)

58. ohigad! AfereRAl & guer arfia

qheR, 2017 H, 4,73,37,107 /— . B SIUAC! URRISHITHIE §RT 39 &RV UR STAT fHar 137 o & S a9 fasbareit
& By AT g (B S, oAfdhT T HH TG B9 & BRYT, S AHT T SIYACT BT YA el garm | HeriRor
SHRIPTRY gRT f&Hieh 25.00.2020 BT THY WHT FHI & ST & BRI T[A WIRST PR AT 7T | THISHTHATE 5 18,
12,2020 T IMYH (dTe—m), FoIge], el & |He ST hy U ffReh &R @1 aroll & oy i @, offdhe
HIAT MY 75U WIRS BR AT AT [TAATGHITHAE SIYACT [0 # U 715 31Ul SRR R Bl Hfshar H
2 AfpT 39 I f3am T ¥ RS WRAR g fegmer &1 Mo fhar i enft ara ¥

59. U1 3 DU AT, 2013 F GRT 248 AT B AfRAFTIH, 1956 P eIRTH ded fa<a ad
2021—22% <IRIF HUFRT © 1A DIs oi-ie A8l fhpar v |
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60. dIfds—19 yHId

HUAl 7 BIfde—19 | FfSd HETART | Ure I3, Arafey o1 iR o= gR¥guRiat / <udmait @y rfie wfdr wR wrfad
UqTdl BT 3Mbol- fhaT 21 30 H8T™R) & dROT df¥ge anfefe Refoal & dufag vfesr & sifFR=admei @ d&fta
gRUTRAT BT fABRad B § SUAl 1 59 a7y faa=on & FgaeT @ Al &1 gar & sidRe 3R aredl Al &
START fobar 2| aaaE [fY a@, due -1 ey [Frer © 6 39 sl & MR R difds—19 &l ywra Hifad T8l
2| HEFRI B TP & PRI, HUN I § Fgayol AFRFddrel, afs 18 8, & ugaH o gg e R TR
el e |

dic 4. 61. fUBa a9 & IATdsl &1 gAdfHor
FHUT A A 9§ & TRl B g Bg e a¥ & afidwel @l R ¥ aifiga fear 2

arst @ Ry # g Rud & SR AWM sHRifead Jex Al 6 @
AT S Tl & forg fey® Wea & forg ol 59 B ¥
IS ETBR / ATeS hISce
HUA! TR HIT 00240591

g0/ — g0,/ — 80,/ —
RIEEN gaer fders ey
Al §. 430967 SIRMSTH: 09512006 SIMSTH: 02677079
80/ — 80,/ —
=1 o A e
U= aferd THY /Y
THITH: 31700
I - =|'s§ Il
&1 : 28.07.2022

| 83



TS AFT-aAetes Bt Rue
ForaTe shfAfewd dce afffor s & Tl & fou

fa<ia faawon & d@Edar w KRuid

g faar

I 2T ShiAfed Hex AfdRieT §&. (‘du) fa<ia faavon &) oraradien &) 8, 7 31 719 2022 dh &) o
¥fic 3R I vd &y oRdn, sfdacT # uRacs & fdaror ok g9 fafY .} A< 8¢ a¥ & fog e yars fderor aiiR

AEAYYl oi@id AR TR AR Ud 31 ARATHS ol 9 faxiig fqaxor & forg e o |

AN R H 3R AR FAH SN & JJAR T 84 QU 77 WElaRvll & AR |, 4RI Ruid & R & forg
A IS | afofd AMel & U9Tdl b BISHR, SURRD (A fdaRvr Husil I 2013 ("S1¥RM")® SR Iferd
O AR IFGR UG A © 3R 31°ME, 2022 6 HUAT & A\l & RIT & qR § R H AW ©9 |
R fey 7u oar Rigidl & orgwd Ud 39 fafd &1 w9 gu 9 & forg e 9 oiidres o, sfdad # uRads &iR
U< AHET yare W Sfud vd frwe gfie divr mem aRd # |

I I BT TR

1.

R I (Al 18), AUR WA 9), AEHI A U< IH (AERIAT e URISHNEHT) (I 20), <7 GReT
ST (Al 17), 3R AMYfidaisll Bl 3R (A1 8 3R 14) ¥ AT B ¥ ARAT 99 & T 9 gfe 3R /AT
ARG & A & | JdeH $T6 AT B d ufhar # € iR 9@ faar ® 6 wara, afe a1 |1, wewyet
B BT | $99 UBR DI Yite U1 / Uil 81 31R /AT IROMHT FARIGI SR W@Rey JAIE &Y AR /AT [T /
TYATRA TR AT I H 9§ & ofd # gHfea g fhar S Haar 2

TTEDl I T AFH WP 1,92,452.00 ARG . B, b el H faxi fAaRor & Alc 20 &1 Fed I | -l T
WAl BT FHET | U 3Bl UT8dh! BT yar gofdr & O &7 JeRIfY, a9 & A 89 W), 3 9§ 9 47 31fds
AT A IHIAT 2 | SIGIR AEold 89 & IushAl (TUay) 8k R WRGR & JaA1erdl o 1 s+ 1Rl &l
HUAT gIRT fafi= Sl § ST T—3TelTT =ToTex IR uRUTdar Mwisel & A1l Arafey o § a9 fhar T g |

9 T B &F H I@d g b AEdl & AR & dey # G [ivpy [ svgeh w8 S ' &R wmafy o
T e & TS 2, U4 B UV UAD IAAH DI AHET PR Bl Mavhdl g R 59U UlEd bl geferd g o
AN & IR R A0 HRAT BT | 59 YPR & T AH & Hag H§ gwdrdal, Agaell AR [Jaroll & Suere
T 89 B Rafd ¥, 399dT BAaR SUTL HRIT SH & YR Wawd HURT / <IdRl iR /AT M /0 1R

geqell URTH Hafid Al Bl Ay g9Ed GE E H Udre T g 8§ |

[Tl BT fIe6! W T & Ag@yel @I ([Aie(vii) iRAR 2(xi)) & Haw # HUAl WRA oamE®) a9
2015 RT FEiRa UT8d! ¥ gddl ¥ ' WR AR TGMED 115 HI GUTel T8l fbar 1 2, g9 Fhzor
P BRI & T JIH I1GT BT T8 aT B AR B THT GOl HR P qIY TA A ATATT g7 THT GOl
e S <& 7 | Aol Mm@ W 47 & 989 g% @ A1 ST U BUHl 3l RUIE @ 18 3m /
2 3R HURT /ST WR &l & YR B8 P 30 fadAl & AR A 7 KT B & BRY, aod H GHRad
&l fHar 1 AT B

39 dPh HUAI YA 99 & T 7 IR by 377 af & ofd & 915 fAsvae & ura are=i & Heer H 3FTel fay
af % @t iR HERT amg BT g5t BR W@ oY | 9f B ERE BUN A 9§ B 3T B 916 W W AT b forw
995754 G . Wd 3R 9439.13. @ %. & Waed 97 9 & omy (kg fderor & Ae 9. 58 & <) &I
Trae fhar R |

glelifs, BUN F DU (AR oIl A7) 2, 2015 gRT iR "ok e, ciaiee srgam=i vd Fffedr o
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IRETT" IR AR T /9D 8 & WIaE | Bl AgUTeld Fel [har &, [ 78 kgl Hifd & a9 R Usel a¥ &
fo=ira fqexell & qd el g ®U &l ATazaehdl il & | dagaR O a9 2020—21 & Hag H Uod 9 & sfids! Bl
Al 99 & 3 d% U =TEl gY fashdl e & Hey # Wl iR GefSd I BT g @ HeW # 98T fhar S
=Y o7 | RUIC @1 T3 M W 3H & Y9G /ARG @] AFD 8 & HeH H 59 THR & AT & URMH W6y
HUAT BT I AR GRGURTAT / TAARAT BT IdA H GHARed 1 fHa1 S |eban 2 |

SRIB WRI(1) & @) # SfeaiRaa wal &1 oy & fore Fulrt /<gami iR /31 o /< vd 9y & forv e 9 ifd®
M R wHTa BT GARFd T fmar S wehdr 2 |

T HUAT ARTIH, 2013 B GRT 143(10) & Ted Ffd< oIl (TAY) TR AFDI & STHR AU <@l WIel &1 2 |
I AFDl & d8d AR RreiRal @ ot g Rurd @ faxii faarol o) orar wdiemeg oEries & SoReia |
T fham AT 2| B9 ARAR el oEhR AR §RT SN MR HEdl & JFAR HUl A W@ad &, d1ef & fdd
JMITIHATT Gl HUT AT, 2013 B WAL AR SHS ded FIH & ded A<y faarvil &7 9R) oramoRier & forv
TR € 3R 7 34 STMaTadarsil Ud MR Hiedl & AR AU+ 3 Afdd Rr=eiRal & @11 fHar g | 89 WaR
FRAT 6 B S olRAToIeT el U fhar § 98 SR AN W & Y YR Ue aR =g U SR SUIH B |

WRATY Al AWIBR R §RT SRI 3MTAR FlEdT & AR, DUl JETIH, 2013 & A=l AR IHD d8d (14l
& IR i fqavoil &1 AN oadRe & forg urifiTes Afde smaeaddmall & W1 IR - $71 STaadhdrsii 31k
3R WiedT & AR U 3T Afdd IR SIR@l B g1 i 2| 89 WHR IR & [ g7 1 oraroien el
oI fhar 298 AR AR @ U QMUR UeH &7 8] A 3R SUTH ¢ |

SHRY IATH Aex
T YR oGl A ORI faavol & Aie 3. 43 @) 3R &0 < €, STgl Wdboll Bl ¥, 78 el § wau & ddy
H gTe-e WdfdelRd §RT 931.50 T 5. Y & 3T ddb UoiIdR & oIy ofdd € |

IRRH WUTH! § RAIE fhu 70 qial & dder § 898 I § BIs daolid A8t fbar ar 2|

fa<ia faawor 3k S99 W dErdias @ Ruld @ 3rear 3 Ser)

HUHT B P Hed I WHBNI & folv SRR € 18179 SIFGRI § U=l &I aiffe Ruid § e SHery ) &
oIfe s faig fAavor 3R 39 aiemmierd &1 Rure Infie 87 8 59 oraNiers & Rad & afy & 9 afife
Rure g SuTe BRIT O &1 I=E 2 |

focig faaRol WR BRI YT H R SFGRT A T8l 8§ R 89 99 IR bl i YR & mearad fshy¥ ®I aa<h
Bl BN |
o faaRon &) BRI oaT TR & Hay #, 3N e & 6 SR ugar T8 3R SHeRN © SUAel 89 R
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BN | HUAT AFAFTIA, 2013 B GRT 143(3)(i) & Ted, T $H UR 37T T b B & o W IeRare fb @
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PUT UG PR © IR I© T Hedl 3R 3 AMS! Qd T8l AN 8l, WO GRET SURN & DRI AT < 8 Sl
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AR @RS AR fIaRer IR &R BT STFANT o1 B ol o 3MawId WU I &ol [$Y Y B AR b Hui B
a3 & daed HU & Hae IR Feval & AfeR & AR fhu o1 = 89 &R (3) FHu & Fuly &
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dgd ARA & [=iz1® vd Al AJ-TR121b &l fewmivri
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oafdy B A 2022 T B AT a2 3G Y earq | ¥ 9o ® R G T F AR H gALenEAarE | e
T fhar Tar | gRASHT H 319 dF 106.05 RIS femoft et ot g2 & |
%, SR Y ST g& 2 | SRIHH & # @A §C, §9 I 3 5 31 SR
aferdl @ e @ <RM ug wrr wn | B
IMEUBS], THSATSIAS (WS 2021) 7 YE PEA G
g IordT b gemdfte IgAreH, URId A
gRR¥re 3R fawga aRaET Rud (SeR) |Ha
forefl +f TRATSTT Stf¥er ¥ THemEHvaens & o
B ool el fhar T 8| $HD 3@l Ig BT
T B o aRASHT TemEe STgHIeT §RT AT
B & R A b B ey gRI| UANSRITHITE,
JMEUHE], TAgssclals gRT Ry MY IR AfHerd
# ST el 2 |
TWRID GRATSAT & Heel § TAASHITHATE BT AT
SN WIS TE gaT § SR I 431 RIS . BT B
SOB Il 16.31 BRIS B, BN BR AR I dh
TR UITHSTE Pl T e 8% © |

1. foi 9 @ SRM MUerr U IRSRIE AMTe & fJavor 2021—22 68

31.03.2022 dh AfId ARSI HAHAT BT fdaxor

IS TE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(As on 31-03-2022)

Chairman : Dr. Rajendra Kumar, IAS,
Additional Secretary, MeitY

Director : Shri Anil Kumar Nayak, IAS,
SS & FA, MeitY

Dr. Jaideep Mishra,
JS, MeitY

Shri S. K. Marwaha,
Scientist G and Group Coordinator, MeitY

Shri Sunil Kumar,
Scientist-G, NIC

Shri Inder Pal Singh Sethi,
Scientist-G, NIC

Shri Rajiv Rathi,
Scientist-G, NIC

Ms. Alka Misra,
Scientist-G, NIC

Ms. Suchitra Pyarelal,
Scientist-G, & SIO (Assam), NIC

Shri Ajay Singh Chahal,
Scientist-G & SIO (HP), NIC

Shri Prashant Kumar Mittal,

MD, NICSI
Company Secretary : Shri Sunny Jain
Auditors : M/s. Agarwal & Saxena (CR0604),

Chartered Accountants,
I-79, 7th Floor, Himalaya House,
23, KG.Marg, New Delhi-110001

Registered Office : Hall No. 2 & 3, 6th Floor, NBCC Tower, 15th,
Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi-110066

Bankers : Union Bank of India, Bank of India, CGO Complex Lodhi
Road, Union Bank Of India, Punjab National Bank, State
Bank of India, Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi and ICICI Bank
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NOTICE
27th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given to the Members of National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (NICSI) that its 27th Annual General
Meeting is scheduled to be held at shorter notice on Monday, 26th December, 2022, at 03:00 PM at Conference Room No. 4009,
4th Floor, Ministry of Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics Niketan, 6, CGO Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi —
110003, to carry out the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the Income and Expenditure Account of
the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022, the Directors’ Report along-with the Auditor's Report and comments
of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon, and

2. To Fix the Remuneration of Statutory Auditors for Financial Year 2022-23 appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under section 142 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-

(Sunny Jain)

Place: New-Delhi Company Secretary
Date: 22.12.2022 (M, No. A31700)

TO:

1. All The Members

Also:

1. The Chairperson, NICSI
2. All the Board of Directors of NICSI

And also:

1. M/s Agarwal & Saxena, Chartered Accountant

2. M/sJN Mittal & Co., Statutory Auditor, NICSI

NOTE:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/herself.

2. As per rule 19(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a member of a company registered
under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (erstwhile section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956) shall not be entitled to
appoint any other person as his / her proxy unless such other person is also a member of such company.

3. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered office of the company,
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-

(Sunny Jain)

Place: New-Delhi Company Secretary
Date: 22.12.2022 (M, No. A31700)
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Directors’ Report

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the Twenty Seventh Annual Report on the business and operations of
National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (“the Company”) with the Audited Statement of Accounts and the Auditors’
Report thereon for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2022.

The Summarized Financial Results for the year ended 31st March 2022, as compared with the previous year 2020-21, are as

under:
Financial Highlights

(Rupees in crores)

S. No. Description 2021-22 2020-21
(A) |Income:

1 Revenue from Operations 1402.13 1282.02
2 Other Income 75.51 74.59
1477.64 1356.61

(B) | Expenses:
1 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 179.56 119.84
2 Services Support Expenses 1082.83 969.83
3 Employees Benefits Expenses 9.64 8.68
4 Finance Cost 8.99 9.53
5 Depreciation and amortization expenses 65.98 65.62
6 Other Expenses 68.84 51.59
1415.84 1225.09
Income/(loss) before tax (A) — (B) 61.80 131.52
6 Tax expenses 15.63 33.29
7 Income/(loss) for the year 46.17 98.23

(1) Operating Margin

The Board of Directors in its 121st & 122nd meeting held on 26.03.2022 and 03.06.2022 respectively had approved the revised

rates of NICSI's Operating Margin for all types of Projects / Services as under:

Project Value (Amount in Rs.)

Rate of Operating Margin

Up to 50 Crores 9%
More than 50 Crores and upto 100 Crores 7%
More than 100 Crores 5%

(2) Dividend

The Company is registered under (earlier Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956) Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as
per the provisions of the Section, the Company is prohibited to pay any dividend to its members.
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(3) Transfer toreserves
The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves i.e. General Reserve, Capital Reserve, Capital Redemption Reserve etc.

(4)  Grading of NICSI By DPE

Financial Year Grading by DPE as per MoU Composite
Score based on Audited Data

2020-21 Exempted

2019-20 Good

2018-19 Poor

2017-18 Fair

2016-17 Excellent

2015-16 Excellent

(5)  Ongoing Projects/Activities in F.Y.2021-22
National Knowledge Network (NKN Project)

Initiated in March, 2010, NKN Project is approved by the Ministry of Electronics & Information Technology (MeitY) for
a period of 10 years at a cost of around Rs.5990 crore. NIC is the Implementing Agency for this project, while NICSI is
assisting in procurement and providing IT Support. The Project is to establish high speed data communication network
which would inter-connect institutions of higher learning and research to enable creation, acquisition and establishing
of knowledge resources amongst them. It would also facilitate collaborative research, countrywide classrooms etc by
commissioning links to the institutions connectivity to NIC District Centres, setting up Centres in the States/UTs. MeitY has
extended the project for two year i.e. up to March 2022. During FY.2021-22, NICSI has received Rs.500 crore from MeitY for
this project, with total fund received till 31.03.2022 being Rs.5,134 crore. However NKN Project has been further extended
by MeitY by one more year i.e. up to March, 2023 within same financial outlay.

(6)  During FY. 2021-22, NICSI had received 1997 new projects for implementation from different Ministries/Departments.

(7) Business Divisions in NICSI.
Products Business Division (PBD)

PBD aims to facilitate Productization, Standardization & Promotion of NIC/NICSI software applications at national &
international market in South Asean, African, Latin American etc. MEA consent to be obtained for each foreign project.
Cost to be flexible as its development is met out of NIC Budget.

Central of Excellence for Data Analytics (CEDA)

Kick starting & fast tracking adoption of advanced analytic /machine learning capabilities by making it locus of expertise &
excellence in Data Analytics field. It would provide quality data analytic services to Government Departments at all levels
by identifying appropriate tools, technologies, deploying people with right expertise & help in solving complex policy
issues.

Cloud Services & Data Centre Business Division

NICSI is implementing Cloud services from NDCs at Shastri Park, Pune & Bhubaneswar. New division has been set up to
ensure more efficient & effective management of existing Cloud services & for future.
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(8) Highlights for F.Y. 2021-22 compared with activities in F.Y. 2020-21

1. Proforma Invoices (Pls) Details.
(Rs. in Crore)
Service Type FY.2021-22 F.Y.2020-21
Number of Pls | Total Amount | NumberofPls | Total Amount
issued of Pls issued of Pls
Manpower 4064 785.06 4055 738.42
Miscellaneous 3130 562.75 3009 253.85
Network 114 2498 170 27.05
Roll Out 29 3.29 92 11.63
Security Audit 106 152 138 1.45
Website Development 189 70.19 209 81.89
GeM - 55 4276
e-Office 254 75.81 347 115.06
e-Granthalaya 240 0.84 259 093
Software-OCl - 4 116.12
Other Composite 919 1153.58 952 849.64
Vendor’s Proposal Based - 39 129.62
Grand Total 9045 2678.03 9329 2368.42
8.2. Work Orders (WOs) Details.
(Rs. in Crore)
Service Type FY.2021-22 FY.2020-21
Number of | Total Amount| Numberof |Total Amount
WOs issued of WOs WOs issued of WOs

Manpower 6679 851.76 6535 758.13
Miscellaneous 69 14.78 68 43.75
Network 185 27.05 280 34.30
NKN 76 107.12 158 505.12
Roll Out 38 346 122 14.31
Security Audit 108 1.40 139 2.52
SMS 1505 94.75 1145 101.32
Website Development 241 177.65 217 97.21
LPC, GeM and Other 230 145.49 502 207.27
Grand Total 9131 1423.46 9166 1763.93
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8.3. Segment-wise break-up of new projects received

Item 01.04.2021 to 01.04.2020 to
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

() | Hardware items 1 1
(i | Manpower 666 678
(i) | Website / Software Development 122 142
(iv) | Network 8 28
(v) | General Projects (combined of Hardware, Software, Manpower etc. 786 798
(vi) | Other projects (SMS/BAS/e-Mail etc.) 375 406

Total 1958 2053

8.4. Tenders

Tenders Floated
() | No.of Open Tenders 20 21
(i) | No. of Limited Tenders - 1

Total 20 22

8.5. MoU’s/ Agreements

| Entered into by NICSI with different Departments/Organizations. 73 49

(9) Manpower
As per the manpower profile approved by the government through notification in the Gazette of India dated 03.03.1998,
manpower in NICSI will be on temporary rotational deputation basis along with their posts from NIC.
The total staff strength in NICSI from NIC as on 31st March 2022 was 28

(10) Particulars of Employees
None of the employees of the Company was in receipt of remuneration in excess of limits prescribed under rule 5(2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

(11) Corporate Social Responsibility

National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (NICSI) is a Section 8 Company (Erstwhile Section 25 Company). NICSI's objective
is to promote ICT Solutions and Technology and to apply its profits, if any, or other income in promoting its objects and
prohibited to pay any dividend to its members.

The Board in its 99th Meeting held on 26th December, 2016 had constituted the CSR Committee, with the terms of
reference as per below:

° To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by
NICSI as per the Companies Act, 2013;

. To review and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities to be undertaken by the
company;

d To monitor the CSR policy of the Company from time to time;

. Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board of Directors or as may

be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.
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The Company Secretary to NICSI shall act as Secretary to the CSR Committee.

The quorum for the CSR Committee Meeting shall be one-third of its total strength (any fraction contained in that one
third be rounded off as one) or two members, whichever is higher.

The Board in its 120th Meeting held on November 26, 2021 had re-constituted the CSR Committee, comprising the
following members:

Sr.No. | Name & designation Designation
1 Dr. Jaideep Mishra, AS, MeitY Chairman

2 Shri Sunil Kumar, Scientist-G, NIC Member

3 Shri IPS Sethi, Scientist-G, NIC Member

4 Ms. Alka Misra, Scientist-G, NIC Member

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other provisions, as applicable, the amount to be incurred
on CSR activities for FY. 2021-22 by NICSI works out to Rs.1.12 Crores as per below:

(Rupees in Crore)

Financial year Net Profit Before Tax Average Net Profit 2% of Average Net Profit
(Rs.in Crore) in preceding 3 years in preceding 3 years
(Rs. in Crore) (Rs. in Crore)
2018-19 (97.86) 55.56 1.12
2019-20 132.99
2020-21 131.53

The Company has made the provision of Rs.1.12 Crores in the accounts for FY 2021-22 towards expenditure of CSR. As per
direction of the Board of Directors in its 121st meeting held on 26.03.2022, NICSI had opened a separate bank account and
transferred the amount of Rs.1.12 Crores as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, the same has been contributed in PM
CARES Fund on 29.04.2022.

(12) Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance is an ethically driven business process that is committed to values aimed at enhancing an organization’s
brand and reputation. This is ensured by taking ethical business decisions and conducting business with a firm commitment to
values. At NICSI, it is imperative that our company affairs are managed in a fair and transparent manner. This is vital to gain and
retain the trust of our stakeholders.

Number of Board Meetings and General Meetings Convened in Financial Year 2021-22:

Sr. No. F.Y.2020-21 Date Venue

1 118th Board Meeting 28-06-2021 Through Video Conference

2 119th Board Meeting 29-07-2021 Through Video Conference

3 120th Board Meeting 26-11-2021 Through Video Conference

4 121st Board Meeting 26-03-2022 Through Video Conference

5 26th Annual General Meeting 30-11-2021 Conference Room No. 4009, 4th Floor, Ministry of
Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics
Niketan, 6, CGO Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003
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Sr. No. F.Y.2020-21 Date Venue

6 Extra Ordinary General Meeting 25-01-2022 Conference Room No. 4009, 4th Floor, Ministry of
Electronics and Information Technology, Electronics
Niketan, 6, CGO Complex, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003

(13) Audit Committee

The Company, being a wholly owned Government Private Limited Company was not required to constitute an Audit Committee
under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules,
2014. However, the Board of Directors in its 99th meeting held on 26th December, 2016, keeping in view of good governance
practices, had constituted the Audit Committee in NICSI to review its Financial and Audit matters and ensure that NICSI follows
prescribed financial rules and regulations. The Company Secretary to NICSI shall act as Secretary to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee comprises the following members:

Sr. No. | Name & designation Designation
1 Shri Rajesh Singh, JS&FA, MeitY Chairman

2 Shri S K Marwaha, Scientist G & Group Coordinator, MeitY | Member

3 Smt. Sunita Verma, Scientist G & Group Coordinator, MeitY | Member

4 Shri Sunil Kumar, DDG, NIC Member

5 Ms. Alka Misra, DDG, NIC Member

The 7th meeting of the Audit Committee was held on 26-07-2021 in which the Annual Accounts for the year ended 371st March,
2022 were considered and recommended for submission to the Board of Directors and the Shareholders.

(14) Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company was not required to appoint Independent Directors under Section 149(4) and Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 hence no declaration has been obtained.

(15) Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of
section 178

The Company, being a wholly owned Government Private Limited Company was not required to constitute a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee under Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and Stakeholders Relationship Committee under Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(16) Extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014, Extract of Annual Return is placed at Annexure-I.

(17) Material Changes and Commitments affecting financial position between the end of financial year and date
of the Board report

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the
report.

(18) Change in the nature of business
There is no change in the nature of business of the company.
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(19) Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2021-22 as per Ind AS
Annual Accounts for the Financial Year 2021-22 have been prepared as per Ind AS.

(20) The Conservation of Energy, Technological Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The information on Conservation of Energy and Technological Absorption is NIL. Foreign Exchange earnings was NIL and outgo
of the company during the year was also NIL.

(21) Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
During the year under review, the Company has not advanced any loans/ given guarantees/ made investments.

(22) Related Party Transactions

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 in the form AOC-2 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary
course of business.

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: Nil

(23) Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status and company’s operations in future

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

(24) Subsidiary Company
As on March 31, 2022, the Company does not have any subsidiary.

(25) Auditors

M/s. Agarwal & Saxena (CR0604), Chartered Accountants, I-79, 7th Floor, Himalaya House, 23, K.G.Marg, New Delhi-110001 were
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India as Statutory Auditors of the Company u/s 139 of the Companies Act,
2013, to audit the accounts of NICSI for the year ended 31st March 2022.

(26) Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the company hereby
state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures;,

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the
financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

o) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irreqularities,

d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively.
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f) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

(27) Acknowledgement

The Board places on record its gratitude to acknowledge the cooperation, assistance and guidance extended to the Company by
Central and State Government Ministries/Departments / Organizations and PSUs etc. including NIC and MeitY. The Directors are
also grateful to the Comptroller and Auditor General of India and Auditors for their cooperation. The Board expresses its sincere
gratitude to the members, bankers and clients for their continued support. The Board also wholeheartedly acknowledges with
thanks the dedicated efforts of all the staff and employees of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Chairperson

Place: New Delhi
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2022

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

D) CIN U74899DL1995NPLO72045

in Registration Date 29.08.1995

il | Name of the Company National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated

iv) | Category / Sub-Category of the Company Private Limited Section 25 (Now Section 8 Company) Company

under National Informatics Centre, Department of Electronics
and Information Technology, Ministry of Communications and
Information Technology, Government of India.

V) Address of the Registered office and contact details | Hall No. 2 & 3, 6™ Floor, NBCC Tower, 15, Bhikaji Cama Place,
New Delhi-110066

Tel:91-11-26105054, 26105193

vi) | Whether listed company Yes / No No

vii) | Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and | Nil
Transfer Agent, if any

I1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

Sr. No. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the Product/Service | % to total turnover of the
products / services company

1 Sales of Traded Goods |- 12.48

2 Service and other Income |- 87.52

11l. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr.No. NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of shares Applicable
ADDRESS OF SUBSUDUARY/ held Section
THE COMPANY ASSOCIATES

1 NIL
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
() Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of

the year

Demat

Physical Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical Total

% of
Total
Shares

%
Change
during

the year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt

¢) State Govt (s)

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks / Fl

f) Any Other....
Sub-total (A) (1)
(2) Foreign

a) NRIs -Individuals
b) Other Individuals
¢) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / Fl

e) Any Other....
Sub-total (A) (2)
Total shareholding
of Promoter (A) =
(A)(D+(A)(2)

NIL

NIL

NIL

200000 | 200000

NIL NIL

200000 | 200000

100

NIL

100

NIL

NIL

NIL

200000 | 200000

NIL NIL

200000 | 200000

100

NIL

100

NIL

NIL

NIL

B. Public
Shareholding
Institutions

a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks / Fl

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds
Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(1)
2 .Non-Institutions
a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

i) Overseas

Not Applicable
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b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual
shareholders Not Applicable
holding

nominal share
capitalin

excess of Rs 1
lakh

c) Others (specify)
Sub-total (B)(2)

Total Public
Shareholding Not Applicable
(B)=(B)X(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by

Custodian for Not Applicable
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total NIL 200000 | 200000 100 NIL 200000 | 200000 100 NIL
(A+B+C)
(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sr. Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning Share holding at the end of the year
No. Name of the year
No. of % of %of Shares No. of % of %of Shares %
Shares total Pledged / Shares total Pledged / Changein
Shares encumbered Shares encumbered share holding
of the to total of the to total during the year
company shares company shares
1 President of India| 200000 100 NIL 200000 100 NIL NIL
through NIC
Total 200000 100 NIL 200000 100 NIL NIL

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding:

SL. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
1 No. of % of total No.of | % of total shares
shares shares of the shares | of the company
company

2 | Atthe beginning of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease Not Applicable
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

4 | Atthe End of the year
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and

ADRs):
SL. Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the year during the year
For Each of the Top 10 No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shareholders shares shares of the shares shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding
during the year specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / Not Applicable
bonus / sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year ( or on the date of
separation, if separated during the year)
(v)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sr. Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. Beginning of the year during the Year
For Each of No. of % of total No.of |% of total shares of
the Directors shares shares of the shares the company
and KMP company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Share holding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase NIL

/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer
/bonus/sweat equity etc):

At the End of the year

V.INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

financial year
i) Principal Amount

Indebtedness at the beginning of ASQ the

i) Interest due but not paid
i) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

® Addition
® Reduction

Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year

Not Applicable
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Net Change

Indebtedness at the

end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

Not Applicable

VL.
A.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

NICSl is promoted by Government of India through National Informatics Centre (NIC), as a Private Limited Section 25 Company
(Now Section 8 Company). As per Article 59() of the Articles of Association of the company, the Managing Director shall be
appointed by the Director General, NIC on behalf of the President of India by deputing suitable officer of NIC.

Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount (in Rs.)
No.
Shri Prashant Kumar Mittal
1 Gross salary Rs.40.47 Lakh Rs.40.47 Lakh
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income-Tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
-as % of proﬂ.t Not Applicable
- others, specify...
5 Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act
B. Remuneration to other directors
Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
No. 777 7 1" __71T 71T _— 0 -
1. Independent Directors
e Fee for attending board / committee meetings
* Commission Not Applicable
® Others, please specify
Total (1)
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2. Other Non-Executive Directors

e Fee for attending board / committee Meetings
® Commission

® Qthers, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Not Applicable

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
Sr. | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No. Company Secretary
Shri Sunny Jain Total
1 Gross salary Rs.11.43 Lakh Rs.11.43 Lakh
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(o) Profitsin lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income tax
Act, 1961
2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
-as % Of proﬂt Not Appllcable
- others, specify...
5 Others, please
specify
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority | Appeal made,
the Description Penalty / [RD/ if any
Companies Punishment/ NCLT/ | (give Details)
Act Compounding COURT]
fees imposed
Penalty
Punishment NIL

Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment NIL
Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Chairperson
Place: New Delhi
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1.

The Annual Report on CSR activities

Annexure

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: To spend on the CSR activities as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 including Rules made there under.

2. Composition of CSR Committee as on 31 March 2022:
S. | Name of Director Designation/ Number of Meeting of Number of Meeting
NO Nature of CSR Committee held of CSR Committee
Directorship during the year attended during the year
1 Dr. Jaideep Mishra, AS, MeitY Chairperson 3 3
2 | Shri. Sunil Kumar, Scientist-G, NIC Member 3 2%
3 | Shri. IPS Sethi, Scientist-G, NIC Member 3 1*
4 | Smt. Alka Misra, Scientist-G, NIC Member 3 2%

* Shri. Sunil Kumar, Shri. IPS Sethi and Smt. Alka Misra has been nominated as member in CSR committee with the approval of Board of
Directors in the 120" meeting held on November 26, 2021.

3.

4.

5.

Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the board are
disclosed on the website of the company. www.nicsi.com

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in pursuance of
sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable. Not Applicable

(@  Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135. Rs 55.56 (Rs. In Crore)

(b)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135. Rs 1.12 (Rs. In Crore)

(@  Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years. NIL

(d  Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any. NIL
(e)  Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]. Rs 1.12 (Rs. In Crore)

(@  Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project). NIL
(b)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads. NIL

(©  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. NIL
(d)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(@)+(b)+(c)]. NIL

(e)  CSRamount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial Year | {5 ynspent CSR Account as per sub- under Schedule VIl as per second proviso to
(inRs.) section (6) of section 135 sub-section (5) of section 135
Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer
NIL NIL NIL PM Cares Fund# Rs 1.12 (Rs. In Crore) 30.04.2022

#Amount of CSR spend after the ending of Financial Year 2021-22, and due to which the said amount has been transferred to a scheduled
bank according to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 includes Rules made there under.

() Excess amount for set-off, if any: NIL

SL.
No.

Particular

Amount
(inRs.)

(1)

)

(3)

0

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135

(i)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

(iii)

Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-()]
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(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous Financial Years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)]
7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years: NIL
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
SL. | Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount Amount transferred Amount Deficie
No. | Financial transferred to in Unspent CSR | Spentinthe | to a Fund as specified remaining ncy,
Year(s) Unspent CSR Account under Financial | underScheduleVilas | tobespentin if any
Accountunder | sub-section(6) | Year(inRs) | persecond proviso succeeding
sub- section (6) of section 135 to sub- section (5) of | Financial Years
of section (in Rs.) section 135, if any (in Rs)
135(in Rs.) Amount | Date of
(inRs) | Transfer
1 FY-1
2 FY-2
3 FY-3
8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the
Financial Year: NO
Yes No

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in the
Financial Year:

SL. Short particulars of Pincode of the Date of Amount of Details of entity/
No. | the property or asset(s) property or creation CSR amount Authority/ beneficiary
[including complete asset(s) spent of the registered owner

address and location

of the property]
m @ (3) (4) (5 6
CSR Name Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/
Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per subsection (5) of section
135: The Company has published the advertisement in the newspaper to call the application to take the CSR activities on behalf
of the Company. After evaluation of the proposal submitted by the eligible organization(s)/NGO(s), the company does not find
any proposal which meets the Company objective. Hence the complete eligible CSR amount of Rs.1.12 Crores was transferred
to PM CARES Funds on 30.04.2022.

Sd/-
(Managing Director).

Sd/-
(Chairman CSR Committee).
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Form No. MGT-8

[Pursuant to section 92(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 11(2) of Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CERTIFICATE BY A COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

| have examined the registers, records and books and papers of NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES
INCORPORATED, a Section 8 Company having CIN: U74899DL1995NPL072045 and registered office at Hall No 2 & 3, 6th
Floor, NBCC Tower, 15 Bhikaji Cama Place, New Delhi -110066, India (“the Company”) as required to be maintained under the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022. In my opinion
and to the best of my information and according to the examinations carried out by me and explanations furnished to me by the
company, its officers and agents, | certify that:

A The Annual Return states the facts as at the close of the aforesaid financial year correctly and adequately.

B. during the aforesaid financial year the Company has complied with provisions of the Act & Rules made there under
in respect of:

1. Its status under the Act;
2. Maintenance of registers/records & making entries therein within the time prescribed therefor;
3. filing of forms and returns as stated in the annual return, with the Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Central

Government, the Tribunal, Court or other authorities within/beyond the prescribed time;

Calling/ convening/ holding meetings of Board of Directors as on 28-06-2021,29-07-2021,26-11-2021 & 26-03-2022 or
its committees Meetings as on 24-09-2021, 16-03-2022, 24-03-2022 for Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
and 26-07-2021 for Audit Committee and the meetings of the members of the company as on 30-11-2021 (Annual
General Meeting) and 25-01-2022 (Extra-Ordinary General Meeting) on due dates as stated in the annual return in respect
of which meetings, proper notices were given and the proceedings including the circular resolutions and resolutions
passed by postal ballot, if any, have been properly recorded in the Minute Book/registers maintained for the purpose and
the same have been signed;

5. The Company was not required to close its Register of Members, during the financial year under review.
6. There was no Advance/ loan to Directors and /or persons or firm or Companies referred in Section 185 of the Act,
7. There was no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under Section 188 of the Companies Act,

2013 during the year under review;

8. There were no event of issue or allotment or transmission or buy back of securities/ redemption of preference shares or
debentures/ alteration or reduction of share capital/ conversion of shares/ securities and issue of security certificates in
all instances during the financial year ended as on 31st March, 2022.

0. Keeping in abeyance the rights to dividend, rights shares and bonus shares pending registration of transfer of shares in
compliance with the provisions of the Act. There was no such activity during the Financial Year 2021-22;

10.  Declaration/ payment of dividend; transfer of unpaid/ unclaimed dividend/other amounts as applicable to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund in accordance with section 125 of the Act. Not Applicable as Declaration/Payment of
Dividend is prohibited under Section 8 (1)(C) of the Act.

11.  Signing of audited financial statement as per the provisions of section 134 of the Act and report of directors is as per sub
- sections (3), (4) and (5) thereof;
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

The Company has complied with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to appointment & Cessation of
Directors. Further remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel during the financial year;

. Mr Nagesh Shastry, Rachna Srivastava, Pawan Kumar Joshi, Shahid Ahmed and K. Srinivasa Raghawan has retired
from the Directorship on 30-09-2021,

. Further Inderpal Singh Sethi, Suchitra Pyarelal, Sunil Kumar, Alka Misra, Rajiv Rathi was appointed as Directors on
01/10/2021,

. Further Ms. Geeta Kathpalia and Bulusu Krishna Murthy has retired from Directorship and Mr. Sudhir Kumar Marwaha
was appointed as Director on 31-12-2021,

. Further Ms. Jyoti Arora was retired from Directorship and Mr. Anil Kumar Nayak was appointed as Director on
25/01/2022.

Appointment of auditor as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. M/s. Agarwal & Saxena (CR0604), Chartered
Accountants, was appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India as Statutory Auditors of the Company u/s
139 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the year ended 31st March 2022.

No approvals was required to be taken from the Central Government, Tribunal, Regional Director, Registrar, Court or such
other authorities under the various provisions of the Act;

The Company had not accepted /renewed / repayment of deposits during the Financial Year 2021-22 as per the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013

The Company has not taken the Borrowings from its directors, members, public financial institutions, banks and others
during the financial year under review,

The Company has not made any Loans and investments or guarantees given or providing of securities to other bodies
corporate or persons falling under the provisions of section 186 of the Act;

The Company has altered the Article of Association for change in the composition of Board of Directors by way of passing
of Special Resolution dated 25th Day of January, 2022 during the financial year under review;

Place: New Delhi

for AGRAWAL MANISH KUMAR & CO
COMPANY SECRETARIES

Sd/-

UDIN: F009528D001469899 MANISH KUMAR AGRAWAL

(Proprietor)
CP.NO. 7057
Membership No: F-9528
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National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated (NICSI)
Addendum to the Directors Report for Financial Year 2021-22

Replies to the Observations of the Statutory Auditors Report from
M/s. Agarwal & Saxena, Chartered Accountants on the
Accounts of NICSI for F.Y. 2021-22

AUDIT OBSERVATION

NICSI REPLY

Basis for Qualified Opinion.

1. Certain balances relating to Trade Payables (Note 18),
Trade Receivables (Note 9), Advances received from
customers (Including Grants-in-aid project) (Note 20),
Security deposits Payable (Note 17), and Advances to
Suppliers (Note 8 & 14) are subject to confirmation and/
or reconciliation as at the year end. The management is in
the process of reconciling the same and is of the opinion
that the impact, if any, would not be material. Impact on the
income/expenses and/or assets/ liabilities consequent to
such confirmations being obtained/ received and/ or the
consequential reconciliation being drawn up is presently
not ascertainable at the year-end.

Balance Confirmation Letters have been issued towards the balances
as on 31.03.2022 against all the concerned Account heads, It is
a reqular feature that such letters are issued to the Departments /
Organisations / Vendors etc. but very negligible responseis received
and NICSI takes necessary action on the same. However, efforts would
be further intensified hereafter, to get the confirmations from them in
future.

2. Reference is invited to Note No. 20 of the financial
statement with respect to the Advances received from
customers amounting to Rs. 1,92,452.00 lakhs. A review of
individual accounts reveals numerous customers wherein
balances have remained outstanding for more than 3 years
as at the year- end. These advances, received mostly from
Public Sector Undertakings (PSUs) and Government of India
Ministries, have been invested by the Company in Fixed
deposits with various banks at varied rates of interest and
maturity profiles.

In view of the fact that such idle funds with respect to the
Advance from Customers have remained unutilised and
invested in Fixed Deposits, the management needs to review
each such Advance and return the same to the customer
based on the corresponding terms and conditions of the
contract with each of the customer. In the absence of the
documents, contracts and details being available in respect
of each such Advance, the overall impact of matters referred
to in the preceding paras on the assets/ liabilities and/ or
income/ expenditure consequent to such details being
made available is presently not ascertainable.

NICSI receives thousands of new Purchase Orders from the various
Government Departments /Organisations / Public Sector Enterprises
etc. After completion of the activities against those orders, NICSI
prepares the Final Settlement of Accounts Statement and send the
same to the concerned user, to reimburse the amount against the
excess expenditure or to intimate their complete Bank details for
refund of the unspent balances therein. While some of the users
provide the Bank details, in many cases these are not received and
thus, the unspent amounts remain with NICSI. However, as per Audit
Observation, NICSI would make efforts on priority to review such
cases and to refund the unspent amounts to the users at the earliest.
NICSI would also consider to set-up a specific team to pursue with the
users for early settlement of such amounts in future.

However, for new projects, NICSIBoard of Directors, inits 121st meeting
held on 26.03.2022, while revising the rates of Operating Margin, had
also approved to refund the interest earned by NICSI to the users on
unspent amounts in all the projects (i.e. GIA or non-GIA) from time to
time. This has since been made effective from 01.07.2022.
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3. The Company has not complied with Ind AS 115 on
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” prescribed by
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015
in view of revenue on Sales of services being erroneously
recognised at the time of generating the invoice in terms of
the Significant Accounting Policy (Refer to Note 2 (vii) and
Note 2(xi)) instead of recognising the same at the time of
transfer of “control” i.e. on transfer of the promised service.
Impact of the same together with the default under Rule
47 of the CGST Act on account of non-raising of the invoice
within 30 days of completion of service on the reported
income/ expense and assets/ liabilities of the Company is
presently not ascertainable.

As per NICSI Policy/ practice, it has been recognising its revenue
at the time of generation of Invoice towards Sale of Goods. The
company has duly complied with all the provisions and requirements
of applicable Ind AS, while preparing the financials for FY. 2021-22 and
as per matching concept on Revenue recognition.

4, Hitherto, the Company was recognising expenses and the
correspondingincome in the next financial year with respect
to the invoices received from the vendors after the year
end without accruing the same as at the end of each year.
During the year the Company has however accounted for
such invoices received after the year end by providing for
expenses to the tune of Rs. 9957.54 lakh and corresponding
unbilled revenue of Rs. 9439.13. Lakh (Refer Note 58 to the
financial statements).

The Company has however, not complied with the
provisions of Ind AS 8 on "Accounting Policies, Change
in Accounting Estimates and Errors” prescribed by the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
which requires retrospective restatement of the financial
statements of the previous year on application a new
accounting policy. Accordingly, the previous year figures
with respect to the financial year 2020-21 should also
have been restated in terms of recognising expenses and
corresponding income with respect to the vendor invoices
not received till the year end.Impact of the same on the
reported income/ expenditure and assets/ liabilities of the
Company consequent to such restatement in terms of Ind
AS 8 is presently not ascertainable.

As per observation on previous year’s Accounts, NICSI Board of
Directors had considered an Accounting Policy on "Prior Period
Bookings”, in its 119th meeting held on 29.07.2021 and approved.
In the Financial Statements for the year ended on 31.03.2022, NICSI
has booked the amounts accordingly and provided the provision
under books of accounts. During the current Financial Year 2021-
22 provision has been made for invoices pertaining to FY 2021-22
amounting to Rs. 99.58 cr with corresponding income of Rs. 94.39
crrecorded as unbilled revenue refer No. 58 of financial Statement.

Qualified Opinion on Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on our audit, we have qualified our audit opinion
on the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022, in respect of the System relating to reconciliation/
confirmation of vendor balances as the same could
potentially result in a material misstatement of the
outstanding balances. (Refer to para 1 under Basis for
Qualified Opinion of our Independent Auditors Report of
even date) wherein the existing internal controls need to be
strengthened.

Balance Confirmation Letters have been issued towards the balances
as on 31.03.2022 against all the concerned Account heads, It is a
reqular feature that such letters are issued to the Departments /
Organizations / Vendors etc. but very negligible response is received
and NICSI takes necessary action on the same. However, efforts would
be further intensified hereafter, to get the confirmations from them in
future.

Other Matters
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a) The Company needs to strengthen the existing controls
relating to the mapping of individual items of Property, Plant
& Equipment on their physical verification by introducing
controls where by all the individual items physically verified
are mapped through their specific identification numbers
with the corresponding PPE records.

The existing internal control systems towards Property Plant &
Equipment reconciliation have been strengthened during the year.
However, due to COVID-19 epidemic, the progress has been relatively
slow in following up these items with the concerned. All these
activities have again been taken up and would be completed in the
near future, with proper mapping of identification numbers for Assets.
However, Asset details are being maintained in prescribed registers.
Also, Physical verification of all the Assets is carried out every year by
a 3 member Committee each at NICSI HQ and its units at the close
of each financial year. Similar physical verification of Assets has also
been carried out as on 31.03.2022 both at NICSI HQ and its units.

b) Although the Company implemented the ERP
accounting software w.e.f July 01, 2017, certain control
weaknesses relating to the mapping of individual party
balances and carry forward of opening balances need
to be strengthened and identified based on the existing
controls being validated by a Systems Audit carried out by
an external independent agency.

NICSI had completely adopted the ERP Software we.f 01.07.2017
towards Accounts and other related fields. During the inspection
NICSI Accounts, it had been observed that it needs validation
accordingly, NICSI has got its ERP System validated from M/s Dr.
CBS Cyber Security Services LLP. In its Report dated 06.07.2022
finalized by conducting the onsite Audit, the firm has observed that
“the application is free from various functional errors as per business
requirement. Further, the Audit of Oracle EBS Application Software
& related IT Infrastructure shall be carried out atleast once a year or
at any significant upgradation of process / computer resource. Also,
the Application must be updated to the latest version using strong
encryption & authentication for additional security of user’s personal
data”. NICSl is in the process of Considering the same and would take
appropriate action in the matter.

Place : New Delhi

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/-
Chairperson
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise

Under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013)

CIN: U74899DL1995NPL0O72045
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

Particulars

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Right of use Assets
Other Intangible Assets
Financial Assets:
Others Financial Assets
Deffered Tax Assets ( Net )
Other non-current Assets
Current assets
Financial Assets:

(a) Trade receivables

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

(c) Bank balances other than '(b)' above

(d) Others Financial Assets
Current Tax Assets (Net)
Other Current Assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share capital
Other Equity

Note
No

10
11
12
13
14

15
16

Zin lakhs
As at As at
31-03-2022 31-03-2021

2,336.88 2,377.57
16,035.80 17,227.19
6,275.10 8,682.03
1,077.32 64298
3,578.62 3,167.11
8,544.57 2,316.68
3442917 26,360.57
93,139.05 75,247.95
1,14,759.60 1,04,355.89
2,832.51 3,678.34
17,165.29 13,830.45
32541.67 28,149.64
3,32,715.57 2,86,036.40
200.00 200.00
73,986.10 69,368.66
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T in lakhs

Particulars Note As at As at
No 31-03-2022  31-03-2021
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(a) Lease Liablity 34 14,623.62 15,741.75
(b) Other Financial Liabilities 17 59.46 39.46
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities:
(a) Lease Liablity 34 3,219.74 2,319.17
(b) Trade payables 18
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small 8,491.68 2,668.91
Enterprises
Total outstanding dues of Creditors Other Than Micro 35,590.04 27,898.71
Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(c) Other financial liabilities 19 1,261.16 1,574.46
Other current liabilities 20 1,95,209.26 1,66,150.76
Provisions 21 74.52 74.52
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,32,715.57  2,86,036.40

Significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes (1 - 61) are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002405C

National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Varnika Gupta Inderpal Singh Sethi Dr. Rajendra Kumar
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership N0.430967 DIN: 09512006 DIN: 02677079
Sd/- Sd/-
Sunny Jain Mahendra Pal
Company Secretary FA&CA
ACS: 31700

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28.07.2022

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
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No.

VI

Vi

National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise
Under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013)

CIN: U74899DL1995NPL0O 72045

Income and Expenditure Account for the year ended 31.03.2022

Particulars

INCOME

Revenue From Operations

Other Income

Total Income (I+11)

EXPENSES

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Services Support Expenses
Employee benefits expenses
Finance Cost

Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other expenses

Total Expenses (IV)
Income/(loss) before tax (llI-1V)
Tax expense:

(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax

(3) Tax for Earlier Years adjusted/(Written back)

Note
No.

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Income/ (Loss) for the year from continuing operations (V-VI)

Year ended
31-03-2022

1,40,213.47
7,551.07

1,47,764.54

17,956.39
1,08,283.71
964.22
899.26
6,597.29
6,883.76
1,41,584.63
6,179.91
1,562.48
1,966.91
(411.51)
707

4,617.43

Zin lakhs

Year ended
31-03-2021

1,28,202.26
7,459.87

1,35,662.13

11,983.57
96,983.33
867.72
953.23
6,561.78
5,160.44
1,22,510.08
13,152.06
3,329.11
3,504.78
1,142.35
(1,318.02)

9,822.95
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T in lakhs

SL.  Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. No. 31-03-2022 31-03-2021
VIII Other Comprehensive Income
IX  Total Comprehensive Income for the period (Comprising Income/ 4,617.43 9,822.95
(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the year)
X Earnings per equity share (Nominal value per share Rs.100):
(1) Basic (in 3 29 2,308.72 4,911.47
(2) Diluted (in %) 29 2,308.72 4911.47
Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes (1 - 61) are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Agarwal & Saxena

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002405C

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Varnika Gupta Inderpal Singh Sethi Dr. Rajendra Kumar
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership N0.430967 DIN: 09512006 DIN: 02677079
Sd/- Sd/-
Sunny Jain Mahendra Pal
Company Secretary FA&CA

ACS: 31700

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28.07.2022
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise
Under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013)

CIN: U74899DL1995NPL0O72045

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
A. Equity share capital for issued, subscribed and paid up equity share of Re. 100/- each

Zin lakhs
Particulars Note Amount
As at March 31,2020 15 200.00
Changes during the year -
As at March 31 2021 15 200.00
Changes during the year -
As at March 31 2022 15 200.00

B. Other equity (Refer note 16)

Zin lakhs

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total other
Retained earnings equity

As at March 31 2020 59,014.02 59,014.02
Prior Period Income (Manpower) 531.69 531.69
Surplus/(Deficiency) for the year 9,822.95 9,822.95
As at March 312021 69,368.66 69,368.66
Surplus/(Deficiency) for the year 461743 4,617.43
Total Surplus for the year 4,617.43 4,617.43
As at March 31 2022 73,986.10 73,986.10

As per our report of even date For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Agarwal & Saxena National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 002405C

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Varnika Gupta Inderpal Singh Sethi Dr. Rajendra Kumar
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership N0.430967 DIN: 09512006 DIN: 02677079
Sd/- Sd/-
Sunny Jain Mahendra Pal
Company Secretary FA&CA
ACS: 31700

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28.07.2022
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

(A Government of India Enterprise
Under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013)

CIN: U74899DL1995NPLO72045
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Surplus /(Deficit) before tax and extraordinary items
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization Expenses

Profit/(Loss) on sale of Property Plant & Equipment

Finance Cost

Interest income

Provision/(Recoverable) against Advances

Operating Surplus /(Deficit) before Working Capital changes
Adjustments for :

(Increase) /Decrease in trade receivables

(Increase) /Decrease in loans and advances and other assets
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable & other liabilities

Cash Generated from Operations

Income tax Paid

Income tax for Previous Years

Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Operating activities (A)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of fixed assets

Investment in FDR

Sale of fixed assets

Interest received

Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Investing activities (B)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Interest paid

Payment of Principal portion of lease Liablity

Year ended

March 31, 2022

6,179.91

6,597.30
0.18)
899.26
(5,747.59)
82.90
8,011.60

(8,068.60)
(14,429.92)
42,279.30
27,792.38
(1,966.91)
(7.07)
25,818.40

(1,876.35)
(10,403.72)
0.24
6,551.33
(5,728.50)

(899.26)
(1,299.54)

T in lakhs

Year ended
March 31, 2021

13,683.75

6,561.79
(0.28)
953.23
(7,001.70)
283.65
14,480.44

(7,373.05)
24715
24,903.83
32,258.37
(3,504.78)
1,318.02
30,071.61

(6,198.19)
(28,218.41)
0.44
7,344.04
(27,072.12)

(953.23)
(1,406.73)
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Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Financing activities (C) (2,198.80)
Net increase /(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 17,891.10
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 75,247.95
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the closing of the year 93,139.05
Notes

(2,359.96)

639.53
74,608.42
75,247.95

1) The above statement of cash flow has been repared in the indirect method as said out int the Ind As -7."

Satement of Cash Flows".

2) Cash and Bank Balances at the end of the year consist of Cash and Balances with Banks. The detail of these is

as follows:
X in lakhs
Particulars As at March31, Asat March 31,
2022 2021
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks 54,642.59 29,226.99
Imprest Account 0.50 0.50
Other Bank Balances
Fixed Deposits 38,495.96 46,020.46
93,139.05 75,247.95

3) The above Statement of Cash Fow includes Rs. 112.00 Lakhs (PY Rs. 57.20 Lakhs) towards CSR activities. Refer note no. 55.

As per our report of even date
For Agarwal & Saxena

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002405C

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
National Informatics Centre Services Inc.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Varnika Gupta Inderpal Singh Sethi Dr. Rajendra Kumar
Partner Managing Director Chairman
Membership N0.430967 DIN: 09512006 DIN: 02677079
Sd/- Sd/-
Sunny Jain Mahendra Pal
Company Secretary FA&CA
ACS: 31700

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28.07.2022
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National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
(A Government of India Enterprise Incorporated
Under Section 8 as per Companies Act, 2013)

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
1. Corporate Information

National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (The Corporation’) was incorporated on August 29, 1995 under Section-25 of
the Companies Act, 1956 (Now section 8 of Companies Act, 2013) under National Informatics Centre (NIC), Ministry of
Electronics And Information Technology, Government of India. The Corporation is engaged to provide Total IT Solutions to
the Government Ministries/Departments/Organizations.

The Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated July 28,
2022.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
i Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting standards (herein after
refer to 'Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA'") under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in India.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All
amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest to lakh rupees as per the
requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise stated. Rounding of errors have been ignored.

ii. Current Vs Non-Current Classification of Assets & Liabilities:
An Asset is treated as Current when it is:

. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
. Expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period;

4 Cash or Cash Equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as Non-Current.

A Liability is treated as Current when:

. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

. It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period, or

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
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period.
All other liabilities are classified as Non-Current.
Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are classified as Non-Current Assets & Liabilities.

The Operating Cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing & their realization in cash & cash
equivalents. The Corporation has identified 12 months as its operating cycle.

Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) & Depreciation
(@) Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. On transition to Ind-AS, the company had elected to
measure all of its property, plant and equipment at the previous GAAP carrying value (deemed cost)

The cost comprises of purchase price, borrowing cost, if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the assets to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebate are deducted in arriving
at the purchase price. Subsequent cost is included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the company.
When significant parts of plant and machinery are required to be replaced at intervals, the company depreciates them
separately based on their useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment are replacement if the recognition criteria is satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

(b) Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful life)

Depreciation on the items of PPE has been provided on the Written Down Value Method & at the rates as prescribed in
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The Corporation has determined the useful life of all the items of PPE in alignment
with Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.
(c) Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the income statement when the asset is derecognised. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of Property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Intangible Assets and Amortization

The intangible assets have been initially measured at costs. The intangibles assets have been subsequently measured at
costs less accumulated amortization & accumulated impairment losses. The useful life of the intangible assets may be
finite or infinite. Intangible assets with finite lives have been amortized over their useful economic life as per the Written
Down Value Method. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of Income and Expenditure unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.

148 |



As per companies act, costs relating to computer software and server are capitalized and amortized on straight line
method over their estimated useful economic life of one year, three years, five years and six years respectively. Costs
relating to ERP software are capitalized and amortized on straight line method over its estimated useful economic life of
ten years.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:
Debt instruments at amortised cost

A‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through income or loss are added to the fair value on initial
recognition. After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company recognizes
interestincome, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.
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Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL s a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization
as at amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such electionis allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.
Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirerin a business combination to which Ind AS103 (Business Combinations)
applies are classified as at FVTPL. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of
investment. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.
De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The respective company has transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset or have assumed the obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass- through’ arrangement and

Either the Company:
(@  hastransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b)  has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but have transferred control
of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the continuing involvement of Company. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to

repay.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits,
trade receivables and bank balances.
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The company recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L).

vi.  Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. The fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

. Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy

At each reporting date, the management of the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the accounting policies of the Company.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

This note summarises the accounting policy for determination of fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes as following:

° Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions
L Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
° Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)
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vii. Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met
before revenue is recognised: -

Revenue in respect of sale of goods/service

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Corporation & the revenue can
be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account the
contractually defined terms of payment & excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Revenue in respect of sale of goods/stock & sale items is recognized at the time of generation of invoice or at the time when
controls of the goods have passed to the buyers, usually on delivery of the goods and proof of delivery. Revenue from the sale
of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns & allowances, trade discounts &
volume rebates.

Revenue in respect of sale of service is recognized at the time of generation of invoice or at the time when service completed
to the buyers, usually on proof of service. Revenue from the sale of service is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable.

The Corporation recognizes operating margin at the slab rates prescribed from time to time depending upon the project costs.
Usually the operating margin rates are inversely proportionate to the project costs i.e. higher the project costs, lower the operating
margin rate. Any subsequent decrease in operating margin rate on account of an increase in project costs is accounted for by
issuing corresponding credit notes at the year end or at the time of project closing. The Credit Notes so issued are netted off from
the respective heads of income.

Revenues in excess of billing are classified as unbilled revenue while billing in excess of revenues are classified as contract
liabilities

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income
is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance
income in the statement of profit and loss.

viii. Advance for Grant- in- project from different Ministries/Departments of Government.

NICSI received advance for Sales of good and service from different Ministries/ Departments of Government. These transactions
are normal trading transaction of the entity. Advance received for Ministries disclosure in the financial statements has been
made separately under the head ‘Other Current Liabilities’ as ‘Grant in Aid received from Customers’, as these are normal trading
transactions. These advances are utilized for the purposes of execution of respective projects and if there is balance available with
NICSI at the close of the respective Project, the same is refunded to the Grantor Institution along with the interest (if any). All the
grant in aid amounts are received for the Projects only.

NICSlimplements various orders from the government departments/ organizations towards procurement of hardware/ software
and providing manpower. It takes Operating Margin on the Total cost of each order, as per the rates approved by its Board of
Directors from time to time. NICSI receives fund against those orders from the departments/ organizations as advances. No other
form of government assistance is received by NICSI, from which it is directly benefited. There is no grant of monetary or non-
monetary asset given to NICSI at concessional rate or free of cost.

NICSI fulfils all the terms & conditions attached to the administrative approvals/ sanctions towards release of grants-in-aid by the
Ministries/ Departments.
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ix. Inventories

The Cost of Inventories comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Inventories (including inventory of software’s) have been valued at cost or net realizable
value, whichever is lower on the First-In-First-Out (FIFO) method. Consumable stores have been charged to revenue in the year
of purchase, being negligible.

X. Retirement Benefits

As per arrangement with NIC, the amount towards leave salary and pension contribution are calculated on basic pay and grade
pay of the respective employee based on the percentage prescribed by Government of India and passed on to NIC. The Company
is not liable to pay any other retirement benefits to employees, which shall entirely be borne by NIC in future.

xi. Prior Period Items

Prior Period items are omissions/misstatements in an entity’s earlier period financial statements, including balance sheet
misclassifications. Ind AS 8 requires the rectification of prior period errors retrospectively in the first set of financial statements
approved, after their discovery, by restating the comparative amounts for the prior periods presented in which the error occurred.
However, if such restatement is impracticable i.e. when an entity can't apply it after making every reasonable effort to do so, then
Ind AS doesn'’t require restatement of such prior period items in comparatives of earlier periods.

xii.  Events after the Reporting Period

The Corporation, has a cut-off date approved by Management every year upto which the invoices of the Vendors are submitted
for the services rendered upto 31 March and accounted for accordingly as expenditure in previous year. Income realized till that
date for the period upto 31st March is also accounted for in same financial year. Accordingly, matching concept is ensured in
Accounts. Thus, expenses, towards invoices raised by the vendors after 31st March or actually received late in NICSI after that
date, are booked in next year and corresponding income is also booked in next year, as all these invoices are received after the
scheduled / last date of depositing of GST/ filling of GST returns for March.

Considering the above mentioned accounting matching concepts of expenses and income, GST Provisions & Income Tax
Provisions, The Corporation to book the invoices from the vendors as per said cut-off date fixed by Management and as per the
invoice date/ actual receipt date in view of type of business being executed by company.

The above booking should not exceed 0.25% of total revenue generated in respective financial year.

xiii. Leases

The company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has
not been restated and continues to be reported under Ind AS 17.

As a lessee

The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets
are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate (i.e. average interest rate of government bond -7.75%).

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

— Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.
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- Variable lease paymentsthatdepend onanindexorarate, initially measured usingtheindexorrate as at the commencement
date;

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an
optional renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the company’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and
equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘other financial liabilities  in the Balance Sheet.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of real estate properties
that have a lease term of 12 months. The company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease. Finance leases are capitalised at the
commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs
in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized
in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the company will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset
and the lease term.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified
in an arrangement.

Arrangements containing a lease have been evaluated as on the date of transition i.e. 1st April 2016 in accordance with Ind-AS
101 First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards for classification as finance or operating lease as at the date of transition
to Ind AS basis the facts and circumstances existing as at that date.

xiv. Income taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in India.
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Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off these.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

In situations where company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961, enacted in India, no deferred tax (asset
or liability) is recognized in respect of temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period.

Deferred taxes in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday period are recognized in the year in which
the temporary differences originate.

However, the company restricts the recognition of deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in OCl or equity). Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment
to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income
tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable that future economic benefit associated
with it will flow to the Company.

xv. Impairment of non-financial assets

The company assess, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists,
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company estimate the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating units (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre -tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
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costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the
asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated
as an increase in revaluation.

xvi. Impairment of Financial Assets/Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts

A Provision towards Doubtful Debts is recognized considering 100% for the period of more than 10 years, 50% between 5-10
years & 25% between 3-5 years as at the Balance sheet date.

xvii. Provision towards outstanding Advances to Suppliers

A provision is recognized towards outstanding advances to suppliers which are outstanding for more than three years as at the
Balance Sheet date.

xviii. Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed
by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding
equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issue data later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any
share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board
of Directors.

xix. Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Long term provisions may
be discounted to their present values at an appropriate risk adjusted discounted rate. Short term provisions are not required to be
discounted. The provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.
Provisions are also required to be created in respect of constructive obligations. However, the Corporation was not having any
constructive obligations in the reporting period.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events and the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

xx. Cash and Cash-Equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and cash in hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which form an integral part of Company's cash management.
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2.1 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated
and are based on management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In particular, the Company has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates and assumptions are
required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the various accounting policies are described below
and also in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal,
contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future
events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the
exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions
when they occur.

(@) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

(b) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required
in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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(c) Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Company uses judgments in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of
the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

2.2 Standard issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification
which would have been applicable from April 01, 2021.

Recent Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the
acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received
from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such
sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.

The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its
financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that
relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials)
or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the
Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the “10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether
to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

Ind AS 116 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any
potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were described
in that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

%in Lakhs
Particulars Buildings Furniture Vehicles Office Computers Total
and Fixtures Equipments
Cost
As at April 1,2020 1,985.85 1,599.67 7.02 4,335.20 6,995.16 14,922.90
Additions - 3.82 10.61 45.87 293.63 353.93
Disposals - - - 543 543
As at March 31, 2021 1,985.85 1,603.49 17.63 4,381.07 7,283.36 15,271.40
Additions - 412 41847 305.96 72855
Disposals - - - 0.06 0.06
As at March 31, 2022 1,985.85 1,607.61 17.63 4,799.54 7,589.26 15,999.89
Depreciation
As at April 1,2020 1,105.55 1,312.12 6.68 3,466.82 4,338.98 10,230.15
Depreciation charge for the year 43.06 72.63 1.75 324.11 370.65 812.20
Impairment Loss -
Others adjustment (Refer 2 below) - 1,856.74 1,856.74
Disposals - 5.26 5.26
As at March 31, 2021 1,148.61 1,384.75 8.43 3,790.93 6,561.11 12,893.83
Depreciation charge for the year 40.96 53.96 2.34 361.53 310.39 769.18
As at March 31, 2022 1,189.57 1,438.71 10.77 4,152.46 6,871.50 13,663.01
Net book value:
As at March 31, 2022 796.28 168.90 6.86 647.08 717.76 2,336.88
As at March 31, 2021 837.24 218.74 9.20 590.14 722.25 2,377.57
1. Refer the Note No. 36 for disclosure or Capital commitment for equation of Property Plant and Equipment.

2. During the period from FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20 depreciation on "Computers” to the tune of Rs. 1856.74 Lakhs was erroneously
deducted from the head "Other Intangible Assets”. Since the depreciation on Computers was correctly calculated in terms of the rates
prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, the said regrouping/restatement has not resulted in any financial impact.

The same has been regrouped/restatement during the previous financial year 2020-21 by way of “other adjustments”

Details of title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the Company

Relevant line Description Gross Title Whether title Property | Reason for not being
itemin the of item of carrying deedsin deed holderisa | heldsince | heldinthe name of
Balance Sheet property value the name | promoter, director which the
of or relative of date company
promoter/ director
or employee of
promoter/director
Buildings Hall No.. 2 &3. 6th Floor, | 931.50 NBCC NO Since 2001 | Execution of Title Deed
15 NBCC Tower, Bhikaiji & 2003 | inthe name of NICSI
Cama Place, New Delhi is pending has taken
- 110066 up the matter with
NBCC.”Refer Note -43”
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4, Right of use assets

%in Lakhs

Particulars Right of use assets Total
As at March 31, 2020 21,285.61 21,285.61
Additions 694.52 694.52
Modification of Right 18.18 18.18
Disposals 842.06 842.06
As at March 31, 2021 21,119.89 21,119.89
Additions 1,081.98 1,081.98
Modification of Right -

Disposals -

As at March 31, 2022 22,201.87 22,201.87
Amortisation

As at March 31, 2020 2,360.92 2,360.92
Amortisation charge for the year 2,573.84 2,573.84
Disposals 842.06 842.06
As at March 31, 2021 3,892.70 3,892.70
Amortisation charge for the year 2,273.37 2,273.37
Disposals -

As at March 31, 2022 6,166.07 6,166.07
Net book value:

As at March 31, 2022 16,035.80 16,035.80
As at March 31, 2021 17,227.19 17,227.19

5 - Other Intangible Assets
%in Lakhs

Particulars Software Total
Cost

As at April 1, 2020 17,583.30 17,583.30
Additions 5844.26 5,844.26
Disposals

As at March 31, 2021 23,427.56 23,427.56
Additions 1,147.81 1,147.81
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2022 24,575.37 24,575.37
Amortisation

As at April 1, 2020 13,226.53 13,226.53
Amortisation charge for the year 3,375.74 3,375.74
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Particulars Software Total
Others adjustment (Refer 2 below) (1,856.74) (1,856.74)
As at March 31, 2021 14,745.53 14,745.53
Amortisation charge for the year 3,554.74 3,554.74
Disposals -
As at March 31, 2022 18,300.27 18,300.27
Net book value:

As at March 31, 2022 6,275.10 6,275.10
As at March 31, 2021 8,682.03 8,682.03

1. Refer the Note No. 36 for disclosure on Capital commitment for acquisition of Property Plant and Equipment.

2. During the period from FY 2017-18 to FY 2019-20 depreciation on "Computers” to the tune of Rs. 1856.74 Lakhs was
erroneously deducted from the head “Other Intangible Assets”. Since the depreciation on Computers was correctly
calculated in terms of the rates prescribed under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, the said regrouping/
restatement has not resulted in any financial impact. The same has been regrouped/restatement during the previous

financial year 2020-21 by way of “other adjustments

Note No. - 6 - Other Financial Assets

X in Lakhs
Particulars Non-current
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Security Deposits
Security Deposits 500.60 108.34
Fixed Deposits
Fixed Deposit having maturity more than 12 months* 291.60 291.60
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits
Interest Accured 28512 243.04
TOTAL 1,077.32 642.98

* Fixed Deposit with banks held as margin money deposits against guarantees.
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Note No. - 7. Deffered Tax
The major components of income tax expense for the year.

A. Amount recognition in Income & Expenditure Account:

X in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(i) Income or Loss Section
Current income tax charge 1,966.91 3,504.78
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year 7.07 (1,318.02)
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (41151 1,142.35
Income tax expense reported in the Income and Expenditure Account 1,562.47 3,329.11
(ii) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
Total 1,562.47 3,329.11

B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for FY ended 31

March 2021 and 31 March 2022:

X in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Accounting Income before tax from continuing operations 6,179.91 13,152.06
Income before tax from a discontinued operation
Accounting Income before income tax 6,179.91 13,152.06
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.17% (31 March 2021: 25.17%) 1,555.35 3,310.11
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years 707 (1,318.02)
Government grants exempted from tax
Other Difference 0.05
Due to Change in income tax Rate 1,337.02
Other Assets
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes
At the effective income tax rate of 25.28% (31 March 2021: 25.31%) 1,562.47 3,329.11
Income tax expense reported in income and expenditure account 1,562.47 3,329.11
Income tax attributable to a discontinued operation
Total 1,562.47 3,329.11

Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, provides an option to companies for paying income tax at reduced rates in
accordance with the provisions/conditions defined in the said section and accordingly, the Company has decided to adopt the
new tax rate and recognised provision for income tax on the basis of the rate prescribed in the said section and remeasured its
deferred tax assets/liabilities accordingly for the year ended March 31, 2022
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C. Deferred tax:

Deferred tax relates to the following:

T in Lakhs

Particulars Balance sheet Statement of Income & Expenditure
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Accelerated depreciation for tax 173.68 183.02 9.34 272.86
purposes
Provision for Doubtful Debts and 2,553.06 2,387.43 (165.63) 1,000.43
Advances to Suppliers
Expense disallowed in Current Year 29.43 11.50 (17.93) (11.50)
Allowable in Subsequent Financial Year
Right to use assets net of Lease 822.45 585.16 (237.29) (119.44)
Liabilities
Deferred tax expense/(income) (411.51) 1,142.35
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 3,578.62 3,167.11
Reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

Tin Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred tax assets 3,578.62 3,167.11
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax Assets/(liabilities), net 3,578.62 3,167.11
Note No. -8 - Other Non-Current Assets

Tin Lakhs

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Unsecured, considered good

To parties other than related parties

a) Capital Advance* 6,957.69 1,105.61
b) Advances other than capital advances;

-Advances to Suppliers 1,586.88 1,211.07
Total 8,544.57 2,516.68

* Advance for purchase of office space at World Trade Tower, Nauroji Nagar, New Delhi
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Note No. - 9 - Trade Receivables

Zin Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

To parties other than related parties

Unsecured, considered good 34,429.17 26,360.57
Unsecured, considered doubtful* 9,249.75 8,508.75
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (9,249.75) (8,508.75)
Total 34,429.17 26,360.57
Ageing schedule of Trade Receivables
T in Lakhs
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Not Due | Less than | 6 months 1-2 2-3 More than
6 months | -1year years years 3 years

As at March 31, 2022
Undisputed — considered good 6,115.79 5,059.00 | 6529.00| 4,743.00| 11,793.00| 34,239.79
Less : Allowance for doubtful trade (9,249.75) | (9,249.75)
receivables
Unbilled Trade receivables 9,439.13 9,439.13
considered good

9,439.13 6,115.79 5,059.00 | 6,529.00| 4,743.00 254325 | 3442917
As at March 31, 2021
Undisputed — considered good 494732 9,823.00| 7,506.00| 1,514.00| 11,079.00| 34,869.32
Less : Allowance for doubtful trade (8,508.75) | (8,508.75)
receivables
Unbilled Trade receivables 494732 9,823.00| 7,506.00| 1,514.00 257025 | 26,360.57
considered good

* Provision for Doubtful Debts amounting to Rs.8508.75 Lakh of F Y 2020-21 has been reversed during FY 2021-
22. Further, during FY 2021-22 provision for doubtful debts has been made for Rs.9249.75 Lakh refer Note No. 52.
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10 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

T in Lakhs
Particulars Current Assets
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balances with banks
Saving Account 54,642.59 29,226.99
Others
Imprest Account 0.50 0.50
Fixed Deposit (original maturity less than 3 months)* 38,495.96 46,020.46
Total 93,139.05 75,247.95
* Includes Bank Balances of Sweep Deposit Accounts.
Note No. - 11 - Bank balances other than above
T in Lakhs
Particulars Current Assets
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Fixed Deposit 1,12,588.44 1,03,253.45
Fixed Deposit held as margin money deposits against guarantees 2,171.16 1,102.44
Total 1,14,759.60 1,04,355.89
Note No. - 12 - Other Financial Assets
T in Lakhs
Particulars Current
As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits

Interest Accured

2,832.51

3,678.34

Total

2,832.51

3,678.34
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13 - Current Tax Assets (Net)

Zin Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Income tax paid (Net of provision Rs.8940.87 Lakh (Previous Year

Rs.6973.96 Lakh) 19,001.17 15,666.33
Less: -
Provision for Income Tax (Refund Not Received) (1,835.88) (1,835.88)
(See Notes to Accounts No. 55)
Total 17,165.29 13,830.45
14 - Other Current Assets
X in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Other than Capital Advance
Advances to Employees
Unsecured, considered good 31.96 24.31
Total (A) 31.96 24.31
Other advances
Unsecured, considered good
GST on Advances and Others 30,839.78 2724647
Prepaid expenses 149.41 1.52
Total(B) 30,989.19 27,247.99
Unsecured, considered Doubtful
Sales Tax/DVAT & TDS on Work Contract Recoverable* 120.45 12045
Less: -
Provision for Sales Tax/ VAT (Not refunded back) 117.91 11791
Provision for TDS on WCT (Not refunded back) 2.54 2.54
(See Notes to Accounts No. 55)
Total (C) -
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to Suppliers 1,520.52 877.34




Unsecured, considered Doubtful

Advances to Suppliers 894.32 977.22
Less: -

Provision for Advances to Suppliers (not adjusted/settled) 894.32 977.22

(See Notes to Accounts No. 53)
Total (D) 1,520.52 877.34
GRAND Total (A+B+C+D) 32,541.67 28,149.64
15 - Equity Share Capital
X in Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at

March 31, 2021

Authorised

200,000 (Previous Year 200,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 200.00 200.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

200,000 (Previous Year 200,000) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 200.00 200.00
TOTAL 200.00 200.00

a. Shareholders holding more than 5% share in the company*: -

Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of Equity | Percentage(%) | No.of Equity | Percentage (%)
shares held shares held
President of India through DG, NIC 1,99,995 99.9975 1,99,995 99.9975
Smt. Rachna Srivastava 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
Sh. Nagesh Shastry 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
Sh. Deepak Chandra Misra 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
Sh. Vishnu Chandra 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
Sh.R'S Mani 1 0.0005 1 0.0005
Total 2,00,000 100 2,00,000 100

*The information of Shareholding has been given of all shareholders irrespective of holding more than 5% shares due to held on

behalf of Government of India
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b. Reconciliation of the paid up shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

X in Lakhs
Particluars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 200,000.00 200.00 200,000.00 200.00
Add: - Shares Issued/ (buy back) during the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 200,000.00 200.00 200,000.00 200.00
[ Rights, Preference and Restriction attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to

one vote per share.

d Over the period of five years immediately preceding March 31, 2022, neither any bonus shares were issued nor any shares
were allotted for consideration other than cash. Further, no shares were brought back during the said period.

e. Shareholding of promoters

Promoter name

Shares held at March 31, 2022

Percentage change during the
year ended March 31, 2022

No. of shares | % of total shares
President of India through DG, NIC and Others 2,00,000 100
16 - Other Equity
T in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Surplus as per Income and Expenditure Account

Opening balance 69,368.66 59,014.02
Prior Period Income (Manpower) 531.69
Add: - Surplus/(Deficiency) for the year 461743 9,822.95
TOTAL 73,986.10 69,368.66

* Refer Note no. 45
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17 - Other Financial Liabilities (Non -Current)

Zin Lakhs

Particulars

Non-current

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Security Deposits Payable 59.46 39.46
Total 59.46 39.46
18 - Trade Payables
Zin Lakhs

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Trade Payables
- Due to Micro and Small Enterprises* 8,491.68 2,668.91
- Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 35,590.04 27,898.71
Total 44,081.72 30,567.62
* Refer Note No. 45
Ageing Schedule of Trade Payable
%in Lakhs
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of Total
payment
Not Due | Lessthan 1-2 2-3 More than
1year years years 3years
As at March 31, 2022
Micro, small and medium enterprises - 8,419.36 70.85 1.10 037| 8491.68
Others -| 1878573 | 357.29 650.88 323418 | 2302807
Disputed Micro, small and medium enterprises - - - - - -
Disputed Others - 2,623.21 61.39 11.58 407.13| 3,103.30
Unbilled Trade Payable 9,458.67 - -|  9.458.67
9,458.67 | 29,828.30 | 489.53 663.56 3,641.68 | 44,081.72
As at March 31, 2021
Micro, small and medium enterprises - 2,551.66 316.88 0.10 026 266891
Others -1 20,789.01 891.31 963.37 243461 | 2507830
Disputed Micro, small and medium enterprises - - - - -
Disputed Others - 2,401.70 11.58 40713 | 2,82041
Unbilled Trade Payable
-| 25,542.37 | 1,219.77 963.47 2,842.00 | 30,567.62
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19 - Other Financial Liabilities (Current)

X in Lakhs
Particulars Current
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Earnest Money Deposit Payable 675.36 983.27
Employee Benefits Payable 251.10 208.80
Expenses Payable 85.33 139.36
Retention Money * 249.37 243.03
Total 1,261.16 1,574.46
* Retention from vendor against performance bank guarantee.
20 - Other Current Liabilities
X in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advances received from customers 1,65,660.32 1,41,188.48
Grants-in-Aid received from customers 26,791.68 20,856.11
Others
Statutory Dues and Taxes 2,645.26 4,106.17
Corporate Social Responsibilities 112.00 -
Total 1,95,209.26 1,66,150.76
21 - Provisions
X in Lakhs
Current
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Provision for Stamp Duty (Refer Note No. 43)

7452

74.52

Total

74.52

74.52
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22 Revenue From Operations

X in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue from operations
Sale of Traded Goods 17,420.15 12,383.61
Service Income* 1,22,143.31 1,15,125.37
Total (A) 1,39,563.46 1,27,508.98
Other Operating Revenue
Administrative Charges 650.01 693.28
Total (B) 650.01 693.28
Total Revenue from operations (A)+(B) 1,40,213.47 1,28,202.26
*Unbilled Revenue Booked in Current Period amount to Rs. 9439.13 lakh under the head Service income.
23 Other Income
X in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest Income* 6,023.66 7,220.98
Less: -
Interest on Grants-in-Aid Projects (other than NKN) 267.10 190.30
Interest on NKN Projects (Grants-in-Aid) 897 2897
Other non-operating income 1,720.58 17451
Advances to Suppliers (not adjusted/settled) (Refer Note No. 53) 82.90 283.65
7,551.07 7,459.87
*Includes NIL Lakhs (PY- Rs.226.02 Lakh ) towards interest on refund of Income Tax
24 Purchases
Zin Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Purchases: -
Hardware 7,376.73 9,043.86
Software 10,579.66 2,939.71
Total 17,956.39 11,983.57
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25 Employee Benefits Expense

Zin Lakhs

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Salaries and incentives 942.69 842.98
Staff Welfare 21.53 24.74
Total 964.22 867.72
26  Finance Cost
X in Lakhs
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Interest Expenses on Unbinding of Lease Liability 899.26 953.23
Total 899.26 953.23
27  Depreciation and amortization Expenses
%in Lakhs
Year ended Year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Property, plant and equipment (Refer Note No. 3) 769.18 812.20
Right of use assets (Refer Note No. 4) 2,273.37 237384
Other Intangible assets (Refer Note No. 5) 3,554.74 3,375.74
Total 6,597.29 6,561.78
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28 Other Expenses

X in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Audit Fees (Reference Note No. 38) 10.04 9.98
Bank Charges 457 1.74
Board Meeting Expenses 0.21 -
Books & Periodicals 2.95 12.95
Business Promotion 0.92 3.86
GST (Non-Cenvatable) 47.79 29.56
Conference Seminar W/Shop Expenses 19.46 67.46
Consumable Stores 43.03 37.92
Conveyance Expenses 8.07 4.83
Corporate Social Responsibilities Expenses 112.00 57.20
Diesel for DG. Set 1.60 1.69
Provision for Doubtful Debts (Refer Note No. 52) 741.00 73.40
Electricity & Water Charges 948.99 821.18
Hire Charges 5.25 724
House Keeping & Cleaning Charges 394,02 352.88
House Lease Charges 094 4.66
Membership & Subscription Charges 1.09 092
Miscelleneous Expenses 70.37 9.64
Office Expenses 2,761.16 2,570.99
Office Rent 374.38 0.57
Printing & Stationery 2.06 432
Professional & Consultancy Charges 475.73 349.61
Rent Rates & Taxes 9.99 10.18
Repairs & Maintenance 44570 352.56
Taxi Hire Charges 283.34 276.69
Telephone Expenses 51.06 42.51
Travelling Expenses 65.88 54.56
Vehicle - Expenses 2.16 1.34
Total 6,883.76 5,160.44
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29 - Earning per Share
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X in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Earning per share

Surplus attributable to Equity shareholders (A) 4,617.43 9,822.95
Weighted average number of equity shares (B) 2,00,000 2,00,000
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of diluted earning 2,00,000 2,00,000
per share(C)

Basic earning per share (A/B) (in <) 2,308.72 4,911.47
Diluted earning per share (A/C) (in %) 2,308.72 4,911.47
Face value per share 100.00 100.00

30. Fair values measurements
(i) Financial instruments by category
Zin Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
cost cost

Trade receivables - 34,429.17 - 26,360.57
Cash and cash equivalents 93,139.05 75,247.95
Other bank balances 1,14,759.60 1,04,355.89
Interest Accrued (current) 2,832.51 3,678.34
Security deposits 500.60 108.34
Fixed deposits 291.60 291.60
Interest Accrued (non-current) 285.12 243.04
Total financial assets 2,46,237.65 2,10,285.73
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 44,081.72 30,567.62
Other financial liabilities (current) - 4,480.90 3,893.63
Other financial liabilities (non-current) - 14,683.08 15,781.21
Total financial liabilities - 63,245.70 50,242.46




(i)  Fair value hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is insignificant to the fair value measurements as a whole.

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 : valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are
observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : valuation techniques for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on fair value measurement is not
based on observable market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities, other than those
whose fair values are close approximations of their carrying values.

There have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

For cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other receivables, trade payables and other financial liabilities the
management assessed that their fair value is approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the Company’s long-term interest free security deposits are determined by applying discounted cash flows
('DCF’) method, using discount rate that reflects the market borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. They are
classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty
credit risk.

Note No. - 31. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company'’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables, security deposits, earnest money deposits and employee
liabilities. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade receivables, security deposits, fixed deposits, cash and bank
balances that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s management oversees the management
of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by the Board of Directors that advises on financial risks and

the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The board provides assurance to the Company’s
management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The management
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

l. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risk include fixed deposits.

A. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
investment in fixed deposits with banks. The company’s fixed deposits are carried at fixed rate. Therefore not subject to interest
rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a
change in market interest rates.
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B. Foreign currency sensitivity

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in
exchange rates. Foreign currency risk senstivity is the impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities. The company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as it does not have any foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities.

Il. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit
risk controls.

Credit risk management
The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Credit risk Basis of categorisation Provision for expected credit loss

Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, banks deposit and other 12 month expected credit loss
bank balances

Moderate credit risk | Trade receivables, and other financial assets Life time expected credit loss or 12 month
expected credit

Based on business environment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the
counter party fails to make payments within the agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are
based on actual credit loss experience and considering differences between current and historical economic conditions.
Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptcy or a litigation
decided against the Company. The Company continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to
enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in the Income and Expenditure Accounts.

R in Lakhs

Credit rating Particulars As at 31 As at 31
March 2022 | March 2021

Low credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, banks deposit and other bank 2,11,307.89 1,83,816.82
balances
Moderate credit risk | Trade receivables, Loan and other financial assets 34,929.77 26,468.91

Concentration of trade receivables
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers spread across various states in India with no significant concentration
of credit risk.

Credit risk exposure Provision for expected credit losses The Company provides for 12 month expected credit losses for following
financial assets —
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R in Lakhs

Particulars Gross carrying Expected credit Carring amount net of
amount losses expected
As at 31 March 2022
Trade Receivables 43,678.92 (9,249.75) 3442917
As at 31 March 2021
Trade Receivables 34,869.32 (8,508.75) 26,360.57
Reconciliation of loss provision — lifetime expected credit losses
Zin Lakhs
Reconciliation of loss allowance Trade Receivables
Loss allowance As at March 31,2010 8,435.35
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) during the year 73.40
Amounts written off
Loss allowance As at March 31,2021 8,508.75
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) during the year 741.00
Amounts written off
Loss allowance As at March 31, 2022 9,249.75

lll.  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far
as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due. Management monitors rolling forecasts
of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into
account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments.

Zin Lakhs
Ondemand | Lessthan3| 3to12 1to5 >5years Total
months months years

Year ended

As at March 31, 2022

Trade payables 44,081.72 -| 44,081.72
Other financial liabilities 1,261.16 813.10 2,406.64| 3,166.00| 1151707 | 19,163.97
Total 45,342.88 813.10 2,406.64 | 3,166.00 | 11,517.07 | 63,245.69
Year ended

As at March 31, 2021

Trade payables 30,567.62 - -| 30567.62
Other financial liabilities 1574.46 709.87 160930 | 3,72080| 12,060.41| 19,674.84
Total 32,142.08 709.87 1,609.30 | 3,720.80 | 12,060.41 | 50,242.46

32.Capital Management

The objective of the Company’s capital management structure is to ensure that there remains sufficient liquidity within the
Company to carry out committed work programme requirements. The Company monitors the long term cash flow requirements
of the business in order to assess the requirement for changes to the capital structure to meet that objective and to maintain
flexibility.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes to economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital, issue
new shares for cash, repay debt, put in place new debt facilities or undertake other such restructuring activities as appropriate.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Zin Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Borrowings

Trade payables 44,081.72 30,567.62
Other payables 2,14,44775 1,85,900.12
Less: Cash & cash equivalents (93,139.05) (75,247.95)
Net Debt 1,65,390.42 1,41,219.79
Total equity 74,186.10 69,568.66
Capital and Net debt 2,39,576.52 2,10,788.45
Gearing ratio (%) 69.03% 67.00%
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Note No. - 33. Financial ratios
The ratios for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as follows :

Ratio / Measure Measured Numerator Denominator For the yearended | Variance
In March 31, | March31,| (in%)
2022 2021
Current ratio Times Current assets Current liabilities 1.21 1.25 -3.56%
Debt — Equity ratio Times Total debt* Shareholder’s equity 0.24 0.26 -7.35%
Debt service coverage ratio Times EBIT Total Debt** 0.40 0.78 | -49.20%
Return on Equity (ROE) % Net profits after Average 6.42% 15.26% | -57.89%
taxes shareholder’s equity
Trade receivables Times Revenue Average trade 461 565| -1841%
turnover ratio receivable
Trade payables Times Purchases of Average trade 3.38 396 | -14.68%
turnover ratio services and other | payables
expenses

Net capital turnover ratio Times Revenue shareholder’s equity 1.89 1.84 2.56%
Net profit ratio % Net profit Revenue 3.29% 7.66% | -57.02%
Return on Capital % Earning before Capital employed 7.69% 16.10% | -52.21%
Employed (ROCE) interest and taxes
Return on Investment (ROI) % Interest Income Fixed Deposit 374% 465% | -19.45%

*Debt represents only lease liabilities

**Total Debt represents only Lease Liability

EBIT - Earnings before interest and taxes.

Capital employed refers to total shareholders' equity and debt

Explanation for variances exceeding 25%

Revenue for Higher Operating margin has been reduced along with increase in other cost

34 Leases

As Lessee

(A) Additions to right of use assets

T in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Right-of-use assets, except for investment property 1,081.98 694.52

(B) Carrying value of right of use assets at the end of the reporting period by class % in Lakhs
Particulars Class 1 Class 2 Total
Balance at 1 April 2020 18,924.69 18,924.69
Additions 694.52 694.52
Modification of Rights 18.18 18.18
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Depreciation charge for the year 2,3573.84 2,373.84
Balance at 1 April 2021 17,227.19 17,227.19
Additions 1,081.98 1,081.98
Modification of Rights -
Depreciation charge for the year 2,273.37 2,273.37
Balance at 31 March 2022 16,035.80 16,035.80
(C)  Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

T in Lakhs

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2022

March 31, 2021

Opening Balance 18,060.91 18,791.29
Additions 1,081.98 694.52
Interest 899.26 953.23
Modification of Rights - (18.18)
Payment of Liabilities (2,198.80) (2,359.96)
Closing Balance 17,843.35 18,060.91
T in Lakhs
Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows As at As at

March 31,2022

March 31, 2021

Less than one year 3,219.74 2,319.17
One to five years 10,497.20 10,367.95
More than five years 11,517.07 12,060.42
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 25,234.01 24,747.54

T in Lakhs
Lease liabilities included in Balance Sheet As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Current 3219.74 2,319.17
Non-Current 14,623.62 15,741.75
Total 17,843.36 18,060.92
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(D) Amounts recognised in profit or loss

3 in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Interest on lease liabilities 899.26 953.23
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities -
Income from sub-leasing right-of-use assets -
Expenses relating to short-term leases 374.38 0.57
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short-term leases -
of low value assets
(E) Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows % in Lakhs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Total cash outflow for leases 2,198.80 2,359.96

35. Contingent Liabilities

As at Balance Sheet date, the contingent liability in respect of offsite warranty provided by the company to the users is not
considered since all the equipments supplied towards projects are covered under AMC from the vendors/suppliers from time to

time, after warranty period.

Contingent liabilities, other than the above, not provided for are as under: - T in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Claim against the Company not acknowledged as debts. 164.78 99.66
Guarantees 1275.47 691.10
Delhi VAT Demand (September 2005 to November 2008) 678.00
Income Tax Demand (Assessment Year 2014-15) 206.29 206.29
Income Tax Demand (Assessment Year 2015-16) 350.60 350.60
Income Tax Demand (Assessment Year 2018-19)* 2434.58 243458
Total 5109.72 3782.23

* The above demand is net off after the adjustment of refund claimed in ITR of Rs.5139.45 Lakh.
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36. Commitments

The Company has made commitment to procure the trading goods and to avail the services in the subsequent period based
on the purchase orders and agreements made with suppliers. Those commitments can be amended as per the agreed terms.
However, the amount of such revenue commitments towards internal projects of the company is Rs.532.05 Lakh (PY Rs.509.70
Lakh) as at March 31, 2022. In addition, Commitment towards capital expenditure out of “Reserves” is as follows:-

T in Lakhs

SL. | Particulars As at As at
No. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1. | National Data Centre, Bhubaneswar 20543.48 22501.31
2. | Enhancement of NIC Cloud Services 1600.02 1874.07
3. | District 2.0-Augmentation of Digital India Initiative 1380.21 1380.21
4. | 2nd Floor in Block-1, Shastri Park, Delhi on Lease Rent from DMRC - CPWD 1898.50 2280.68

(Interior Furnishing for Data Centre- 1305.68 / Development Sheets- 875.00)

(Advance of Rs.382.18 Lakh released in 2021-22 previous year NIL)
5. | Purchase of Office space at World Trade Tower, Nauroji Nagar, New Delhi (Unit 6085.63 11937.70

No. A-300)

(Total Cost 13043.31 less 1105.61 paid in 2020-21 & 5852.07 in 2021-22,

both excluding taxes)

Total 31507.84 39973.97

37. Information pursuant to Para 5(viii) of the General Instructions for preparation to the Income & Expenditure
Account given under schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013.

i. Value of Imports on C.I.F Basis: NIL (PY Rs. NIL)
ii. Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis):

% in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31,2022 31,2021
Travelling - Staff (Foreign) NIL NIL
Total NIL NIL
il Earnings in foreign currency (on accrual basis): Rs. Nil (PY Rs. NiD)
38. Auditor Remuneration*
% in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31,2022 31,2021
Auditor Fee including Tax Audit Fee 7.01 6.36
Income Tax Audit 093 0.85
GST Audit 0.00 0.85
For Reimbursement of expenses 2.10 1.91
Total 10.04 9.97
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* Exclusive of applicable taxes. Further, Rs. 2.10 Lakhs (PY Rs.1.80 Lakhs) excluding GST are provided for certification work for
various projects which are directly debited in the respective projects.

39. Disclosure pursuant to Ind-As 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’
i. Contribution to Provident Fund

The company is not having any Provident Fund scheme as the employees of the company are on deputation from
NIC, along-with their posts, as per the Government of India Notification dated 3rd March, 1998. The Provident Fund is
deducted from their salary every month as per the rates prescribed for the purpose and government guidelines thereon
subsequently, passed on to NIC as its entire account is maintained by them. There is thus, no liability of the company
towards any payment to the employees on Provident Fund Account.

iii. Leave Salary

Since the employees are on deputation from NIC as per the Government of India Notification dated 3rd March, 1998, the
leave salary contribution (as per the prescribed rates to the salary of the respective employee), is calculated / provided by
the company in its account every month and subsequently, passed on to NIC. No liability is thus, there on the company
towards payment of leave salary/encashment.

iii. Pension Contribution

Since the employee are on deputation from NIC as per the said Government of India Notification dated 3rd March, 1998,
the pension contribution (as per the prescribed rates to the salary of the respective employee), is calculated / provided by
the company in its account every month and subsequently, passed on to NIC. No liability is thus, there on the company
towards payment of Pensionery benefits.

iv.  Gratuity

Since the employees are on deputation from NIC as per the said Government of India Notification dated 3rd March, 1998,
the company is not liable to pay any Gratuity, as the same shall entirely be borne by NIC.

40. Related Party disclosures
List of related parties

Name of the Party Relationship
Shri Prashant Kumar Mittal (Managing Director) Key Managerial Personnel
Shri Sunny Jain (Company Secretary) Key Managerial Personnel

Transactions with Related Parties: -

T in Lakhs
Name of Party Nature of Transaction Year Ended March | Year Ended March
31,2022 31,2021
Sh. Prashant Kumar Mittal Managerial Remuneration 40.47 36.88
Sh. Sunny Jain Managerial Remuneration 11.43 10.36
Total 51.90 47.24

Balance payable as on March 31, 2022 to Related Parties: Rs. 3.85 Lakh (PY Rs.3.39 Lakh )

41. Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS—- 108 ‘Operating Segments’

The company is providing services in ‘Information Technology’ segment only from a centralized office in Delhi. Considering
the same as one segment only, no disclosure according to Ind AS— 108 ‘Operating Segments’ have been made in the financial
statements.
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42. Balance Confirmation
The balance confirmation letters have been issued under various heads. The response there against is awaited.

43. Non-execution of Conveyance/Title Deed

The Company had purchased Hall No's 2&3 at 6th Floor, NBCC Towers, Bhikaiji Cama Place, New Delhi from M/s. NBCC Limited in
the year 2003 and 2001 respectively. However, the Conveyance Deeds / Title Deeds towards the same amounting to Rs. 931.50
lakh (PY 931.50 lakh) have not yet been got registered by NBCC despite several requests from the company. Hence, the initial
provision of Rs 74.52 lakh (PY Rs 74.52 lakh) towards amount of Stamp Duty has been provided in the financial statements and
the differential amount, if any, shall be provided for in the year the same is got registered. In this regard NICSI has taken up the
matter with NBCC from time to time on different occasions and the latest detailed reference had been made on 17.07.2020 with
reminders issued on 10.09.2020, 01.10.2020, 08.12.2020, 26.03.2021 & 14.06.2021. Thereafter, NBCC has provided the draft
Deed to NICSI and before getting the same registered with the concerned authorities, the payment status towards Ground Rent
etc. is being re-concerned between NICSI and NBCC.

44. Inthe opinion of the Management, the current assets, loans and advances & trade receivable have a value on
realization in ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated.

45. Disclosure u/s 22 of the MSMED Act, 2006

T in Lakhs
SL. | Particulars As at As at
No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1 The Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid 8491.68 266891
to any supplier*.
2 The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the NIL NIL
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier.
3 The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in NIL NIL
making payment but without adding the interest specified under the
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid. NIL NIL
5 The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the NIL NIL
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance
of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

*The above however, does not include the interest payable on the mentioned amount.

46. Disclosure pursuant to IND AS - 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’

As per IND AS — 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’, the assessment of impairment of Assets has been carried out during the FY 2021-22
inrespect of Data Centre at Laxmi Nagar, National Data Centre at Shastri Park towards investment on "Enhancement of NIC Cloud
Services” and Development Centre at Shastri Park locations, which are cash generating units of the company and no impairment
loss has been identified thereon.

47. Revenue Generation (GR/ AGR) towards VSAT Projects against DOT License No. 815-100/NICSI1/2009-DS
dated 20.11.2009 (surrendered by NICSI on 31.03.2017 and accepted by DoT) and payment of License Fee and
Spectrum Charges to DOT thereon.

NICSI had surrendered the DoT License on 31.03.2017 and accepted by DoT. As per the mandate given by DoT, NICSI has since
paid entire amount towards License Fee / Spectrum Charges till 31.03.2017 on the revenue related to this activity only. Also, the
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amounts from MHA/NDRF are received. However, the O/0 the Pr. CCA Office, DoT has levied interest / penalty on NICSI by taking
revenue of entire company, for which MeitY had taken up the matter with DoT.

0/0 the Pr. CCA DoT, vide letter dated 17.07.2020, has withdrawn all Demand Notices against NICSI towards License Fee
and Spectrum Usage Charges (based on Hon'ble Supreme Court of India Judgement dated 11.06.2020 and DoT OM No. 12-
25/2019-LFP dated 17.07.2020. The F&C Audit Office had accordingly, been informed by NICSI, vide letter no. NICSI / Fin/
Insp. F&C Adt./2018-19/289 dated 20.07.2020 & accordingly, that office had admitted / closed the para, vide letter no. AMG-1I/
NICSI/F-2516/2019-20/323 dated 23.09.2020.

However, NICS| had deposited 4 Bank Guarantees (BG’s) to DoT towards the above totaling to Rs. 92 lakh which had been renewed
from time to time. NICSI had taken up the matter with DoT to return all these BG's, vide its letter dated 10.08.2020, with reminder
dated 09.11.2020. In response there-to, 0/0 PrCCA, DoT, vide letter no. 50-4/2018-Clarification & Rulings / PrCCA /Delhi /1413
dated 05.02.2021, had requested DoT (LFP Divison) to issue the guidelines for re-assessment of LF / SUC in respect to Non-
Telecom PSU’s, as the demand raised by the DoT had been withdrawn, vide its order no. 12-25 / 2019-LFP dated 13.07.2020.
NICSI has further issued reminders to DoT, vide letters dated 11.03.2021, 27.05.2021, 22.06.2021, 22.07.2021, 09.08.2021,
13.09.2021, 22.11.2021, 08.03.2022 & 21.04.2022 but no progress so far and the BG's are still with DoT. In this regard, the
Secretary, MeitY has also written a DO letter on 13.05.2022 to the Chairman, DCC & Secretary, DoT.

48. Income/Expenditure on National Data Centre Projects

National Data Centre, Shastri Park, Delhi had been set up with financial assistance from MeitY and NIC and had become operational
in July, 2011. As per approval by the Standing Finance Committee, NICSI was to bear Operational Expenditure thereon @ Rs.800
Lakh per annum for initial 2 years. To meet its Operational Expenditure, NICSI was to get income from 60 Racks allotted to it.
While NICSI continued to meet Operational Expenditure thereon even after 2 years, MeitY had approved that from 01-04-2014
onwards, NICSI would be incurring operational expenditure head-wise on the National Data Centre, Shastri Park, Delhi upto
Rs.800 Lakh on the heads Rent & Maintenance/ Basic Infrastructure Maintenance/ Basic Infrastructure O & M Manpower and NIC
would reimburse the expenditure from its Budgetary Provision to NICSI towards Electricity & Diesel Charges/ Physical Security
& Housekeeping Charges/ Water Charges/ Logistics Support/ Contingency Charges upto 3% of all these charges, after these
expenditure are initially incurred by NICSI. With the setting-up of National Data Centre at Bhubaneswar, NICSI and NIC had worked
out an arrangement for operation and management of the same and also, for National Data Centre at Shastri Park, Delhi. NICSI
Board of Directors, in its 108th meeting held on 27.12.2018, had considered the same and approved as under with retrospective
effect from 01 April 2018: -

. NICSI may create a separate project pool account for Shastri Park and Bhubaneswar Data Centers

° Income generated through Co-location Services at both these Data Centers shall be pooled under the proposed project
heads.

. Income shall be used for meeting the O&M expenditure and up-gradation of basic infrastructure at both these Data
Centers.

. In addition to existing 60 Racks being used for co-location service at Shastri Park by NICSI, NIC may add more Racks to

generate enough funds to meet O&M expenses for years to come and also for upgrading the basic infrastructure.

o NICSI would not incur Rs.800 Lakh per annum towards O&M Expenditure at Shastri park from FY.2018-19 and onwards.
Revenue generated per annum through said 60 Racks and more Racks to be added by NIC, would be utilized for meeting
O&M expenditure and up-gradation of basic infrastructure.

. NICSI would charge its 7% Operating Margin and Taxes thereon as per Board approval from FY.2018-19 and onwards on
the said O&M Expenditure.

NICSI has accordingly booked its Income & Expenditure in FY.2021-22 at National NDC-SP & Bhubaneswar.

NICSI Board of Directors, in its 114th meeting held on 29.07.2020, had requested a Director from NIC to look into and advise on
the item related to meeting of deficit between expenditure & income (excluding on Cloud) towards NDC-SP & Bhubaneswar. The
matter is still under consideration.
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49. Interest on Un-utilized fund of Grant in Aid projects.

NICSI has worked out the interest in GIA Projects in FY 2021-22 on actual basis as per the interest rates on which NICSI had made
FDs in the year and in FY.2021-22 as per below:

% in Lakhs
Period NKN Project Other GIA Projects Total
For FY.2020-21 2897 190.30 219.27
For FY.2021-22 8.97 267.10 276.07

50. Draft Audit Para from P&T Audit Office on Refund of Interest in GIA Projects.

TilLFY.2011-2012, the Company was treating the amount received from Grantor Institution for execution of projects as ‘Advances
received from customer’ instead of treating them as Grant in Aid receipt and accordingly, no interest was provided on un-utilized
fund to Grantor Institution.

Board of Directors, vide meeting dated 21-12-2011, had approved to calculate and refund the interest earned on un-utilized fund
available in Grant in Aid Projects from time to time as per the rate of interest applicable in the Saving Bank Accounts in the Public
Sector Banks. Accordingly, the Company had calculated and refunded the amount of interest to the Grantor institution i.e. rate
of interest applicable in the Saving Bank Accounts in the Public Sector Banks, whereas as per terms and conditions laid down by
the Grantor Institution, the actual interest earned on un-utilized balance of Grant in Aid projects is to be refunded. The grantor
departments have accepted the interest as credited to the individual project till FY.2016-17 and most of these projects are since
completed and their accounts settled. However, a para is continuing from the C&AG Office towards less refund of interest in GIA
Projects by the company to the Government. NICSI had provided the reply on the para and it is still under consideration of the
C&AG Office.

In the meantime, the Board of Directors, in its 100th meeting held on 28.03.2017, had re-considered the matter and advised
NICSI to refund the interest on Grants-in-Aid Projects on actual basis.

Accordingly, in F. Y. 2018-19, NICSI has worked out the interest in GIA Projects on actual basis as per the interest rates on which
NICSI had made FDs in the past and based on that, has provided the differential interest in each ledger of the respective project
for the period upto 31.03.2018 Totaling to Rs.4766.01 Lakh (i.e. Rs.1414.74 Lakh in NKN Project and Rs.3351.27 Lakh in other
GIA Projects).

F&C Audit Office, vide letter no. AMG-Il / Rep PSU / DAP / 9993 /NICSI / D-2024 dated 14.01.2020, has provided a Draft Audit
Para (DAP) to NICSI on “Loss of Rs.26.36 crore and understatement of liability by Rs.78.38 crore due to non-compliance of terms
& conditions governing grants in aid projects”. The Audit observation is that NICSI has deducted the Corporate Tax paid on its GIA
Interest Income during past years and while refunding the differential interest, it has deducted the Corporate Tax already paid and
thus, it should take-up the matter with CBDT / Income Tax Department regarding refund of Corporate Tax paid previously. NICSI,
vide reply dated 09.12.2019 to their Audit Memo No. 12 dated 04.12.2019 and also, vide letter dated 12.06.2020 has informed
the F&C Audit office that since the Corporate Tax is paid to the Government of India i.e. Income Tax Department continuously
since FY.2012-13, it has not taken up the matter with the Income Tax Department, since even after refund of the Corporate Tax
to NICSI, it would have to refund again to the Government of India (i.e. Grantor Departments). However, on the Accounts of NICSI
for FY. 2019-20, the C&AG organization (PDA, F&C), vide letter no. Rep-FA/F-255/NICSI/2019-20/416 dated 13.11.2020, had
pointed out “Proper mechanism to segregate the interest earned on NICSI funds and GIA funds may be derived” to make the
Accounts more clear and transparent.

51. Trade Receivables

NICSI implements a large number of new projects every year from various Ministries/ Departments / Organizations of the
Government of India and States / UTs. As per the provisions in the General Financial Rules (GFRs), they restrict the release of
advances to NICSI to 40% or so, whereas in many cases mainly related to procurement of ICT Hardware, NICSI has to release the
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work orders to full extent and after delivery / installation of those items, NICSI has to release the payments to the vendors as
per the payment terms in the work orders. This, on many occasions, resulted in Trade Receivables, disclosed in note no. 9 of the
financial statements, amount of Rs. 43678.92 Lakh (PY Rs. 34,869.32 Lakh) as at March 31, 2022, which is followed up by NICSI
from time to time with the concerned Departments /Organizations to recover the same.

52. Provision for Doubtful Debt amounts un-Llikely to be recovered.

NICSI has been making a "Provision” towards Doubtful Debts in its Accounts continuously since FY. 2018-19 considering 100%
for the period of more than 10 years, 50% between 5-10 years & 25% between 3-5 years.

A Committee was formed in NICSI to review and give their recommendations towards making provision in the Accounts for
FY.2021-22 for the doubtful amounts un-likely to be recovered.

Based on the Committee Recommendations as per the said Policy, the “Provision” has been made in NICSI Accounts for F. Y.
2021-22 towards doubtful amounts un-likely to be recovered as per below: -

% in Lakhs

Duration Outstanding Provision in Provisionin Provisionin

amount %age F.Y.2021-22 F.Y.2020-21
More than 10 years 7452.00 100 7452.00 6300.00
5to 10 years 2852.00 50 1426.00 2028.50
3to5years 1487.00 25 371.75 180.25
Upto 3 years 31887.92 NIL NIL NIL
Total 43678.92 9249.75 8508.75

53. Provision for Advances to Suppliers.

F&C Audit while conducting the Audit for FY 2017-18 had observed that "Advances to Suppliers amounting to Rs.984.16 Lakh
were more than 3 years old. Being more than 3 years old provisioning should have been created in this respect. Non-provision
had resulted into overstatement of current assets and understatement of provisions leading to overstatement of profit”.

Considering the above observation of F&C Audit, a Committee was formed in NICSI to review and give their recommendations to
consider and recommend the provision to be made towards Advances to Suppliers un-likely to be settled. The Committee had
recommended to make “Provision” in Accounts for amounts towards Advances to Suppliers outstanding for more than 3 years.
Accordingly, the Provision had been made in Accounts for FY. 2018-19 to 2020-21.

On the above basis, a Committee had been set-up to recommend the provision to be made towards Advances to Suppliers in
Accounts for FYY. 2021-22. On Committee’s Recommendations, the Provision amounting to Rs 894.32 Lakh has been made in F. Y.
2021-22 towards amounts outstanding for more than 3 years as on 31.03.2022 and un-likely to be settled (as against Rs.977.22
lakh in PY 2020-21), except for NKN Project.

54. Expenditure of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

T in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended
March 31,2022 | March 31,2021

Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 112.00 57.20
Amount of expenditure incurred on purpose other than construction/ acquisition of - 57.20
any asset*

Excess spend of prior years set off during the year - -
Shortfall at the end of the year [(d)=(a)-(b)-(c)] 112.00 -
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Total of previous years shortfall - -
Reason for shortfall* NA NA

Nature of CSR activities Contribution in Contribution in
PM CARES Fund PM CARES Fund

* NICSI has made provision of Rs. 112 Lakh (PY 57.20 Lakh contributed in PMCARES Fund) in the accounts for FY 2021-22
towards expenditure of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). As per direction of the Board of Directors in its 121st meeting
held on 26.03.2022, NICSI had opened a separate bank account and transferred the amount of Rs.112 Lakh as prescribed under
Companies Act 2013, the same has been contributed in PM CARES Fund on 29.04.2022.

55. Provision towards Income Tax & Sales Tax etc.

F&C Audit while conducting the Audit for FY 2017-18 had observed that “an amount of Rs. 2,281.03 Lakh on account of TDS/
Income Tax recoverable pertaining to FY 2007-08 to 2014-15 is pending from Income Tax Department. The above amount being
relating to more than 3 years old, provision in this regard should have been created by the company. However, no provision has
been created. Non provision of this amount has resulted into overstatement of current assets and understatement of provision
leading to overstatement of income”.

Considering the above observation of F&C Audit, a Committee was formed in NICSI to review and give recommendations on the
provision to be made in Accounts for FY.2018-19 for the amounts towards Income Tax refund, Sales Tax recoverable and TDS
on Work Contract un-likely to be recovered. Based on the Committee recommendations, the provision has been made in NICSI
accounts for FY 2021-22 as per below: -

X in Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income Tax 1835.88 1835.88
Sales Tax/VAT/DVAT 11791 117.91
TDS on Works Contract 2.54 2.54
Total 1956.33 1956.33

NICSI is still following up with the concerned Tax Authorities regarding recovery of Tax and the matter is still under discussion
at higher level with their authorities and accordingly, the recovery of the said amount is still awaited.

56. Obsolete Items

While conducting review on NICSI Accounts for FY.2017-18, the F&C Audit team had observed that the provision was not
made in Accounts for that year towards difference between Depreciated Value of the Obsolete items as on 31st March and
Estimated Sale Value against the same. Accordingly, a Committee had been set up in NICSI to examine and recommend the
“Provision” to be made in NICSI Accounts for FY.2018-19 towards obsolete items as on 31.03.2019 between the Depreciated
Value and the Estimated Sale Value. The Committee had recommended that the Depreciated Value of the Obsolete Asset
items as on 31.03.2019 be taken as the Estimated Sale value and therefore, no Provision on this account was required to be
made in the Accounts for that year. Similarly, no ‘Provision” had been thereafter in NICSI Accounts for FY. 2019-20 and 2020-
21 and also in FY. 2021-22. However, based on the physical verification of assets, the estimated value of obsolete asset items
as on 31.03.2022 has been worked out at Rs. 0.90 Lakh (PY 2.06 Lakh).

57. Provision of Year-end expense and unbilled Revenue

While reviewing the Financial Statement for 2019-20 & 2020-21, P&T Audit (CAG) observed that no provision was being made
in books of accounts for invoices pertaining to the expenditure incurred for the preceding previous year for which invoices had
been received after the end of the financial year but prior to the date of finalisation of the annual financial statements. The P&T
audit had suggested making an appropriate provision against these expenses. Accordingly, during the current financial year
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2021-22 provision has been made for invoices pertaining to FY 2021-22, amounting to Rs. 9957.54 lakhs. The corresponding
income of Rs. 9439.13 lakhs has also been recorded during the current financial year as Unbilled Revenue.(PY Nil)

58. Appeal before GST authorities

In November, 2017 the GST of Rs. 4,73,37,107/- was deposited in excess by NICSI on the assumption that many invoices
of vendors would be booked in that year but owing to receipt of less invoices, it is resulted in non-settlement of GST to that
extent. The claim was rejected by the Assessing officer on 25.09.2020 being time-barred. NICSI had filed an Appeal before the
Commissioner (Appeal-I), CGST, Delhi on 18.12.2020 for refund of excess tax deposited but the concerned Commissionrate
had rejected the same. NICSl is in process of filing a fresh Appeal with the GST Tribunal but it is held up, as the Tribunal is yet
to be constituted by the Government.

59. The Company did not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies
Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act. 1956 during the FY 2021-22.

60. COVID-19 Impact

The Company has assessed the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying
amounts of Receivables, Fixed Deposits and other assets / liabilities. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible
future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval
of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information. As on current date, the Company has
concluded that the impact of COVID — 19 is not material based on these estimates. Due to the nature of the pandemic, the
Company will continue to monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties in future periods, if any.

61. Previous year figure reclassification
The company has re-classified previous year figures to confirm current year classification.

As per our report of even date For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Agarwal & Saxena National Informatics Centre Services Inc.
Chartered Accountants
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF NATIONAL INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC.
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31stMarch 2022, and Income and Expenditure account, the Statement of Changes in Equityand the
Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except for the effects of the
matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31st, 2022 and itsexcess of
income over expenditure, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.

Certain balances relating to Trade Payables (Note 18), Trade Receivables (Note 9), Advances received from customers
(Including Grants-in-aid project) (Note 20), Security deposits Payable (Note 17), and Advances to Suppliers (Note 8 & 14)
are subject to confirmation and/ or reconciliation as at the year end. The management is in the process of reconciling the
same and is of the opinion that the impact, if any, would not be material. Impact on the income/ expenses and/ or assets/
liabilities consequent to such confirmations being obtained/ received and/ or the consequential reconciliation being
drawn up is presently not ascertainable at the year-end.

Reference is invited to Note No. 20 of the financial statement with respect to the Advances received from customers
amounting to Rs. 1,92,452.00lakhs. A review of individual accounts reveals numerous customers wherein balances have
remained outstanding for more than 3 years as at the year-end. These advances, received mostly from Public Sector
Undertakings (PSUs) and Government of India Ministries, have been invested by the Company in Fixed deposits with
various banks at varied rates of interest and maturity profiles.

In view of the fact that such idle funds with respect to the Advance from Customers have remained unutilised and invested
in Fixed Deposits, the management needs to review each such Advance and return the same to the customer based on
the corresponding terms and conditions of the contract with each of the customer. In the absence of the documents,
contracts and details being available in respect of each such Advance, the overall impact of matters referred to in the
preceding paras on the assets/ liabilities and/ or income/ expenditure consequent to such details being made available
is presently not ascertainable.

The Company has not complied with Ind AS 115 on "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” prescribed by the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 in view of revenue on Sales of services being erroneously recognised at the
time of generating the invoice in terms of the Significant Accounting Policy (Refer to Note 2 (vii) and Note 2(xii)) instead of
recognising the same at the time of transfer of “control”i.e. on transfer of the promised service. Impact of the same together
with the default under Rule 47 of the CGST Act on account of non-raising of the invoice within 30 days of completion of
service on the reported income/ expense and assets/ liabilities of the Company is presently not ascertainable.

Hitherto, the Company was recognising expenses and the corresponding income in the next financial year with respect to
the invoices received from the vendors after the year end without accruing the same as at the end of each year. During
the year the Company has however accounted for such invoices received after the year end by providing for expenses
to the tune of Rs. 9957.54 lakh and corresponding unbilled revenue of Rs. 9439.13. Lakh (Refer Note 58 to the financial
statements).

The Company has however, not complied with the provisions of Ind AS 8 on “"Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting
Estimates and Errors” prescribed by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 which requires retrospective
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restatement of the financial statements of the previous year on application a new accounting policy. Accordingly, the
previous year figures with respect to the financial year 2020-21 should also have been restated in terms of recognising
expenses and corresponding income with respect to the vendor invoices not received till the year end.Impact of the same
on the reported income/ expenditure and assets/ liabilities of the Company consequent to such restatement in terms of
Ind AS 8 is presently not ascertainable.

The impact of matters referred to in the above paragraphs (1) to (4) on the assets/liabilities and/or income/expenditure
and excess of income over expenditure for the year is not ascertainable.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note No. 43 of the Ind-AS Financial Statements whereby the conveyance/ title deed in respect of the
building at BhikajiCama place, New Delhi amounting to Rs. 931.50 lakhs is pending for registration as at the year-end.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the matters reported in the paragraphs above.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance,changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation, and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern, and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level ofassurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

] Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 have not been commented
upon since the said order is not applicable to the Company in view of the exemption available to a company licensed to
operate under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
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a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) Except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion,
proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination
of those books;

9] Except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion,
the Balance Sheet, the Income and Expenditure Account, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flow dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d Except for the matters described in basis of qualified opinion, in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e The matter(s)described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse
effect on the functioning of the company;

f) Since the company is a Government company, sub-section (2) of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013
regarding director’s disqualification, is not applicable to the Company in terms of Notification No. GSR-463 (E) dated
05.06.2015;

9 The qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above;

h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses a
qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting;

i) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company being a
Government company, the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to
the Government company in terms of Notification No. GSR-463 (E) dated 05.06.2015;

i With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in itsfinancial
statements (Refer Note no. 36 to thefinancial statements);

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

V. (@  Themanagement hasrepresented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

. directly orindirectly lend orinvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
by or on behalf of the Company or
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provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b)  The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by
the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

directly or indirectly, lendor invest in other personsor entities identified inany manner whatsoever(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
byor on behalf of the FundingParty or

provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c)  Based on such audit proceduresas considered reasonable andappropriate in the circumstances,nothing has come
to our noticethat has caused us to believe thatthe representations undersub-clause(iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain
anymaterial mis-statement.

(d  Since the Company has been incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and it cannot declare
dividend, reporting under clause 143 (11) (e) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable
to the Company.

Our separate report on directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 is attached as Annexure B.

For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
(FRN0024050C)

Sd/-

Varnika Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 430967
UDIN:-22430967ANTTCU7829

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28 July 2022
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Annexure ‘A’ to the independent auditor’s report on the
Ind as financial statements of National Informatics Centre
Services Inc. for the year ended 31st March 2022

”

(Referred to in paragraph under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Section of our Report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of National Informatics Centre Services Inc. (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“Guidance Note”) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act 2013,Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the "Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
IND AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the IND AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, we have qualified our audit opinion on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, in respect of the System relating to reconciliation/confirmation of
vendor balances as the same could potentially result in a material misstatement of the outstanding balances. (Refer to para 1
under Basis for Qualified Opinion of our Independent Auditors Report of even date) wherein the existing internal controlsneed
to be strengthened.

A ‘material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial reporting, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual Ind AS financial statements will not
be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

In our opinion, except for the effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the
objectives of the control criteria, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2022,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit
tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2022, Ind AS financial statements of the Company, and these material weaknesses do
not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Other Matters

a. The Company needs to strengthen the existing controls relating to the mapping of individual items of Property, Plant &
Equipment on their physical verification by introducing controls wherebyall the individual items physically verified are

mapped through their specific identification numbers with the corresponding PPE records.
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b. Although the Company implemented the ERP accounting software w.e.f July 01,2017, certain control weaknesses relating
to the mapping of individual party balances and carry forward of opening balances need to be strengthened and identified
based on the existing controls being validated by a Systems Audit carried out by an external independent agency.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
(FRN0024050C)

Sd/-

Varnika Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 430967
UDIN:-22430967ANTTCU7829

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28 July 2022
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Annexure ‘B’ to the independent auditor’s reportonthe lnd as
financial statements of National Informatics Centre Services

Inc. for the year ended March 31, 2022

Report on Directions issued by the comptroller and auditor general of India under section

143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT system? If yes,
the implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

The Company has an accounting system in place to process all the accounting transactions through an ERP accounting
software which was implemented w.e.f. July 01, 2017. However, the ERP software was implemented and is still in operation
without being validated by a Systems Audit being carried out by an external independent agency. Impact, if any, on the assets/
liabilities and/ or income/ expenditure as disclosed in the Financial Statements on account of possible system weakness in
the data integrity is presently not ascertainable.

Furthermore, Fixed Assets accounting with respect to addition/ deletion/ depreciation is currently being done manually and
thereafter has been uploaded into the ERP system as no automation module is available in the ERP. It is advisable that the said
process is also automated at the earliest to avoid possible errors on account of manual intervention.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts/ loans/ interests etc.
made by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact
may be stated.

Not applicable as the company did not have any outstanding loan during the year 2021-22. Accordingly, therewas no case of
waiver/write offofdebts/loans/interest etc. made by any lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay the
loan.

Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from Central/State agencies were properly accounted
for/utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

During the year 2021-22 no funds were either received or were receivable by the company from any Central/State agencies.
Hence the question of their proper accounting and utilisation does not arise.

For Agarwal & Saxena
Chartered Accountants
(FRN0024050C)

Sd/-

Varnika Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 430967
UDIN:-22430967ANTTCU7829

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28" July 2022

198



COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION
143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NATIONAL
INFORMATICS CENTRE SERVICES INC. (NICSI) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

The preparation of financial statements of National Informatics Centre Services Inc.(NICSI) for the year ended 31 March 2022
in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act,2013(Act) is the responsibility of the
Management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor/Auditors appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under
Section 139 (5) of the Act are /is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act based
on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to
have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 28.07.2022

, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements
of NICSI for the year ended 31 March 2021 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory
Auditors and company personal and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant matters under section 143(6)(b) of the Act which
have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and
the related audit report.

A. Comment on Profitability
1. Income and Expenditure Account
Expenses-Other Expenses Rs. 6883.76 Lakh (Note no. 28)

The above head is understated by an amount of Rs. 285.34 lakh due to non-provisioning of interest payable to MSMEs in compliance
of MSMED Act 2006. This has also resulted in overstatement of income by the same amount.

B. Comment on Disclosure
2. Note of Financial Statement

As per Indian Accounting Standard 7 (IND-AS 7) statement of cash flow an entity shall disclose, together with a commentary by
management, the amount of significant cash and cash equivalent balance held by the entity that are not available for use by the
group. Cash flow from investing activities includes investment in Fixed Deposit Receipt (FDR) of Rs.2171.16 lakh given as margin
money against guarantees, which is not available for freely use for the Company. This has not been disclosed by the Company.

C. Other Comments
3. Commitments-Capital Commitments: Rs. 31507.84 lakh (Note No. 36)

The above head is understated by an amount of Rs. 2315.95 lakh due to non-inclusion of amount towards increased cost for setting
up mini data centre at shahtri park, Delhi.

4, Contingent liabilities

The above head is understated by an amount of Rs. 125.92 lakh due to non-provisioning of interest on reversal of ICT due to non-
payment to vendors after 180 days of date of billing.

D. Comment on the Statutory Auditor
5. Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The statutory Auditor’s response to the direction of CAG of India issued under section 143 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 Point no.3
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funds received/receivables for specific schemes) is factually incorrect. The Company received funds of Rs. 55603.54 lakh during
the year 2021-22 from different ministries/departments for specific schemes whereas as per the report of statutory Auditors
during the year 2021-22 no such funds were either received or were receivable by the Company from any central/State agencies.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor general of India

(Aman Deep Chatha)
Director General of Audit
(Finance & Communication)
Date: 29-09-2022
Place: New Delhi
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Replies to Audit Observations from C&AG Inspection Report for 2021-22 (FY. 2020-21)

M/s Pricewaterhouse Coopers private Limited, M/s
Wipro Limited, M/s Deloitte Tohmatsu India LLP, M/s
KPMG (Registered) and M/s Ernst & Young LLP for
E-Governance Project/ Services on ICT Area for Tier 1
during 2016-17. The empanelment was valid for two
years ie. upto 15.06.2019. The empanelment letter
contained the provision for extension for one year of
empanelment through mutual consenti.e. 15.06.2019.
However, there is no provision in the empanelment
letter to extend the validity beyond 15.06.2020.

During the review of records, it was observed that even
after 15.06.2020, five extensions of 3 months each
have been provided in respect of this empanelment i.e.
extensionup to 31.12.2021. Further, there was delay in
starting the process of fresh empanelment which was
started in July 2020 and the tender was floated only in
January 2021, even after the expiry of the six months
from the extended period as per the empanelment
letter. The process of fresh empanelment was
completed in October 2021 and M/s Deloitte Touche
was empanelled we.f. 22.10.2021.

There was significant variation in the rates as per
the extended empanelment and rates as per new
empanelment given at the end of this para.

During the period 16.06.2020 to 21.10.2021 (date
of fresh empanelment), NICSI has issued Work
Orders amounting to Rs. 302.35 crore in respect
of E-Governance Projects on the basis of extended
empanelment. This has resulted in excess payment of
Rs.24.18 crore (being calculated @ 8% on Rs.302.35
crore) by the user departments.

Thus, the undue delay in floating of tender as well as
finalization of tender by NICSI resulted in avoidable
payment of Rs.24.18 crore by the user departments
in respect of E-Governance Project/ Services in ICT
Area and but also extended undue favour to the
Consulting Companies by repeatedly extending
the empanelment period in contravention of the
provisions of empanelment letter.

On being pointed out by audit, no reply was furnished
by the management.

Sr. Para No. Audit Observation NICSI Reply

No.

1. |F.Y.2020-21 National informatics Centre Services Incorporated |NICSI Board of Directors, in its 112th meeting held on
Para No.1 of (NICSI) empanelled five consulting companies ie.|28.01.2020, had been informed that "NICSI was not
Part-1l A considering floating any new tender towards empanelling

Consulting Agencies, as it was likely that such services
would be available on GeM in the near future”.

Subsequently, due to demand from users, the existing
empanelment for “e-Governance Projects/Services in ICT
Area’ was extended upto 15.06.2020 as per tender clause
mentioned in empanelment and thereafter, with the
approval of Chairman, NICSI upto 31.12.2020

In the meantime, the process of floating a new tender was
initiated in the month of July, 2020 but due to COVID-19
pandemic& corresponding delays, the fresh empanelment
could not be finalized timely and to fulfill the critical/
ongoing project requirements from various Ministries/
Departments, the Board had approved the extension of
Consultancy empanelment beyond 31.12.2020 from
time to time up to 31.12.2021.Fresh empanelment was
however, finalized on 22.10.2021 and empanelment
letters issued.

NICSI had issued the PO’s against earlier empanelment
as per the requests from Ministries/ Departments and
approvals of Competent Authority from time to time but
after fresh empanelment; no PO had been issued by NICSI
as per earlier empanelled rates.

NICSI had initiated the process timely for fresh
empanelment of the Agency through open tender as
per the Provisions in the GFRs. However, due to Covid-19
epidemic and consequent delays, the empanelment
could not be finalized in time. It is not correct to conclude
that NICSI had extended the undue favour to the existing
empanelled agencies

However, it would be ensured that NICSI starts the
empanelment process quiet well in time and finalize the
same before expiry of the existing empanelments, unless
un-foreseen circumstances are there.

(The chronological wise statement of all the tender
activitiesis prepared and placed as Annexure-C and placed
at the end of table)

In view of above, it is requested to dropped the para.
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Service Incorporated (NICSD has empanelled M/s
Standard Trading Company for Personalization of
Machine Readable Passport(MRP) at all Regional
Passport Offices (RPOs) across the Country vide
empanelment letter dated 27.082018. In the
empanelment letter for hiring of agency for
personalization of Overseas Citizens of India (OCI) and
other similar travel documents of GOI, an amendment
had been made on 04.09.2018 vide which a foreign
exchange fluctuation rate had been incorporated.
The clause states that if foreign exchange rate is more
than 10% than the rate recorded on the last date of
submission of tender, rate revision is applicable.

As per the terms and conditions of the work order with
Ministry, MEA shall place 40% (of annual estimated
work) as advance with NICSI against the Indemnity
Bond. Further, NICSI shall raise a monthly bill to MEA
including NICSI administrative charges @ 7% plus GST
as applicable.

During the review of the records relating to payment
received by NICSI from MEA, it was observed that an
amount of Rs.3.34 crore on account of variation in
foreign exchange rate has been lying unrecovered
from the Ministry of External Affairs as no action was
taken by the management to recover the same. No
correspondence relating to recovery of the same was
available in the records made available to audit and no
payment has been made by MEA till date.

On being pointed out by audit no reply was furnished
by the management.

Sr. Para No. Audit Observation NICSI Reply
No.
Sr. Description Vendor Rate / Rate as Difference | Percentage
No. Manmonth as per new in Rates Deference
per extended empanelment | (In Rupees)| inrates
empanelment (In Rupees)
(In Rupees)
1. | Consultants with 15 years and above experience 3,88,000 3,50,000 38,000 9.79
(Management/Functional/Technology profile)
2. | Consultantswith 10yearsandlessthan 15 years experience 3,84,800 3,00,000 84,800 10.39
((Management/Functional/Technology profile)
3. | Consultants with 6 years and less than 10 years experience 3,02,400.00 2,75,000.00 27,400.00 9.06
((Management/Functional/Technology profile)
4. | Consultants with 3 years and less than 6 years experience 2,70,000.00 2,55,000.00 35,000.00 12.96
((Management/Functional/Technology profile)
5. |Consultants with less than 3 years experience 2,16,000.00 2,10,000.00 6,000.00 278
((Management/Functional/Technology profile)
6. |Subject Matter Expert 3,34,800.00 3,34,800.00 0.00 0.00
Total 18,46,000.00 17,04,800.00| 1,41,200.00 7.65
2. |F.Y.2020-21 On the basis of request received from Ministry of | NICSI has taken up the matter with the Ministry of External
Para No.2 of External Affairs (MEA), National Informatics Centre | Affairs to pay the difference in amount due to Foreign
Part-1l A Exchange variation. In this regard, NICSI had written mail

/ letter to MEA on 21.06.2021 & 07.07.2021. MEA, vide
letter dated 13.09.2021, had requested NICSI to provided
certain information / clarifications in the matter. NICSI
had accordingly, provide the same to MEA, vide letter
dated 28.09.2021 and again, vide letter dated 04.04.2022.
However, the amount from MEA is still awaited. NICSI has
also held meeting with MEA recently to clarify the details
in person and it is likely that the amount be released by
MEA to NICSI in the near future.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.
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extending National Knowledge Network (NKN) to
Global Research and Education Network in selected
SAARC nations for six network links ie. Afganistan
to Delhi(Af-De) or Afganistan to Mumbai (Af-Mu),
Bangladesh to Kolkata (Ba-Ko), Bhutan to Kolkata
(Bh-Ko), Maldives to Mumbai(Ma-Mu) or Maldives to
Chennai (MaOCh), Nepal to Delhi (Ne-De), Sri Lanka to
Chennai (SI-Ch) or Sri lanka to Mumbai (SI-Mu).

The Tender Evaluation Committee constituted by
NICSI opened the bids received from the bidders on
25.06.2020 and only two bidders namely M/s Bharti
Airtel Limited and M/s Tata Communications Limited
had participated in the tender. The Committee
observed that both the bidders were meeting all the
requirements of Technical specifications.

As per the minutes of Financial Evaluation Committee
meeting dated 04.082020, the committee
recommended M/s Bharti Airtel as the lowest
financial bidder (L1) for all the network links except
the Afganistan link and the empanelment letter was
issued to M/s Bharti Airtel on 27.08.2020 in respect
of five links. During scrutiny of records the following
lapses were observed by audit:-

(1) Rule 183 of GFR, 2017 which inter alia states that:

(i) Where the estimated cost of the consulting service
is up to Rupees Twenty-Five lakhs, preparation of a
long list of potential consultants may be done on
the basis of formal or informal enquiries from other
Ministries or Department or Organizations involved in
similar activities, Chambers of Commerce & Industry,
Association of consultancy firms etc-Rule 183(i).

(i) Where the estimated cost of the consulting services
is above Ruppes Twenty-Five lakhs, in addition to (i)
above, an enquiry for seeking ‘Expression of Interest’
from consultants should be published on Central
Public Procurement Portal (CPPP) at www.eprocure.
govin and on Government eMarketplace (GeM). An
organization having its own website should also
publish all the advertised tender enquiries on the
website-Rule 183(ii).

Sr. Para No. Audit Observation NICSI Reply

No.

3. |F.Y.2020-21 National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated | NICSIwould start to maintain a list of potential Consultants
Para No.3 of (NICSI) floated an open tender (March 2020) for |in the relevant field and would follow the GFR provisions in
Part-1l A this regard in future.

NICSI did not publish the EOI and as per past practice, it
had followed the recommendations of RFP Committee.
However, as per audit observation, NICSI has now started
following EOI route for Consultancy Services as per GFR
provisions, before floating the bids.

NICSI had followed the Technical Evaluation Committee
Recoommendations with the approval of Competent
Authority and had not re-tendered, as it would have
further delayed the empanelment process.

Estimation of expenditure has not been done as per past
practice. However, the Audit advice has been noted and its
compliance would be done in future.

NICSI had empanelled the vendors segment-wise as
per L-1 rates as per the recommendation of Financial
Evaluation Committee. However, after the Audit
observation, NICSI has started doing estimation of the
reasonable expenditure for all the tenders as per the GFR
provisions.

NICSI had adopted NIC empanelments (M/s. Bharti Airtel
Limited & M/s. Tata Communications Limited vide letter
both dated 23.03.2018), vide letters dated 24.04.2018
to both the agencies; for a period upto 23.03.2020 only.
Subsequently, NIC, vide letter dated 15.05.2020, had
extended the periodicity of empanelment for both the
agencies for the period from 23.03.2020 to 30.09.2020.
Accordingly, after obtaining internal approvals, NICSI had
also extended the empanelment period of both these
agencies for the period from 23.03.2020 to 30.09.2020
on same terms and conditions, mentioning there-in that
“NICSI would pay the price as per new empanelment rate
after 23.03.2020, if the new rates discovered through
the tender were less than the current rate”. However, no
document is available in the tender file towards further
extension of the periodicity of the empanelment from
01.10.2020 to 30.11.2020 neither from NIC side nor from
NICSI.

As regards, the high rate given it is mentioned that NICSI
had empanelled the agencies vide letter dated 27.08.2020
forthe products/ services butin the new empanelment the
rates had been less as compared to previous empanelment
of 23.03.2018. During the period from 23.03.2020, NICSI
had issued various work orders to M/s Bharti Airtel Limited
at the earlier empanelled rates but it is seen there-from
that inadvertently, the condition towards applicability of
new empanelled rates (in case these are lower than the
earlier rates, had not been followed. However, since the
condition was there in empanelment letter, NICSI is now
taking up the matter with M/s Bharti Airtel to refund the
excess amount paid against the said work orders.
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Sr.
No.

Para No.

Audit Observation

NICSI Reply

[t was observed that in violation of Rule 13 of GFR
2017, NICSI did not publish an enquiry for seeking
‘Expression of Interest’ from consultants on Central
Public Portal (CPPP) at www.eprocure.gov.in, on GeM
and on its website

(2) Rule 184 of GFR, 2017 states that the number of
shortlisted consultants should not be less than three,
however, only two bidders had submitted the bids in
response to the tender floated and NICSI, instead of
retendering, proceeded with the tendering process.

(3) As per the Rule 182 of the General Financial Rules
2017, Ministry or Department proposing to engage
consultant(s) should estimate reasonable expenditure
for the same by ascertaining the prevalent market
conditions and consulting other organizations
engaged in similar activities. However, as per the
record available, no estimation is prepared by NICSI.

(4) There is huge variation in the Gross Total Value
quoted by both the vendors in respect of 6 network
links as detailed below:-

Connectivity M/s.Bharti | M/s Tata Com- | Variation

Description Airtel munication in bids
Limited Limited (in %)

Afganistan to Delhi | Not quoted | 3,09,85,290

(Af-De) Afganistan

to Mumbai (Af-Mu)

Bangladesh to 411,331 564,671 37.27

Kolkata (Ba-Ko)

Bhutan to Kolkata | 99,891 6,29,506 530.19

(Bh-Ko)

Maldives to 24,63,167 48,24,960 95.88

Mumbai (Ma-Mu)

or Maldives to

Chennai (Ma-Ch)

Nepal to Delhi 3,14,994 4,08,613 29.72

(Ne-De)

Sri Lanka to 13,44,731 19,59,386 45.70

Chennai (SI-Ch)

or Sri Lanka to

Mumbai (Sl-Mu)

Thus, in the absence of the estimation of the
reasonable expenditure for the tender and considering
the huge variation involved in the rates quoted by the
two bidders, the reasonableness of the bids quoted
cannot be ensured.

(5) NICSI had an ongoing tender of empanelment
of Internet Connectivity Service providing to SAARC
nations under NKN Project. M/s. Tata Communications
Limited (Kolkata-Bangladesh link) and M/s. Bharti
Airtel Limited (Chennai-Sri Lanka and Delhi Bhutan
link) were empanelled for a period of two years i.e. till

For the Afghanistan links, NICSI had received a single bid
from M/s. Tata Communications Limited only and the
same was mentioned by the FEC in its meeting held on
20.08.2020. The FEC had however recommended that
“NICSI may take necessary action as per Tender terms &
conditions and GFR rules”.

NICSI had examined the above as per Rule 166 & 173
of the GFRs and quoting the provision there-of, had
forwarded the proposal to the FEC (Member Convenor)
on 16.10.2020, but the file returned back to NICSI Tender
Division without any recommendations/ observations on
04.10.2021. There-after, no action had been taken there-in
towards empanelment of any vendor for Afghanistan link
and the activity itself not been undertaken in the project.

The details towards inviting and finalizing the tender
process for SAARC nations is already mentioned above
in detail. However, as assured above NICSI would take
necessary actions as per GFRs in future while finalizing any
further empanelment either for NKN or any other activity.

As mentioned in reply to (5) above, NICSI is taking up the
matter with the concerned vendor to refund the excess
amount paid by NICSI in NKN project against work orders
issued towards SAARC empanelment from time to time.
Audit may verify the same during next inspection.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.
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20.03.2020 (further extended till 30.11.2020)
respectively vide letters dated 20.05.2020 with a
condition that NICSI will pay the price as per new
empanelment rate after 23.03.2020, if the new rates
discovered through the tender is less than the current
rate.

The rates discovered in the new tender floated in
March 2020 were discovered less than and NICSI was
supposed to make the payment to M/s Bharti Airtel
Limited as per new rates. However, it was observed
that the payment made to M/s. Bharti Airtel Limited
and M/s Tata Communication Limited was as per the
old rates on the insistence of vendors resulted into an
avoidable payment of Rs.15.94 lakh, which needs to
be recovered from the concerned vendors.

(6) For the Afghanistan link, NICSI received a single
bid from M/s. Tata Communication Limited only. It
was approved on 16.10.2020 that Financial Evaluation
Committee may examine the bid of M/s Tata
Communication Limited in light of provisions of GFR,
2017. However, as per the records no further details
are available on the file regarding examination of the
bid by FEC regarding whether the Afghanistan link was
not required as no progress in this regard was noticed
on file after 16.10.2020.

Thus NICSI finalized the tender for extending National
Knowledge Network (NKN) to Global Research and
Education Network in selected SAARC nations in
violation of relevant General Financial Rules 2017.

On being pointed out by audit, no reply was furnished
by the management.
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Centre Services Incorporated (NICSI) for more than
10 years. A memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
is being entered on yearly basis between MoPR with
National Informatics Centre (NIC) and NICSI.

As per the accounts of NICSI for the year 2020-
21, E-Panchayat Maintenance & Training of PES
Applications including unified application Project has
anet balance of Rs.67.35 lakh and Rs.3.75 crore (total
amountingtoRs.4.42 crore) respectively relatingtotwo
project numbers-C170093GNND(Project for the year
2017-18 and 2018-19) and C200026GNND(Project
for the year 2020-21). However, as per the Utilization
Certificate (UC) submitted by NICSI for the year
2020-21 in respect of the scheme relating to
E-Panchayat of MoPR, there was a closing balance
(unutilized balance) of rs.3.78 crore. Further, it was
also observed that there are 4 other projects (Project
No.81019/MIS/ND, C120488GNND, C132034GNND,
C190054GNND) relating to E-Panchayat Maintenance
& Training of PES Applications including unified
application Project having balances of Rs.2.30 crore
(Rs.1.54 crore+Rs.0.51 crore+Rs.0.27 crore+Rs.0.02
crore) as per ERP ledger as on 31.03.2021, which
are not appearing in the accounts. Thus, there is a
variation in the figures appearing in UC, ERP ledger
as well the accounts of NICSI relating to E-Panchayat
Maintenance & Training of PES Applications Project.
Further, from 2019-20 onwards, the Project is not a
Grant in Aid project as the funding is being made by
MoPR from Office Expenses Head instead of Grant in
Aid Head.

On being pointed out of audit, no reply was furnished
by the management.

Action to be taken by auditee:

The reasons for difference between balances
appearing in UC, ERP ledger and accounts of NICSI
and for depiction of the project during the year 2020-
21 under Grant-in-Aid project Head may be intimated
to the audit.

Steps taken to reconcile the balances may also be
intimated to audit.

Sr. Para No. Audit Observation NICSI Reply

No.

4 F.Y.2020-21 The Ministry of Panchayati Raj (MoPR) Project” | NICSI has been implementing a number of projects from
Para No.4 of Procurement of E-Panchayat-PES Maintenance & | Ministry of Panchayati Raj (MoPR) for several years and
Part-1l A Training is being implemented by National Informatics | there has been no variation in the figures between ERP

Ledger / UC’s. However, in FY. 2020-21, it was felt that
the balances of different project Id's with NICSI from
MoPR be merged and a single UC be prepared, which
was accordingly done. However, as various Work Orders
remained unexecuted in different projects, it had resulted
some variations between the figures of ERP Ledgers
and the UC, whereas, in actual, there is no difference in
the figures for all the projects taken together. Further, it
is mentioned that the Accounts of all the GIA Projects
are Audited by CA Firm every year and there has been
no adverse observation towards any head of Account/
amount in any of the Audit Certificates so far. The details
project-wise may please be re-verified during next Audit.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.
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No.

5 F.Y.2020-21 The Board in its meeting held on 30.12.2020 extended | These empanelments relate to Help Desk/ Call centre, GIS
Para No.5 of the period from 1 January 2021 to 31* March 2021 | & Remote Sensing projects and Website Development.
Part-1l A or finalization of new tender whichever is earlier in | Reply towards delay in these empanelments is same,

respect of following empanelments.

S.
n.

Description

Empanelment
period as per
empanelment
letter

Extension
option as per
empanelment
letter

1 | Empanelment of 24.08.2015to | 24.08.2017 to
service providers for [23.08.2017 |23.08.2019
establishmentand | (2 years) (2 years)
operations of Help
Desk/ Call Centre
to support ICT
Infrastructure service
& e-Governance
applications.

2 | Empanelment 22.04.2016 to [ 22.04.2018 to
of Technical 21.04.2018 21.04.2019
Resource for Desigh, | (2 years) (2 years)

Development,
Maintenance &
Administration of GIS
and Remote Sensing
Projects-2020

3 | Empanelment of
agencies for System
study, Design,
development,
Implementation

and Maintenance

of Websites, Web
portals, Web enables
applications and
Mobile Apps.

01.07.2016 to
30.06.2018
(2 years)

01.07.2018 to
30.06.2018
(2 years)

Thus it was observed during the review of records
relating to the period April 2020 to March 2021
that the empanelment period in these cases has
been extended beyond the validity of empanelment
including the extended period as per the
empanelment letter.

There is considerable delay in finalisation of fresh
empanelment tenders by the NICSI. With the fast
Information & Communication Technology (ICT)
upgradation and the download trends in the rates, the
fresh empanelments need to be finalised timely so that
the user department will get the benefit of the same.

During the year 2020-21, in respect of old
empanelments, work orders amounting to Rs.276.43
crore (Rs.896 crore (relating to Help Desk/ Call
Centre) + Rs4.62 crore (relating to GIS & Remote
sensing projects) + Rs.262.85 crore (relating to Website
development) have been issued to the vendors the
empanelments of whom were already expired.

as given for the empanelment of e-Gov Consultancy
Services against Audit Observation at SL. No. 1 above.

However, extension was granted by the NICSI Board of
Directors from time to time, as the fresh empanelment
was under process. To maintain the further continuity
of the existing manpower services under the said
empanelment, the extension has been done for ongoing
projects.

The present status of these tenders is as under:

1 Empanelment of service providers for establishment
and operation of Help Desk/Call Centre to support ICT
Infrastructure services & e-Governance applications
has finalized and empanelment letter issued on
11.03.2021.

2. Empanelment of Agencies to Engage Technical
Resources for GIS and Remote Sensing Projects. (Tier-
2 and Start-up) has finalized and empanelment letter
issued on 27.08.2021.

3. Empanelment of Agencies for System Study, Design,
Development, Implementation and Maintenance
of Websites, Web Portals, Web Enabled Applications
and Mobile Apps has finalized for Start Up & Tier-1 on
13.04.2021 & 24.11.2021 respectively. For Tier-Il &Il
tender is under process.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.

| 207



various Ministries/departments/Organizations as a
pure agent, for which NICSI charges administrative
charges fixed from time to time. During the review
of the records it was observed that NICSI made the
investment of its cash reserves in the following
proposals:

(A) The proposal for Information & Communication
Technology (ICT) Infrastructure for cloud enablement
at National Data Centre (NDC), Bhubaneswar of
National Informatics Centre (NIC) with an estimated
outlay of Rs. 97.76 crore was approved by the Board
of Directors of National Informatics Centre Services
Incorporated (NICSD) inits meeting held on 28.03.2017.
The cost of Rs.97.76 crore included Rs.85.76 crore
towards capital expenditure, Rs.9 crore for operation
expenditure and Rs.3 crore as contingencies for three
years. The expenditure was to be met out entirely out
of the NICSI's cash reserves. The revenue generated
by using the cloud services was to accrue to NICSI.

The Board was informed in its 112th meeting held
on 2801.2020 that the establishment of basic
infrastructure at NIC's NDC Bhubaneswar is completed
keeping in view the present trend of offering services
over the cloud. First phase of the cloud, populating
14 racks, has been completed, which will facilitate
the proposal for provisioning of services over cloud
with more agility and also integrate with NIC National
Cloud services.

Further, the proposal for provisioning of software
defined cloud ICT Infrastructure for remaining 34 racks
at NDC Bhubaneswar was approved bt the Board in
its 112th meeting held on 28.01.2020. The total cost
involved in the project would be around Rs.211 crore
as capital and Rs.17 crore towards manpower etc. (total
Rs.228 crore) involving three phases in five years.

As on 31.03.2021, the total expenditure incurred
by NICSI for cloud set up at NDC Bhubaneswar was
Rs.124.94 crore and the revenue generated from NDC
Bhubaneswar by NICSI till March 2021 amounted to
Rs.12.35 crore.

It was observed that NICSI did not have any approved
Investment Policy. Further, NICSI has not entered into
any Memorandum of understanding (MoU) with NIC
till date in respect of the cloud enablement at NDC
Bhubaneswar.

The approval of the MeitY in this regard was also not
available on records. The proposal for utilization of
NICSI cash reserve was approved by the Board initially
on the basis of recommendation of sub-committee
formed by the Board.

Sr. Para No. Audit Observation NICSI Reply

No.

6 | F.Y.2020-21 NICSlimplements large number of new computerand | The status of NICSI Reserves had been reviewed at
Para No.6 of computer communication projects every year from | Government Level around 5-6 years back and it had been
Part-1l A felt that NICSI to use the same towards strengthening

its objectives, for which the NIC may consider & give
proposals. Accordingly, both these proposals had been
received from NIC after approval by the Competent
Authority there and after obtaining approval from its
Board of Directors, NICSI had implemented the same.
However, one of these projects ie. Augmentation
of District Infrastructure was without any return on
investment but since the Districts have been providing
the services covering / augmentation entire nation,
NICSI had incurred the expenditure, as upgradation of IT
Infrastructure has been one of its objectives.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.
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Para No.

Audit Observation

NICSI Reply

The sub-committee formed by the Board. The sub-
committee was asked to examine the issue whether
the revised Standing Finance Committee (SFC) is
required for sharing the facility towards providing ICT
Infrastructure at the centre between NIC and NICSI'in
case the expenditure in this regard is met out of the
NICSI cash reserves. However, the minutes of meeting
of sub-committee were silent on the issue.

Thus, the NICSI continued to fund the ICT
Infrastructure for Cloud Enablement at national
Data Centre, Bhubaneswar of National Informatics
Centre out of its own cash reserves without any MoU
between NICSI and NIC and without the approval of its
Ministry i.e. MeitY.

(B) The Board of Directors in its 100th Meeting held
on 28.03.2017 approved funding of Rs. 99 crore
out of NICSI's cash reserves for phase | of District
2.0 "Augmentation of District Infrastructure to cater
to Digital India Initiative” without any return on
investment. Till 31.03.2021, an expenditure of Rs.
85.20 crore had been incurred and contingent liability
of Rs. 13.80 crore had been provided in the books of
accounts. As pert the records available, the approval
of MeitY was taken in this regard.

The justification for funding a project without any
return on investment was called for but the reply was
awaited from the Management.

F.Y.2020-21
Para 0.7 of
Part-ll A

A Project Management Unit (PMU)-Management
was constituted at directorate of Social Justice
and Empowerment (DoSJE), Jaipur to take care
of requirements of four of its Directorates (DoSJE,
Department of Specially Abled Persons, Department
of Child Rights and Department of SCDC). The
Directorate submitted a Project Execution Form on
28.05.2020 to NICSI to start the Project in the month
of June/ July 2020 and submitted the requirements
of manpower to be deployed by M/s Ermnst & Young
with relevant details and specifications.

During scrutiny of records, it was observed that
National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated
(NICSD) issued the work order on 13.07.2020
amounting to Rs.10.76 crore to M/s Ernst & Young.
DoSJE, Jaipur January 2021) communicated to NICSI
that M/s Ernst & Young did not deploy the complete
team as required under work order we.f. July 2020
and had instead deployed the team from 12.10.2020
onwards i.e. with a delay of 10 weeks. Further, DoSJE,
Jaipur communicated to NICSI that the services
of M/s Ernst & Young were being terminated wef.
01.01.2021 as the services provided by M/s Ernst &
Young were not found satisfactory.

In brief, the details of the matter are as under:
e SJED, Jaipur had forwarded proposal to NICSI to

provide manpower at various positions for different
periods.

NICSI had issued Performa Invoice (Pl) dated
19.05.2020 for Rs. 11.51 crore towards the above.

SJED, had submitted PEF dated 28.05.2020 to NICSI,
along-with forwarding letter of same date.

On 09.06.2020, SJED transferred the amount of Rs.
2,58,64,523/-to NICSI.

NICSI had issued Work Order dated 13.07.2020 to
M/s E&Y for Rs. 10.76 crore excluding NICSI Operating
Margin. E&Y started deploying manpower at SJED, from
different dates between 29.06.2020 to 07.09.2020.

SJED, vide mails dated 27.08.2020 and 07.09.2020,
had informed NICSI that manpower at various
positions was not deployed till then. SJED, vide letter
dated 17.09.2020, had informed NICSI towards their
said 2 mails and requested NICSI to intimate about
the funds received from SJED / UC for fund used /
balance amount available / invoices generated against
fund used / copy of Agreement or MoU entered into
by NICSI with Wipro and E&Y in the project / penalty
clauses.
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NICSI Reply

DoSJE, Jaipur (August 2021) turned down the offer
of M/s E&Y submitted through NICSI vide email dated
11.01.2021 and 01.02.2021 to consider the period
of intimation of the project from 01.10.2020 and
requested the NICSI to refund the amount of Rs.2.88
crore given to NICSI as advance.

Audit, however, did not find any action taken by NICSI
against M/s E&Y in this regard on record, nor the
amount as demanded by DoSJE refunded.

No reply was furnished by nICSl in this regard.

e No reply seems to have been issued by NICSI to
SJED to the above, except Partial Settlement of
Account Statement dated 07.10.2020 sent to them
showing “0" amount utilized & entire fund of Rs.
2,58,64,523/-available with NICSI.

e SJED, vide letter dated 01.01.2021, informed NICSI
that the services provide by E&Y were not satisfactory
and therefore, are terminated from 01.01.2021 itself.

e SJED, vide letter dated 05.01.2021, informed NICSI
that E&Y was to deploy manpower from July, 2020
but even after 10 weeks ie. till 12.10.2020, it was not
entirely deployed and therefore, as per Clause No. (C)2
of the Work Order, NICSI may take necessary action
towards  "Penalty” on E&Y under intimation to SJED.

e E&Y, vide mail dated 11.01.2021, attached
representation to NICSI towards termination of their
services in the project.

e NICSI, vide mail dated 11.01.2021, had forwarded said
E&Y letter to SJED.

e SJED, vide mail dated 15.01.2021, had requested
NICSI to provide comments / views / input on the
“presentation” submitted and also, on their letters
/ mails dated 27.08.2020 / 07.09.2020/17.09.202
0/29.09.2020/01.01.2021/05.01.2021. NICSI, vide
mail dated 01.02.2021, informed SJED that as per
E&Y representation, the project start date may be
considered we.f. 01.10.2020 and penalty clause can
be deliberated accordingly. NICSI requested SJED
to accept it and to withdraw their notices dated
01.01.2021 & 05.01.2021, assuring that E&Y would
comply with all its obligations as per the Work Order.

e SJED,videletterdated 17.08.2021, had requested NICSI
to return the entire said amount of Rs. 2,87,92,583/-,
along-with penalty amount received from M/s E&Y as
per said Clause No. (C)2 in the Work Order.

Towards the above, a Committee has been set-up in NICS|,
vide OM dated 21.03.2022 (Copy Enclosed) to consider
and gives its recommendation on settling the matter.
The Committee is still in process of the same. As soon as,
the Recommendations of the Committee are received
and the matter is resolved , the Audit office would be
immediately informed of the same.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.
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Project Management Support and Rollout Service
(Category-2) on finalisation of tender relating to the
same. The empanelment is initially valid for three
years from the date of the contract awarded and
additionally two years annual extension. In both the
categories, ten agencies have been empanelled
which include four Micro & Small Enterprises (MSE)
and one start up agency each.

A

0

(i)

During the review of tender documents and its
finalization process, it was observed that:-

The estimated number of manpower to be
engaged and estimated cost of the work was not
mentioned in the tender document. Itis pertinent
to mention that the Company is procuring
manpower worth hundreds of crores of rupees
through this tender.

In the Category-1 under Office Support Service,
the resource category is Multi Tasking Support,
Office  Assistance Support and Accounting
Support which are purely non-technical in
nature and are not covered in objectives of the
Company.

(i) The criteria for allocating the tender quantity

(iv)

among the successful bidders need to be
articulated in the tender document itself.
However the tender document is silent in this
respect.

In both the categories, there is huge variation
in the margins quoted by the vendors ranging
from 30% to 90% (except in one case where
the variation is 20.80%-in respect of M/s Akal
Information Services Limited and M/s SISL
Infotech Private Limited). Thus, giving the counter
offers to bidders other than L1 for matching the
L1 bid despite the huge variation (variations
being more than 20%) is not justified.

(B) As per Rule 153 of General Financial Rules (GFR),

2017, Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises (MSME) have notified procurement
policy under section 11 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

As per public procurement policy for Micro & Small
Enterprises (MSEs) Order, 2018, every Central
Ministry/ department/ PSUs shall set an annual
target for 25% procurement from MSE Sector.

Sr. Para No. Audit Observation NICSI Reply

No.

8 | F.Y.2020-21 NICSI has empanelled agencies on 13.02.2020 to | As per past practice NICSI has not been estimating the
Para No. 8 of provide Office Support Service (Category-1) and | number of manpower to be engaged and its estimated
Part-1l A cost against each tender. However, as per Audit advice,

NICSI has started mentioning in the tender the estimated
quantity of the services to be provided and its estimated
cost.

NICSlis an IT providing company however in each & every
IT project, be itin any field, it cannot be construed that the
entire activity is to be performed by the Technical persons
only and in performing the activity, the element of Non-
Technical support is always involved. NICSI provides the
manpower both on Technical & Non-Technical side, as
per the requirements of the users from time to time in the
projects. No-where in NICSI constitution, it is mentioned
that it cannot provide Non-Technical support in any IT
related project.

NICSI has its SoP dated 15.09.2020 and Office orderdated
02.12.2020, according to which the manpower providing
services are to be distributed amongst the empanelled
agencies. However, in each& every project, it depends
on the user to intimate to NICSI through the PEF as to
which agency the order is to be placed, out of total
agencies empanelled with it, details of which are every
time provided by NICSI to user through the Pls. Further, as
mentioned in reply to para no.10 of this report, the Board
of directors in its 1215 meeting held on 26.03.2022 had
approved that the provisions of SoPs be followed for the
activities in ‘Project Mode’ & office order for activities in
‘Manpower Mode'. NICSI is now be operating accordingly.

The RFP document is drafted and finalized by a RFP
committee. After floating the bid document, the pre-bid
meeting is also held by this committee and as per queries
there-at, the committee considers and recommended
and issues amendment to the bid document and NICSI
accordingly, issues the Corrigendum from time to time.
The relevant provisions towards margin are also taken
care of by the RFP committee. However, as per Audit
advice, the point related to margin has been noted and
would be taken care of in the bids to be floated in future.

The audit point has been examined and it is mentioned
that in the PI's (Performa Invoice) to be issued by NICSI
to the users in future it would be mentioned against
each agencies whether is MSME or in any other category.
However, placing of order to any agency by NICSI
depends on the user intimating the name of agency to
which order is to be placed, as per its SoP/ Office order.
NICSI has thus, no role in selecting the agency for issue of
Work Order in any project.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.
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During the review of work order placed (2020-21) in
respect of this tender, though NICSI has empanelled 4
MSEs (being 40%) out of total 10 agencies, however,
out of total work orders of Rs.4443.27 crore issued
during the year 2020-21, the work orders issued to
MSE amounts to Rs.46.32 crore which is 10.44 per
cent only of the total work orders. Thus, the same
is in violation to General Financial Rules and Public
Procurement Policy for Micro and Small Enterprises
(MSEs) Order, 2018.

No reply was furnished by the management.

F.Y.2020-21
Para No.9 of
Part-1l A

NICSI procure the hardware, system software,
application  software, software  development,
customized software, intra-networking, wide area

networking, video conferencing, Information
Technology  Training, Information  Technology
Consultancy and Information Technology

Implementation support etc. and provides the same
to Central Government, state Government and Public
Sector Undertakings etc.

As per Manual for Procurement of Consultancy &
Other Services, 2017 the obligations of Procuring
authorities can be grouped into following five
fundamental principles of public procurement,
which all procuring authorities must abide by and be
accountable for:

i.  Transparency principle;

ii. Professionalism principle;

ii. Broader obligations principle;
iv. Extrinsic Legal principle and

v. Public accountability principle.

Further, as per manual, the following additional
principles shall be considered during Procurement of
Consultancy and other services:-

i.  Services to be procured should be justifiable.

ii. In case of Consultancy Services — well-defined
scope of work / Terms of Reference (ToR-
description of services) and the time frame, for
which services are to be availed of, should be
determined consistent with overall objectives
of Procuring Entity. In other (non-consultancy
services) Activity Schedule (a document covering
well-defined scope of work/description of
services and the time frame for which services
are to availed of) should be consistent with overall
objectives of Procuring Entity;

ii. Equal opportunity to all qualified service provider
/ consultants to complete should be ensured,

The Audit Observation is (i) NICSI does not have any
approved Procurement Manual, laying down the detailed
procedure to be followed for procurement, which is an
essentiality for such organization and (ii) during F.Y. 2020-
21, NICSI had issued Work Orders for around Rs. 843.94
crore towards manpower supply to its 47 empanelled
agencies, out of which around 50% Work Orders were
placed on 4 agencies only.

Towards the above, the position is as under:

A draft Procurement Manual had been drafted around
5-6 years back in NICSI but was not finally approved /
adopted. The Audit Observation has been noted and
the proposal would be re-considered in NICSI to have
its own Procurement Manual and the position would
be informed to the F&C Audit office accordingly.

During FY. 2020-21, NICSI had  assigned the
manpower procurement & supply Work Orders to
its empanelled agencies, as per the provisions in
its SOP’s dated 26.04.2016 & 15.09.2020 (copies
enclosed), according to which the User organization
informs its “Preferred Vendor” to NICSI (out of the
empanelled agencies) through the Project Execution
Form (PEF), copy enclosed. However, NICSI has
organized “Vendor Development Programme” for all
its empanelled partners to have better distribution of
business amongst them.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.
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Audit Observation
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iv. Engagements should be economical and efficient.

v. Transparency and integrity in the selection
process (i.e. proposed, awarded, administrated and
executed according to highest ethical standards).

vi. Additionally, in procurement of consultancy
services, consultants should be high quality,

During scrutiny of records related to the year 2020-
21, it was observed that NICSI issued works orders
of Rs. 1897.16 crore to its empanelled agencies
for procurement of goods and services for various
government department and PSUs, however, the
Company does not have approved procurement
manual. The procurement manual being a manual
lying down the detailed procedure to be followed for
procurement is an essentiality for organization like
NICSI.

The Management in the reply stated that a draft
procurement manual had been drafted around 5-6
years back in NICSI but was not finally approved/
adopted. The Audit Observation has been noted the
proposal would be reconsidered in NICSI to have its
own procurement manual and the position would be
informed accordingly.

As per the CVC guidelines, the system of allocation
of work should be fair, transparent and equitable,
however, considering the skewed procurement
from these four vendors only, equity, fairness and
transparency cannot be ensured.

Out of total work orders issued during the year 2020-
21 of Rs. 1897.16 crore, work orders amounting to
Rs. 843.94 crore (44.48%) were issued in respect of
manpower procurements.

Formanpower procurements, work orders were issued
to 47 empanelled agencies by NICSI during the year
2020-21.However, four vendors ie. Akal Information
systems Limited (12.78%), SISL InfoTech Private
Limited (9.04%), Velocis systems Private Limited
(17.03%) and Wipro Limited (10.5%) were having
approx. 50% of the work orders during the year 2020-
21.As all the agencies were empanelled on the same
rates, the justification for providing majority of work to
these four vendors was not available on record.

Management in the reply stated that as per the
provisions in its Standing Operating Procedure, the
user organization informs its “Preferred Vendor” to
NICSI (out of its empanelled agencies) through the
Project Execution Form.
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10

F.Y.2020-21
Para No.10 of
Part-1l A

As per the “"Standard Operating Procedure” dated
15.09.2020 of NICSI relating to “Empanelment of
vendors and assignment of work to them”, in case
more than one vendor are empanelled then the
assignment of work shall be decided on receipt
of request from a user department. In case the
user department does not indicate any particular
agency, the work would be awarded based on the
recommendations of a committee to be set up by the
client department. The committee would be headed
by a chairperson to be nominated by and belonging
to the user department including a representative of
NICSI.

Audit observed that contrary to the above approved
“Standard Operating Procedure” vide office Order
dated 02.12.2020 decided to offer Preference to L1
bidders while giving the procurement orders and to
incorporate the same clause in the draft bid/ tender
document.

On being pointed out by audit no reply was furnished
by the management.

NICSI Board of Directors, in its 121st meeting held
on 26.03.2022, had considered and approved that
the provisions of the SoP dated 15.09.2020 would be
applicable to the activities in ‘Project Mode’ and of
the Office Order dated 02.12.2020 to the activities in
‘Manpower Mode’. Relevant extracts from the Agenda &
Minutes of the meeting are enclosed.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.

11

F.Y.2020-21
Para No.11 of
Part-1l A

National Informatics Centre Services Incorporated
(NICSD implemented the ERP-the Accounting
Software from 01.07.2017 and the accounts of
NICSI from Financial Year 2017-18 onwards are
being prepared in ERP. The following shortcomings/
deficiencies in ERP software development or in the
implementation of same have been observed by
Audit.

() NICSI has got the ERP validated through System
audit carried out by an external independent
agency till date (January 2022) despite the lapse
of more than 4 years since implementation.

Management in the reply accepted the fact and
stated that NICSI has finalized the scope of work
and after taking the necessary internal approvals,
itisin the process to float the same on GeM portal
shortly. It is likely that the validation work would
be completed in next around three months after
awarding the work on L1 basis.

(i) Age wise details of debtors, creditors, advances
from suppliers and Grant in Aid are not generated
through ERP software of NICSI.

Management in the reply accepted that as the
data pertains since inception of NICSI in the year
1995, the details are also required to be booked
into from the Tally Package in which the accounts
were maintained earlier.

The point —wise replies are as under:

(i) NICSIhad completely adopted the ERP Software w-e-f
01.07.2017 towards Accounts and other related fields.
During the Audit for FY. 2017-18, it was observed that
the Accounting Software had not been validated
by any 3 agency. Accordingly, NICSI had taken up
the matter with STQC Directorate for validation of
NICSI Accounting software. Some discussions and
correspondence had taken placed but due to some
reasons and the Corona epidemic during since 2020,
the proposal was not finalized. Subsequently, NICSI
had invited Bids from its empanelled agencies for the
same and had finalized the L-1 agency but NICSI Board
of Directors, in its 120" meeting held on 26.11.2021,
had directed NICSI to float open tender towards the
same. NICSI has now finalized the “Scope of Work”
and after taking the necessary internal approvals, it is
in the process to float the same on GeM shortly. It is
likely that the validation work would be completed in
the next around 3 months after awarding of the work
on L-1 basis.

(ii) The data towards Debtors, Creditors , Advances to
Suppliers and Grants-In-Aid(GIA) is available in the
ERP and also, the Statements, as & when required,
are taken out from the ERP only. However, on some
occasions, as the data pertains since inception of
NICSI in the year 1995, the details are also required
to be looked into from the Tally package, in which
the Accounts were maintained earlier, to see the
narrations etc.
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(iii) The statement relating to Grant in Aid is being
prepared manually by NICSI and this led to
variation in the projects as per ERP and projects
as per Statement of Grant in Aid appearing in
Accounts. Further, the interest calculation in
respect of Grant in Aid projects for the year 2020-
21 was made through an external agency despite
the implementation of ERP in NICSI.

Management stated that it was not treating the
GIA projects in a different manner and treated
the amount received in GIA Projects as "Advance”
earlier. The entire amounts were being received
in common savings account however, from the
current Financial Year 2021-22, new individual
savings bank accounts have been opened and
therefore it is likely that the necessity to award
the interest calculation work to external would
not be there.

(iv) The fixed assets schedule as well as depreciation
calculation is being done manually and
incorporated in the Accounts of the Company.
Management in the reply accepted the fact that
at the time of customization of ERP Software,
the need to include the fixed asset schedule
was not inadvertently brought to the notice
of development team and therefore it was not
incorporated.

(v) Embedded Audit Module is an integral part of an
application system that is designed to identify and
report specific transactions or other information
based on pre-determined criteria. Identification
of reportable items occurs as part of real-time
processing. The Embedded Audit Modules
throw up alerts as well information to ensure
continued dependence on controls. However, it
was observed that NICSI has not implemented
Embedded Audit Module in its ERP-Accounting
Software even after a lapse of more than four
years from the time when ERP was implemented
in NICSI (July-2017). Thus, in the absence of the
Embedded Audit Module in ERP system, there is
higher risk of system violation.

The Management stated that this aspect would
be kept in view while getting the ERP Software
upgraded or newly customized in future. NicSl is also
in the process of empanelling the agencies through
open tender basis for undertaking ERP software
development and for this aspects would also be kept
in view while finalizing the bid for the same.

(iii) Since inception of NICSI in the year 1995, it has been

implementing various projects (currently 3000 per
yearn), very few of which had been funded by the
Govt. of India as Grants-In-Aid. As all the amounts
received in the projects had earlier been treated by
NICSI as “advance”, it was not treating the GIA projects
in a different manner and therefore, entire amounts
were being received in a common Saving Account.
However, as per an Audit observation, it was decided
that NICSI may refund the interest earned to the
Granter Departments since start of each project and
initially, it having been a big exercise to segregate the
GIA projects and to work out the year-wise interest
therein since start of each project, the work had been
given by NICSI to a CA Firm to workout the same.
Thereafter, individual Saving Accounts had been
opened in the Punjab national Bank(PNB) for the GIA
projects and from the current FY. 2021-22, new Saving
Account is being got opened in the PNB, immediately
the Administrative Approval / Sanction is received in
NCISI from the Granter Department. As the interest
earned would now be exclusively available for each
GIA Project through the respective Saving Account,
the interest earned would be worked out within NICSI
internally and it is likely that the necessity to award
the interest calculation work to an outside agency
would not be there.

(iv) At the time of customizing the ERP Software, the

)

need to include the fixed Asset schedule there-
in was not inadvertently brought to the notice of
the development team and therefore, it was not
incorporated. However, all these details, including
working out the depreciation there-on, are worked
out manually and are also thoroughly check by both
the Internal Audit Team & Statutory Audit Team and
no variation there-in has so far been observed.

At the time of customizing the ERP Software, NICSI
was not aware about the Embedded Audit Module
and therefore, it had not been included in the
same. However, this aspect would be kept in view
while getting the ERP Software upgraded or newly
customized in future. NICSI is also in the process of
empanelling the agencies through Open Tender basis
for undertaking ERP Software Development and this
aspect would also be kept in view while finalizing the
bids for the same.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.

| 215




Sr. Para No. Audit Observation NICSI Reply

No.

12 | F.Y.2020-21 Based on the decision taken by Department of | NIC Circular dated 18.06.2014 stipulated that “the bidding
Para No.12 of Electronics & Information Technology (now MeitY) on | process for project related activities will be conducted
Part-1l A by NICSI, with a DDG Rank officer of NIC chairing the

10.06.2014, NIC issued the following guidelines vide

circular dated 18.06.2014.

The paid projects will henceforth be implemented
through NICSI.

NICSI will ensure that the tendering process, bidding

process and strategic alliances fully comply with GFR

and other relevant rules.

The bidding process for project related activities
will be conducted by NICSI, with a DDG rank officer
of National Informatics Centre (NIC) chairing the
specifications and evaluation committees for ensuring
compliance with General Financial Rules (GFR) and
other relevant rules.

During the year 2020-21, the agencies have

been empanelled by NICSI for Support Services,

E-Governance Consultancy and for “Extending NKN

to Global Research & Education Network in selected

SAARC Nations™.

In this regard, the Audit observed that the constitution

of the committees in respect of tenders relating to

above empanelments i.e. RFP and Pre-Bid Committee,
Technical Evaluation Committee and Financial
Evaluation Committee, only the Member Convener
was appointed by NICSI and remaining members
including the Chairman were of NIC. Thus, the
representation of NICSI in these committee relating
to finalization of tenders was not adequate. MeitY
emphasized only on inclusion of DDG rank Officer of

NIC as Chairman of the Committee and the bidding

process for project related activities is required to

be conducted by NICSI. However, in respect of the
tenders for empanelment related to earlier periods
such as E-Governance Consultancy and Support

Services etc, the committees comprised of one more

member of NICSI besides the Member Convener of

NICSI.

Thus, the adequate representation of NICSI is
essential in these Committees as NICSI directly
undertakes the implementation of paid projects
for User Ministries/ departments/ States and other

Government Agencies besides the in-house projects

of NIC. The requirements of the projects are being

fulfilled through these empanelment. Further, Audit

did not find on record:

1. The reason/ justification for non-inclusion of
adequate number of members of NICSI in these
committees.

2. The role and responsibilities of Member Convener
of NICSI'in the above said committees along with
a Standard Operation Procedure.

No reply was furnished by the management

specifications and evaluation Committee(s) for ensuring
compliance with GFR and other relevant rules”.

The above Circular had been silent on the number of
members to be taken from NIC & NICSIin each Committee
and therefore, the said position had occurred. However,
after the Audit observation, other members are also being
nominated from NICSI side (apart from the Convenor) on
each Committee. The position may please be verified
during next Inspection.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the
para.
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No.

13 | F.Y.2020-21 During the records, the following lapses were | NICSIhad made various correspondence with NBCC from
Para No.13 of observed in the Internal Control System of NICSI: time to time in the last 3-4 years. Also, references had
Part-1l A been made by MeitY to NBCC in the matter. NBCC has
Lapses ThethCompany had purchaseq Hgll Number 2 & 3 however, recently, submitted the draft Lease Agreements
observed at 6, Floor, NBCC Tovve.rs,' Bh'Ba“ Cama Place, New for both the Halls on the 6™ floor at NBCC Tower-BCP and
in Internal Delhi from M/S' NBCC Limited in the year 2003 and | 155 3156 informed NICSI that some payments towards
Control 2001 respectively. However, the Conveyance Deeds/ | Ground Rent / Maintenance are outstanding for earlier
system of Title Deeds towards the same have not yet been got | period, which may be deposited. NICSI has verified its
NICSI. registered even after a lapse of more than 18 years. | entire record and informed the details of Cheques etc.

NICSI had empanelled M/s. Innowave IT Infrastructure
Limited for hiring of support services. The
empanelment of M/s Innowave IT Infrastructure
Limited was valid till 31.03.2020. However, it
was observed that work orders of Rs.61.45 Lakh
were issued in the April 2020 ie. after expiry of
empanelment term and this highlights lapse in
Internal Control System of the Company

NICSI has outstanding Debtors and Creditors
(Advances received from customers including the
Grant in Aid Projects) amounting to Rs. 359.14 crore
and Rs.1551.13 crore as on September 2021. Out of
which debtors and creditors for more than three years
amounts to Rs.107.89 crore and Rs.445.49 crore
respectively. The category wise details of debtors and
creditors is given at the end of this para. Having huge
amount of debtors and creditors remain outstanding
for a period more than three years is indicative of
deficiencies in the Internal Control System of the
Company.

As per Department of Public Enterprises Office
Memorandum dated 08.05.2017 on “Guidelines
on Investment of Surplus Funds by the CPSEs”, the
forecast of surplus availability may be worked out
normally for a period of one year at any point of time
so as to deploy available fund on longer term basis at
better yields. This forecasting exercise shall ideally be
done every month of quarter.

However, during the review of records relating
to Investment of Surplus Funds by NICSI, it is
observed that monthly or quarterly review is not
being conducted by the Company and no clear cur
basis exists for finding out the surplus funds and its
investment.

The Company does not have any approved
Guidelines and Timelines for ensuring timely issuance
of Purchase Orders after the receipt of demand from
User Departments/ Ministries.

to NBCC with the request to get the matter re-verified in
their office. Further feedback from NBCC is awaited. It is
likely that the Lease Deeds would now be got registered
with the concerned office shortly at New Delhi after the
outstanding dues matter is resolved.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.

Internal Control Systems in NICSI had being strengthened
and accordingly, its ERP System had been customized,
which is being followed since July 2017. Through the
ERP such shortcoming do not occur. However, as regards,
Empanelment having been over in March, 2020 but the
Work Orders issued in April 2020, it is mentioned that all
these Work Orders were back dated. since no manpower
was to be deployed beyond 31.03.2020as per these

It is assured that more care would be taken in future to
ensure that such shortcomings do not recur.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.

NICSI reviews it outstanding Debtors and Creditors
regularly and takes action accordingly either by writing
mails / letters to the users or by telephonic discussions /
personal meetings. NICSI Board of Directors has also been
reviewing in its every meeting the status of Outstanding
Debtors & Creditors for the last 5 years and advising NICSI
on the Actions to be taken towards the same. The status
of pendency of debtors / creditors has come down and
the status towards the same as on 31.03.2022 is shown
in Annexure.......... It is seen therefrom that while some
amounts are being adjusted, some new amounts are
being added due to releasing the amounts in Advance
upto 40% only as per the GFR Provisions. The position of
settlement of outstanding amounts and addition of new
amounts may be verified during next Audit.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.
NICSI reviews the status of its Surplus funds from time
to time and also, as & when the FD becomes due for

renewal. NICSI has been following the advice of its Board
of Directors towards investment of its surplus funds.

NICSI has Standard Office Procedures (SOPs) towards its
various activities, including the issue of POs. A copy each
of the same are enclosed.
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The Company only obtains Monthly Performance
Report which contains the name of the employees
hired by the vendor signed by the User Department
along with the bill submission form by the vendors.
The other details such as Aadhaar Number, Voter
ID, PAN Card, Photo etc. of the hired employees
are not available with the company. Thus, the
monitoring system of Project Implementation and
Quality Assurance followed by NICSI needs to be
strengthened.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.

NICSI receives the bills from the vendors towards the
manpower provided at different locations of the users
along-with the MPRs duly verified & accepted / signed /
stamped and releases the payments towards the same.
The responsibility of collecting / keeping /verifying the
details towards Aadhaar /Voter-ID/PAN/Photo etc. is
entirely of the vendor, as they only issues the appointment
letters etc. to the staff deployed.

In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.

S.No. |Particulars Debtors Creditors
1 Central Government 79.09 159.10
2 State Government 18.48 243.21
3 Public Sector undertakings 7.14 27.99
4 Autonomous Organizations 3.18 15.19
Total 107.89 445.49
14 | F.Y.2020-21 The administrative Approval of competent authority | NICSI implements a large no. of new projects every year
ParaNo.14 of | forimplementation of Project entitled “Email Solution | from almost all the Ministries / Department of the Govt.
Part-Il A for Government of India” at a total estimated cost of | of India and States, including their organizations. NICSI
Rs.98.30 crore was given vide letter dated 24.11.2014 | implements all these projects on charging basis, as it does
with a perfect duration of 3 years. The implementing | not get any budgetary support from the Consolidated
agency of the Project was National Informatics Centre | Fund of India and meets its entire expenditure (including
(NIC). Salary etc.) from the very nominal margin it take. Towards
As per Addendum to Administrative Approval dated | "E-Mail Solution for Gol” project also, NICSI takes its
09.12.2014,NICSl was designated as onimplementing | Operating Margin as per the rates approved by its
agency in addition to NIC. The project outlay was | Board of Directors from time to time. As per the terms &
enhanced to Rs. 107.55 crore on 29.08.2017 and | conditions provided by MeitY towards this project, NICSI
duration of the project was extended for a further | getsits Accounts Audited by a CA Firm on yearly basis, the
period of 2 yearsi.e.up to November 2019. The project | Audit Certificate towards which is submitted by NICSI to
duration was extended till April 2021 with the same | MeitY (as received from the CA Firm) which also distinctly
outlay and a proposal has been moved to extend the | mentions the Operating Margin Amount and so far there
project duration till March 2022. The amount released | has been no observation from MeitY so far on the same.
till date in the Project is Rs.106.05 crore.
During the review of records relating to the project, | In view of above, it is requested to drop the para.
it was observed that IFD, MeitY (may 2021) raised
the queries stating that the NICSI charges are not
mentioned in any of the project documents including
Administrative  Approval, Addendum to Admin
approval and Detailed Project Report (DPR). Further
it is stated that the project is being governed by the
administrative approval and not the work order. The
reply sent by the NICSI o IFD, MeitY is not available
on records.
NICSI has not received its margin in respect of the
above project and the same has been worked out to
Rs.4.31 crore. Besides tax amount of Rs.16.31 crore is
yet to be received by NICSI till date.
1. .Detail of RTI matters disposed off during FY 2021-22 68
2. Detail of RTlI matters pending as on 31.03.2022 None
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